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The Organic Meat Company Limited (TOMCL)
is the largest processor and leading exporter of
quality red meat, as well as related meat by-products
from Pakistan. The Company has developed an
expertise to satisfactorily meet its customers’
requirements by processing beef, mutton and camel
meat in various forms, that include fresh-chilled,
frozen, vacuum-packed, M.A.P. vaccum-packed and
heat-treated meat products. As a result, TOMCL has
the largest share of export markets from Pakistan.
To serve it's purposes, the Company owns and
operates state-of-the-art production facilities in
Gadap and Korangi towns of Karachi.

The company is also a pioneer in establishing the
country’s largest back-end animal fattening facility
at the corporate level, to ensure consistent quality
of meat to its customers.

TOMCL started off in 2010 as a private limited
company in Karachi, with a single mission i.e., to
provide the highest quality of meat and offal
products to our customers around the globe. The
Company’s journey has been guided by it’s mission
and governing principles, which include valuing
integrity, being innovative and to offer the finest
quality of meat and allied offal products.

Our key values and work ethics revolve around
producing quality products, maintaining a motivated
workforce, and a safe working environment, while
making a positive contribution to the local
community and the less privileged sections of
society.

The Company ensures that its production processes
adhere to the industry’s standard hygiene
procedures, which are in compliance with ISO 9001-
2015, HACCP for Food, GMP, Gulf Standards, SASO
and various other international organizations. For
the purpose, the Company is regularly certified and
audited by various local and international private
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and governmental food safety and veterinary
organizations.

The company ensures strict implementation of Halal
principles for slaughtering and humane treatment
of animals. The company is also certified and
monitored by various Halal monitoring
organizations, that include Jamia Markaz-e Uloom-
e-Islamia Pakistan and International Halal Center,
Pakistan.

With a firm belief in the top quality of Pakistani
cattle, which is grass-fed and produce meat of
utmost tenderness, the Company is striving to open
up new markets, of which China and Tajikistan are
recent examples. The Company’s control processes
strictly ensure that the animals are purchased from
disease free zones of the country, while regular
updates of any epidemic outbreaks are continuously
monitored by our veterinary department to ensure
procurement of healthy animals for production.

The Company enjoys being the pioneer in various
innovations and achievements in the country's meat
industry. In addition to being the first company to
export frozen boneless beef meat to Saudi Arabia,
the Company was also the first to initiate export of
vacuum-packed boneless beef and fresh chilled
bone-in beef via sea. Pioneering the export markets
like China, Jordan, Albania, USA, Maldives and
Vietnam, the Company enjoys the largest global
market access from Pakistan.

The Company strives to further improve and be an
outstanding example for the meat industry globally.
The vision is based on promoting quality beef and
mutton animals from Pakistan by adding value to
the product to achieve better commercial gains for
the country.
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VISION

To excel in delivering value to customers as an innovative and
dynamic meat and edible offal company that gets to the future
first. Enhancing the product lines and quality of products along
with vertical and horizontal integration in the red meat industry
of Pakistan.

MISSION

We are committed to leadership in the meat industry of Pakistan
through competitive advantage in providing the highest quality
meat and edible offal products to our customers around the globe.
Furthermore, we aim to incorporate professionally trained, high
quality, motivated workforce, working as a team in an environment,
which recognizes and rewards performance, innovation and
creativity, and provides for personal growth and development.

We aim to assure access to long-term and cost effective sources with our thorough innovations in
raw material procurement, production processes and transport techniques in order to achieve
sustained growth in earnings in real terms. Last but not the least our motive of business revolves
around high ethical business values, safe and friendly environment along with socially responsible
business practices.

VALUES

The Organic Meat Company Limited ensures that it’s values and
ethics are followed across business, operations and all its

shareholders.
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The Company’s significant strategic objectives include contributing to the welfare of its customers by
ensuring production of quality products and services that meet relevant international standards.
Furthermore, increasing stakeholder value through continuous improvement of production processes
and innovation in product offerings while ensuring optimum efficiency remains a key objective.
TOMCL is also focused on the following objectives:

iy

Compliance with Regulatory Sustainable Supply of
and Legal Requirements Raw Material

v
1

Explore Opportunities
for Growth

Human Resource
Development
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We offer a versatile portfolio of meat and offal products. The continued growth of our business is a
testament of our well-rooted product knowledge and development which has led to our far-reaching
success. Majorly, TOMCL is an export oriented company focusing on the following products:

OUR PRODUCTS

Bone-in Carcasses
Beef Boneless Compensated
Beef Boneless Cuts, Beef Cubes Bone-in
Beef Meat Delicacies
Exported In Fresh Chilled, Frozen Or
Cooked Categories. Packed In Vacuum
Pouches, Food Graded Plastic Or Food

Friendly Cloth.

-
-

-

Red Offal includes Liver, Kidney, Heart and
Lungs exported in fresh chilled or frozen
form in packaging as per customers’
requirements. White Offal includes Tripe,
Intestines, Omasum, Trachea, Pizzle and
Aorta exported in salted and dried form or
cooked frozen form in packaging as per
customers’ requirements.

Bone-in Carcasses
Mutton Boneless Cuts
Mutton Cubes Bone-in
Exported In Fresh Chilled, Frozen Or
Cooked Categories. Packed In Vacuum
Pouches, Food Graded Plastic Or Food
Friendly Cloth.

-

Exported In Fresh Chilled and Frozen
Categories.
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EXPORT DESTINATIONS

TOMCL enjoys the largest export network globally and has exported meat and offal products to the

following countires since its beginning:

United Arab Emirates Saudi Arabia

it _J.U“ \

B
I @
[ .

|

CIS region

Qatar Maldives

st "

Uzbekistan

Canada

i+

Azerbaijan
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ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Export Fresh Export Frozen Vacuum
Chilled Mutton Meat Boneless Beef Meat Packed Fresh Boneless Beef
Meat

Export of
Private Fresh Beef Carcasses
Labeling
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BANKERS
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Registered Address:
Survey No. 310, Deh Shah Mureed, Gadap, Karachi, Pakistan.
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Website
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OUR VALUABLE CUSTOMERS

Majid Al Futtaim
Hyper Markets LLC

INTERNATIONAL HUB
FOR TRADING CO., K.S.A

Abdullah Mohammad
Al Ghamdi KSA

Khairat Al Bahar KSA

Daral Falah Food Stuff
Trading LLC UAE

AL DURI TRADING
GROUP COMPANY, K.S.A

>3 Ahmed Ali Mohammed
Hakami Trading Co.
JEDDAH, K.S.A.

SAARUNG
INTERNATIONAL, QATAR

st al-riﬁ» @L-Asimcowsmnss

Sarmoya Toch Fars Limited
Liahility Company (LLC)

TIANJIN LONGING
INTERNATIONAL
LOGISTICS CO.

Aseel Al-Afia LLC
Oman

KIKU Trading Gompany
LLC UAE

Gold Crest Trading FZE UAE

Falcon Shipping &
Trading Joint Stock Co.,
Hony Kong

Haipong Trading IMP Exp
Joint Stock Co., Vietham

DURAR AL-BAYAN
TRADING EST, K.S.A

QUICK MEAT MIDDLE
EAST LLC, U.A.E

Custom Pet Inc. LLc
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Nihal Cassim is an MBA (Finance & MIS) from McGill University. He takes particular interest in
facilitating the development of the capital market, governance of public companies and building
shareholder value.

He is currently a Director on the Boards of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, International Steels
Limited, Crescent Steel & Allied Products Limited, The Organic Meat Company Limited, National
Clearing Company Limited, NIFT and Ubiquity Trading Limited. He has also served on the Boards
of Pakistan Oilfields Limited (for 9 years) and Ferozsons Laboratories Limited (for 15 years). Nihal
has served two terms as a director on the Board of the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan
(MUFAP).

Nihal’s focus has expanded to philanthropic activities as a donor and as a member/trustee of The
Citizens Foundation, the Patient Aid Foundation and The Jinnah Foundation.




Faisal Hussain has over 23 years working
experience in the sheep casings (offal
processing) industry and 13 years of
experience in the meat processing industry.
He is the Founder Shareholder/Director & CEO
of the Company.

He holds a “Master of Business Administration”
degree from the respected Institute of Business
Administration (IBA) and a “Master Of
Finance” Degree from Cardiff Business School,
University of Wales, UK. He decided to come
into the meat industry in year 2010, knowing
that he has an edge over all other players in
the market due to his previous experience in
the Meat Offal Industry. He is the pioneer of
various innovative trends in the meat industry
of Pakistan.

He brought new concepts in the industry of
further adding value by offering boneless
Frozen and Vacuum packed Beef and Mutton
meat along with tremendous increase in export
of Offal to Far Eastern economies. It was under
his leadership that TOMCL achieved honor of
being the only company in South East Asia to
have approvals of export for so many
destinations including Iraq, Maldives and
Malaysia. His idea of extending the shelf life
of Pakistani Beef and Mutton meat resulted
in opening of markets like CIS States for
Pakistan. He has taken a single product meat
industry of Pakistan which use to export only
meat carcasses before the entry of TOMCL to
a multi-product industry. His recent initiative
of exporting Beef Offal as a raw material for
producing Pet Food is getting good market
response internationally.

Mr. Ali Hussain
Executive Director

Ali Hussain is in charge for operations,
productions and all aspects of compliances
related to processing plants of the company.
Various other departments and aspects like
HR, Export, Halal Management Systems,
Animal Welfare and CSR are also headed by
him. He has been a vital part of the
management team since beginning of
TOMCL. Primarily, he was managing affairs
of export development and export related
licenses. Since 2015, he was assigned the
affairs of the processing factories and was
designated as Chief Operating Officer.
He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Economics from Lahore University of
Management Sciences (LUMS) and had been
president of various student bodies in his
university. Furthermore, he has done various
diplomas from London School of Economics
and Political Science in UK. He also has vast
experience in food catering business along
with handling and maintaining the
workplace standards for HACCP, ISO 9001-
2015 and GMP. His communal services in
the field of sports are notable. Recently he
was a member of BOG of Sindh Cricket
Association and formerly he has been the
Secretary for Karachi City Cricket
Association. He also owned a catering
business which was venturing food supplies
to various multinational corporations and
embassies.




7 Mr. Rizwan Punjwani
Independent Director

Rizwan Punjwani is a Chartered
Accountant and holds more than 25 years
of working experience. His experience in
the field of finance and equity has helped
TOMCL to grow and develop it into a
financially sound organization.
Currently, he is also a Fund Manager at
RAY Securities. Prior to it, he was
Director and Chief Operating Officer at
Sindh Gas where he was primarily
responsible to implement projects. Mr.
Punjwani has led the Investment Banking
department of one of the largest bank of
Pakistan - National Bank of Pakistan
where he gained rich experience of
handling debt and equity transaction of
large ticket size.

Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi
Independent Director

Owais Zaidi is serving on the Board as an
independent director since year 2019. He
holds a “Master of Business
Administration” Degree from respected
Institute of Business Administration (IBA)
in Karachi. He has a diversified exposure
to various industry verticals and business
domains. He is Founder & CEO at Credit
Fix - Pakistan’s first credit market place,
Co- Founder & Principal Consultant at
Infinitum Innovations which manages the
largest service offices chain in Pakistan
called “The Hive”. Prior to that Mr. Zaidi
has been associated with several tech
companies playing key management
roles.




Mr. Aneek Saleh
Mohammad
Independent Director

Aneek Saleh has joined the Board in
December 2020. He holds a “Master of
Business Administration” Degree from the
prestigious Institute of Business
Administration (IBA) in Karachi. He is the
founder and CEO of Revelation Group, with
a portfolio of companies expanding from
advertising, publications, digital platforms
and media solutions. He has been
instrumental in bringing innovative
marketing solutions and the creation of
strong collaborative platforms for Pakistan.
He has been the sole representative for many
international festivals and events including
the most prominent Cannes Lions Festival
for Pakistan for over a decade and has played
a pivotal role in creating a space for Pakistan
on many international platforms.

With extensive experience of over 25 years
in the field of marketing, Aneek brings with
him a strong understanding of the food
industry as he has been involved with many
major consumer food companies in the
strategic advisory role.

Ms. Sehrish Hafeez
Mastoor

Independent Director

Sehrish Hafeez holds a BSc in Philosophy
and Economics from the prestigious
London School of Economics in London,
UK and has recently completed her
masters from Columbia University in USA.
Her experience includes valuation of
different companies through different
valuation techniques like discounted cash
flow techniques, comparable and other
approaches. She has a good
understanding of the business models and
is also strategically involved in various
roles for running the business
successfully.




CHAIRMAN'’S
REVIEW

It is a pleasure and honor to present this report to the shareholders of The Organic Meat Company
Limited, reflecting on the performance of the Board of Directors and their effectiveness in guiding
the Company towards achieving its objectives.

The Company had to operate in a challenging environment characterized by a changed taxation regime
on exporters - doubling the effective tax rate, high energy costs eating into the Company’s margins,
regional conflicts making export logistics expensive and uncertain, changing currency parities of
competing countries thereby restricting our export potential in key markets, and most importantly,
the dwindling of Pakistan’s livestock reserves due to ongoing fluids which impacted prices of our key
inputs. On the positive site, Lower interest rates allowed respite in our fiscal space. Despite these
headwinds, the Company managed to navigate the complexities of the operating environment and
demonstrated resilience by achieving commendable sales growth and holding on to profitability.

The front end continued to be driven by product diversification such as cooked beef products and
entry into new international markets such as Tajikistan. These new products and markets are key
growth areas for the Company. These achievements would not have been executable without the
constant investments in R&D, timely expansions/upgrades of our facilities, and the increased investment
in fattening farm operations which continues to provide a buffer for supply and cost cutting. During
the year the Company also completed a rights offering, raising Rs. 810million to reorganize its working
capital, reduce leverage and to meet growth expectations.

The acquisition of the offals and sheep casing company in Karachi Export Processing Zone (KEPZ),
has been completed and its positive impact on the financial results of the Company would be realized
in the next year’s results. This acquisition will hopefully open new channels for sourcing raw materials
from abroad, allowing our subsidiary to process them domestically for export to the Far East as well
as the European markets.

The Board has remained focused on strategic governance, overseeing the implementation of effective
risk management frameworks, and ensuring that the Company is well-positioned to capitalize on
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CHAIRMAN'’S REVIEW

future opportunities while safeguarding its assets. The proactive approach to governance has helped
us identify and prioritize areas of improvement. The Board's advocacy for consistent policy formation
and improvement, prudent financial management and investing in human resources will continue
to strengthen the foundation to overcome future challenges.

The Audit, HR, and IT Committees, all chaired by independent directors, have been instrumental in
driving transparency, accountability, and efficiency. The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
has the key job of taking HR monitoring to a level which can sustain a competent and satisfied
workforce at every stage of the Company’s growth. The Information Technology Committee continues
to support the digital transformation efforts to improve operational efficiencies. The Audit Committee
focused strengthening the framework for identifying and mitigating risks and overseeing financial
reporting. The Board and its committees will continue to evaluate their performance objectively and
enhance the governance standards.

The composition of the Board reflects a diverse mix of expertise, with Directors bringing varied
experience in fields such as finance, marketing, IT, and the food industry. This diversity has been
crucial in navigating the complexities of the markets in which the Company operates. The Company
remains committed to ensuring full compliance with regulatory requirements, and the internal and
external audits have confirmed the soundness of its financial reporting and internal controls.

Health, safety, and environmental compliance continue to be at the forefront of the Company’s
operational priorities. The Company is proud to report that it has successfully maintained all HSEQ
standards, with ongoing improvements in processes. The Sindh Environmental Protection Agency
(SEPA) certification highlights the commitment to environmental stewardship. These achievements
would not have been possible without the hard work, dedication, and commitment of the management
and employees, to whom I extend my deepest gratitude. Their contribution has been pivotal in helping
the Company achieve its goals.

[ would also like to take this opportunity to thank to our valued customers, fellow Directors, the
Ministry of National Food Security and Research, the regulators especially the Pakistan Stock Exchange
and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan as well as all other stakeholders for their
unwavering support throughout this challenging yet rewarding year. We remain optimistic about the
future, confident that the Company’s strategy will continue to deliver value to its shareholders and
position The Organic Meat Company Limited as a key player in the meat export industry for the
foreseeable future.

i G

Nihal Cassim
Chairman of Board of Directors
The Organic Meat Company Ltd.

Dated: September 27, 2025
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Organic Meat Company Limited (TOMCL)
For the year ended 30 June, 2025.

Executive overview

The Board of Directors of The Organic Meat Company Limited (TOMCL) are pleased to present its
report to the shareholders for the financial year ended June 30, 2025. A world class meat producer
satisfying the highest levels of standards in hygiene and quality produce, TOMCL has created a market
leading position for itself in the meat produce sector. Our two processing plants and animal fattening
farm based in Karachi, possess rounded facilities to provide tender, fresh, and healthy meat to our
valued customers globally. TOMCL lives its motto “We Produce The Best”.

During FY2025, TOMCL deliberately shifted from a predominantly export-led model to a balanced
export-and-domestic sales portfolio, improving resilience to freight volatility, FX normalization, and
geopolitical shocks, while deepening institutional penetration in Pakistan in niche product categories.
Net sales increased to PKR 14,006.1 million (FY-2024: PKR 11,797.8 million), with exports contributing
PKR 8,132.5 million and local and other sales PKR 5,873.6 million—a revenue mix of roughly 58%
export / 42% local for the year. The Company generated gross profit of PKR 1,281.5 million, while
operating profitability reflected the intended mix shift, tighter provisioning disciplines on a larger
local receivables book, and normalization of exchange-linked gains.

Externally, FY-2025 featured a welcome easing in Pakistan’s macro conditions, the SBP cut the policy
rate to 12% on 27 January 2025, then held it there during second half FY25; national CPI inflation
decelerated into June-2025 (YoY) according to the State Bank’s Inflation Monitor and PBS releases.

Market context and TOMCL'’s positioning

TOMCL's multi-market footprint and approvals in key destinations (including China’s GACC approval
for heat-treated frozen beef and renewed UAE channels highlighted in our last year report) provided
the foundation for the FY-2025 mix re-balancing. The phase-II capacity expansion completed in
September 2024 allowed the Company to broaden its value-added portfolio while preserving hygiene
and cost disciplines. Logistics remained a headwind globally, with 2024-25 disruptions around the
Red Sea/Suez and broader route tightness pressuring shipping costs. TOMCL's channel diversification
strategy mitigated these effects on service levels and customer retention.

Sales mix, volumes and customers

The change in sales mix is now visible in both the income statement and balance-sheet exposures.
Revenue from exports (PKR 8,132.5 million) and local/other channels (PKR 5,873.6 million) reflects
the strategic pivot, while year-end receivables show export trade debts of PKR 1,731.7 million and
local trade debts of PKR 583.0 million; governance over collections and expected-credit-loss modelling
was strengthened accordingly.
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During FY 2025 due to adverse movement between US dollar and Euro, the frozen boneless beef
exports suffered setbacks as Brazilian exports of frozen boneless beef became cheaper globally
resulting in a 91% reduction in exports. This, situation has, however, relaxed in the last quarter of FY
2025 and frozen boneless beef exports have recommenced. This reduction in exports of a key contributor
to our export product profile was offset by an opportunity to export indirectly to CIS markets which
led to local sales of fresh chilled and frozen boneless beef increasing by 100%. Overall, the company
had a stable performing year with total export and local tonnages in FY 2025 being 10,960 MT (FY
2024: 10,361 MT) showing a gradual increase of 6%.

Your Company is pleased to report that its long-term investment in fattening farm operations are
finally showing positive contribution to the company’s bottom line. Livestock KPIs supported
throughput continuity with 670 head of cattle at year-end (2024: 551) and 4,605 head slaughtered
from internal stock during the year, while finished goods closed at PKR 375.2 million (2024: PKR
157.0 million) to service early FY-2026 schedules.

Operating performance and unit economics

Revenue rose 18.7% year-on-year to PKR 14,006.1 million. Cost of sales increased with higher
throughput and energy inputs, closing at PKR 12,724.5 million, yielding gross profit of PKR 1,281.5
million and a gross margin of ~9.1%. Selling expenses declined materially to PKR 339.8 million (FY-
2024: PKR 581.6 million) as freight/export-related outlays normalized and increased ex-factory sales,
while administrative expenses increased to PKR 269.1 million. The Company booked ECL charges of
PKR 158.6 million versus PKR 35.2 million last year, reflecting a prudent stance on a larger domestic
receivables book and current-period ageing. Operating profit stood at PKR 513.24 million, supplemented
by other income of PKR 246.8 million (including biological assets remeasurement gains), against
finance costs of PKR 153.8 million. Profit before taxation was PKR 606.27 million, and profit after tax
PKR 429.79million, translating into EPS of PKR 2.76 (restated FY-2024: PKR 3.35).

A management view of working-capital quality (closing-balance indicators) places DSO around ~61
days on year-end receivables (PKR 2,314.6 million), DIO around ~11 days on stock-in-trade (PKR 398
million), and DPO around ~4 days on trade payables (PKR 131.5 million), with the mix shift and
channel build-out the principal drivers of receivable tenor. These indicators will tighten as the domestic
collections cadence fully seasons through FY-2026.

Table 1: Income statement highlights (PKR million)

Net sales 14,006.1 11,797.8
Cost of sales 12,724.5 10,218.7
Gross profit 1,281.5 1,579.0
Administrative expenses 269.1 173.3
Selling expenses 339.8 581.6
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ECL on trade receivables 158.6 35.2
Operating profit 513.2 789.0
Other income 246.8 87.0
Finance costs 153.8 231.5
Profit before tax 606.26 483.5
Profit after tax 429.79 497.4
EPS (PKR) 2.76 3.35

Cash flow, liquidity and capex

Cash generation remained healthy despite a working-capital build consistent with the channel strategy.
Net cash from operating activities amounted to PKR 169.15 million (FY-2024: PKR 969.7 million).
Investing cash flows reflected PKR 493.63 million in property, plant and equipment (largely
reliability/efficiency and Phase-II tail-end), with capex commitments of PKR 96.0 million outstanding
at year-end. Financing flows included PKR 810.0 million proceeds from the completed right issue, net
of routine servicing; short-term borrowings reduced to PKR 504.9 million (2024: PKR 805.0 million),
with cash and cash equivalents closing negative at PKR 56.85 million (2024: negative PKR 457.3
million).

The balance sheet exhibits continued deleveraging and capital strength with issued and paid-up share
capital PKR 1,784.9 million builtup through a successful rights share issue of Rs 810.0 million, reserves
PKR 3,587.3 million, and revaluation surplus of PKR 811.8 million; long-term borrowings were nil
at year-end.

Taxation, regime effects and governance

The income-tax expense / liability reflects the transition from the final tax regime in FY-2024 to normal
tax in FY-2025. This aligns TOMCL's export and domestic profitability under a unified tax base. The
Board confirms continued compliance with IFRS as applicable in Pakistan and the Companies Act,
2017, and reiterates that related-party transactions are approved by the Board and fully disclosed in
the notes.

Risk management and controls

The principal risk vectors in FY-2025 were raw-material availability and pricing, logistics/freight,
receivable tenor on a larger domestic book, and interestrate exposure. Freight and route disruptions
persisted globally in 2024-25, reinforcing the strategic value of TOMCL's balanced channel program
and diversified contract base. The Audit Committee oversaw enhancements in credit governance
(including ECL methodologies) and operating-risk controls across slaughter, deboning, energy and
cold-chain.
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Sustainability, SHE and certifications

Environmental compliance and safety protocols remained robust, with processes, training, and
certification regimes maintained across facilities; these systems underpin the Company’s license to
operate and export approvals.

Credit Rating

In 2025, VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (VIS) has reaffirmed the entity ratings of The Organic
Meat Company Limited (TOMCL) at ‘A/A-1’ (Single A /A- One). The long-term rating of ‘A’ indicates
good credit quality with adequate protection factors, while the short-term rating of ‘A-1’ reflects high
certainty of timely payment with excellent liquidity factors and minor risk factors. The rating outlook
is ‘Positive’.

Key factors supporting the rating upgrade include TOMCL's strong market position as a major processor
and exporter of red meat, the largest capacity in slaughtering to packaging, and a significant presence
in 18 export markets. TOMCL's product range includes various forms of processed meat, pet chews,
and cooked meat products. The company’s efficient business model minimizes wastage and leverages
by-products.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Your Company is deeply committed to driving meaningful change for the planet, our nation, and the
communities we serve. We actively support initiatives that reflect our core values and long-term vision
for a better world. Additionally, we empower our employees to grow as civic leaders, encouraging
them to embrace social responsibility both within the workplace and in their personal lives. Together,
we are making a positive impact, one action at a time.

Your Company takes social responsibility as a key priority and is always striving to benefit its employees
through unique product offerings. In this regard TOMCL has entered into an earned wage payment
agreement with Neem Paymenow, a leading South African brand to provide employees with earned
wage advances as well as trainings to manage personal financial affairs. This initiative also carries
significant social credits for TOMCL, thus helping your Company in advancing its ESG agenda.

Outlook and post-balance sheet events

The near-term operating environment features lower domestic inflation, a 12% policy rate, and
constructive capital-market sentiment, which together support demand and financing costs. Post
year-end, TOMCL disclosed a total of US$ 18.84 million export contract with Gold Crest Trading FZE
(UAE), providing early FY-2026 order coverage for frozen boneless beef and helping to anchor baseline
plant loading.

Management’s priorities for FY-2026 are straightforward, that is, to consolidate the export/local
balance while lifting blended margins through procurement programs and yield management; to
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maintain tight receivable cycles as domestic channels mature; and to focus capex on reliability and
energy efficiency with clear paybacks. These actions will be complemented by customer-led innovation
in value-added SKUs, while sustaining certifications and approvals that differentiate TOMCL in export
markets. The Board remains confident that the Company is appropriately configured for disciplined
growth.

The Board of Directors (BOD) and its committees

Your Company is governed by a Board of seven directors who bring extensive experience and exercise
the utmost care in their decision-making. The Board is composed of two executive directors and five
independent directors, including a female director, ensuring diverse and balanced perspectives. The
roles of the chairman and the chief executive are clearly defined, promoting strong leadership and
effective governance. During FY2025, a fresh election of directors took place and all existing Board
members retained their positions, and the Board reposed its trust in the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer and appointed them for a further period of three years.

The audit, IT, and HR committees are chaired by independent directors, further reinforcing our
commitment to transparency and accountability. All directors have successfully completed the Directors
Certification Training Program, which exceeds the standards set by the Code of Corporate Governance,
Regulations 2019.

Our directors have understanding of their roles, responsibilities, and powers as outlined in the
Companies Act, 2017, and the PSX Rule Book. In addition, the Company has implemented a well-
structured remuneration policy for its non-executive and independent directors, ensuring alignment
with industry best practices.

To enhance operational efficiency and governance, the Board has delegated specific functions to
specialized committees, each of which plays a vital role in driving the Company’s success. The
committees are outlined as follows:

a) Board Audit Committee (BAC)

The Audit Committee is composed of three independent directors, including the Chairman, in accordance
with the Code of Corporate Governance, Regulations 2019. The Board of Directors has clearly outlined
the terms of reference for the committee, ensuring its responsibilities are well-defined.

The Audit Committee plays a pivotal role in reviewing quarterly and annual financial statements, as
well as internal audit reports, in preparation for Board meetings. Additionally, it is entrusted with the
oversight of the company's internal control systems through close collaboration with the internal
audit department, ensuring the effectiveness of both operational and financial controls.
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The esteemed members of the committee are:

U Mr. Rizwan Abbas - Chairman
D Mr. Nihal Cassim

\J Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi

This structure reflects the Board’s commitment to upholding strong governance and maintaining the
highest standards of transparency and accountability.

b) Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HRRC)

The committee consists of three Board members: two independent directors and one executive director.
The committee is chaired by an independent director, who is responsible for overseeing the formulation
and execution of the Company's human resource management policies. Additionally, the committee
sets employee remuneration, ensuring alignment with the business strategy and long-term objectives.

The current members of the committee are:

ﬁ Mr. Aneek Saleh Mohammad - Chairman
ﬁ Mr. Rizwan Abbas
U Mr. Ali Hussain

c) Information Technology Committee (ITC)

The committee consists of three Board members, including two independent directors and one
executive director. The committee is chaired by an independent director, ensuring impartial leadership.
Its primary mission is to support the Board in maintaining robust, reliable IT systems and services.
Additionally, the committee oversees the quality, integrity, and accuracy of system reporting and
internal controls within the Company.

Current members of the committee are:

ﬁ Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi - Chairman

ﬁ Mr. Ali Hussain

v} Ms. Sehrish Hafeez Mastoor

Meeting of the Board and its Committees

Throughout the year, the Board of Directors (BOD) held 7 meetings, the Audit Committee (BAC)
convened 4 times, the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HRRC) met 2 times, and the

Information Technology Committee (ITC) held 1 meeting. The table below provides details on the
attendance of each director at these meetings.
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Current members of the committee are:

v Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi - Chairman

ﬁ Mr. Ali Hussain

XJ  Ms. Sehrish Hafeez Mastoor

Meeting of the Board and its Committees

Throughout the year, the Board of Directors (BOD) held 7 meetings, the Audit Committee (BAC)
convened 4 times, the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HRRC) met 2 times, and the
Information Technology Committee (ITC) held 1 meeting. The table below provides details on the
attendance of each director at these meetings.

Name of Director

Mr. Faisal Hussain

Mr. Ali Hussain

Mr. Nihal Cassim

Mr. Rizwan Abbas

Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi

Mr. Aneek Saleh Mohammad

Ms. Sehrish Hafeez Mastoor

Number of Meeting Attended

BOD BAC HRRC ITC
7/7 - - -
7/7 - 2/2 1/1
7/7 4/4 - -
6/7 3/4 2/2 -
6/7 3/4 - 1/1
7/7 - 2/2 ,
5/7 - - 0/1

Directors who were unable to attend board or committee meetings due to legitimate reasons were
granted a leave of absence in accordance with applicable legal provisions.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

We are glad to report that our Company has complied with the Code of Corporate Governance in
terms of corporate and financial reporting framework. The following points summarize our compliance

status:

v The management of the Company has prepared the financial statements in a fair and
accurate manner, reflecting its financial position, performance, cash flows and changes

in equity.
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The Company has consistently applied appropriate accounting policies in preparing
the financial statements and has made reasonable and prudent accounting estimates.

v} The Company has maintained proper books of accounts as required by the law.

0 The Company has followed the International Accounting Standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, in preparing the financial statements.

v The Company has no significant doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern.

v} The Company has a sound system of internal controls that is monitored by internal
and external auditors. The Company strives to improve and strengthen its internal
controls on a continuous basis.

N The details about taxes are provided in the notes to the accounts.

Risk Management and Strategy for Mitigating Risk

The Board has been closely monitoring the socioeconomic landscape and associated internal and
external risks that could impact the Company’s operations and overall performance. Proactive in its
approach, the Board has focused on identifying, assessing, and managing these risks. The Audit
Committee maintains a comprehensive risk register, which is reviewed on a regular basis. Additionally,
relevant committees continuously reassess and update policies to ensure alignment with the evolving
environment.

Key risks identified include fluctuations in the availability and pricing of raw materials, the appreciation
of the Pakistani rupee affecting export revenues, changes in shipping logistics leading to increased
freight charges, uncertainty surrounding duty drawback schemes, delays in payment receipts, volatility
of interest rates on loans, domestic inflationary pressures, potential credit losses from unsecured
customers, currency devaluation in competing countries, and the spread of diseases among local
livestock.

To mitigate these risks, the Company has implemented hedging strategies for raw materials, currency,
and shipping risks, and has taken steps to safeguard receivables and advances.

Furthermore, the management has actively sought government support for the meat export sector
by advocating for consistent pricing and policies. Industry associations have also been encouraged
to adopt standardized trade practices.

Code of Business Principles

As a prominent meat exporter, we take pride in our strong reputation for ethical integrity. We have

implemented a comprehensive Code of Business Principles and Ethical Standards, which has been
fully embraced and endorsed by all directors and employees of the company.
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Auditors

The Board of Directors has recommended the re-appointment of BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered
Accountants as the external auditors for the next financial year ending June 30, 2026. This
recommendation is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the upcoming Annual General
Meeting (AGM). BDO Ebrahim & Co. has demonstrated professionalism and expertise in conducting
the company’s audits, and the Board believes their continued engagement will support the company's
financial reporting process effectively.

Pattern of Shareholding

The shareholding pattern, as mandated by the Code of Corporate Governance, is included in this report.
It also provides details of any share transactions involving the Company’s Directors, key management
personnel, their spouses, and minor children.

Board’s Commitment

The Board remains committed to creating long-term value for its shareholders by pursuing strategic
growth opportunities, improving operational efficiencies, and strengthening the Company's market
position in the global meat industry.
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Tel: +92 21 3568 3030 2nd Floor, Block-C
Fax: +92 21 3568 4239 Lakson Square, Building Mo.1
www.bdo.com.pk Sarwar Shaheed Road

Karachi-74200
Pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE
LIMITED REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COM

D=L AT =Y b B ) LI

(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

g

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of The Organic Meat
Company Limited for the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36
of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries
of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with
the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with
the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30,

2025.
KARACHI BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
DATED: 2§ SEP 2055 Engagement Partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer

UDIN: CR20251006 7vXJgeMfGw

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.



Statement of Compliance

with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
For the year ended June 30, 2025

The Organic Meat Company Limited (“the Company”) has complied with the requirements of the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the Regulations”) in the
following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 7 (Seven) as per following:
a) Male: Six
b) Female: One
2. The composition of the Board of Directors (“the Board”) is as follows:
Category Name
Independent Directors Mr. Nihal Cassim

Mr. Rizwan Abbas

Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi
Mr. Aneek Saleh Mohammad
Ms. Sehrish Hafeez Mastoor

Mr. Faisal Hussain

Executive Directors . .
Mr. Ali Hussain

9 Female Director Ms. Sehrish Hafeez Mastoor )

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this company.

4, The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant

policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the
date of approval or updating is maintained by the company.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have

been taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act
and these Regulations.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Statement of Compliance

with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
For the year ended June 30, 2025

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements
of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of Board.

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

The directors are well aware of their duties and responsibilities under the Code. All Seven
directors have obtained certification under Directors’ Certification Training Program. Therefore,
over all of the Board is qualified under the criteria of DTP as per Code.

The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with
relevant requirements of the Regulations.

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Board Audit Committee
Mr. Rizwan Abbas - Chairman
Mr. Nihal Cassim
Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi

b) Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
Aneek Saleh Mohammad - Chairman
Mr. Rizwan Abbas
Mr. Ali Hussain

c) Information Technology Committee
Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi - Chairman
Ms. Sehrish Hafeez Mastoor
Mr. Ali Hussain

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance.



14.

Statement of Compliance

with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
For the year ended June 30, 2025

The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:

Category Name

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Board Audit Committee Quarterly
Human Resource & Remuneration Committee Yearly
Information Technology Committee Yearly )

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function supervised by a qualified Head of
Internal Audit who is considered suitably experienced for the purpose and is conversant with
the policies and procedures of the company.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all of
their partmers are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines
on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm involved
in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children)
of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary
or director of the company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard.

We confirm that all the requirements of the regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 have been
complied with.

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32,
33 and 36 (non-mandatory requirements) are below:
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S.NO REQUIRMENT EXPLANATION Reg. No
1. The board is responsible for governance | The board is responsible for governance | 10A
and oversight of sustainability risks and | and oversight of sustainability risks and (1)(3)(4)
opportunities and takes appropriate opportunities and takes appropriate
measures to address it. Further, the measures to address it. Further, the
board ensures that the Company’s board ensures that the Company’s
sustainability and DE&I related sustainability and DE&I related
strategies are periodically reviewed and | strategies are periodically reviewed and
monitored. monitored.
2. The board may establish a dedicated The Board has assigned the 10A (5)
sustainability committee or assign responsibility of monitoring
additional responsibilities to an existing | sustainability guidelines for ESG
board committee. implementation to the Board Audit
Committee (BAC), which will report
progress to the Board on a periodic
basis.
3. The Board may constitute a separate The Board addresses the responsibilities 29
committee, designated as the typically assigned directly to a
nomination committee, of such number | nomination committee as needed, so
and class of directors, as it may deem establishing a separate committee is
appropriate in its circumstances. not deemed necessary.
4. The Board may constitute the risk | Board in its meeting deliberated and 30
management committee, of such | determined thatitisequipped to handle
number and class of directors, as it may | all risk management matters directly,
deem appropriate in its circumstances, | with oversight from the audit
to carry out a review of effectiveness of | committee. The audit committee
risk management procedures and | oversees the implementation of risk
present a report to the Board. | management policies and the
presentation of various risks in financial
statements, including financial, market,
credit, and liquidity risks, among others.
5. The Directors’ Report shall include the | The Directors' report stated that the | 34(2)(iv)
remuneration policy of non-executive | Board of Directors has formulated a
directors including independent remuneration policy for the Company's
directors, as approved by the Board, non-executive and independent
which shall also include disclosing the Directors.
significant features and elements
thereof.

44



S.NO REQUIRMENT EXPLANATION Reg. No
6. The company may post the following | The Company is fully compliant to the 35(1)
on its website: regulatory requirements for
1) key elements of its significant maintenance of our robust and updated
policies including but not limited to the | website as contained under SECP SRO
following: No.119(i)/2019 dated 374 October,
(i) communication and disclosure | 2019 and any amendments and
policy; additions made there to in the
(ii)  Code of conduct for members of | subsequent periods.
board of directors, senior management
and other employees;
(iii) Risk management policy;
(iv)  Internal control policy;
(v)  Whistle blowing policy;
Corporate social responsibility /
sustainability/ environmental, social
and governance related policy.
7. The company may post the following | gjnce this requirement is not mandatory
on its website: the Company has not posted a brief 35(2)
Brief synopsis of terms of reference of synopsis of its board committees on its
the Board’s committees including: website
(i) Audit Committee (ii) HR and
Remuneration Committee (iii)
Nomination Committee
On behalf of the Board of Directors

NIHAL CASSIM

Chairman

Karachi: September 3, 2025

U kgt o

FAISAL HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF GENDER PAY GAP
UNDER SECP CIRCULAR NO. 10 OF 2024

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended June 30, 2025:
(i) Mean Gender Pay Gap: 96.50%
(ii) Median Gender Pay Gap: 134.23%

(iii) Any other data/ details as deemed relevant: The Organic Meat Company Limited is pleased to
report a positive gender pay gap in favour of female employees against their male counterparts which
is indicative of its diversity and inclusive employee constitution.

/./_:\\o.

@@-c%%
U kgt <@5)>

Faisal Hussain

(Signed by CEO/ director on behalf of Board of Directors of the Company)
Date: 27-09-2025
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT

THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FROM JUNE 30, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2025

For the year ended June 30"

Description
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
(Amounts in PKR Million)

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Sales 3,384 3,928 4,658 6,365 11,797 14,006
Cost of Goods Sold (2,754) (3,278) (4,048) (5,512) (10,219) (12,725)
Gross Profit 630 650 610 853 1,578 1,281
Operating Profit 373 416 199 313 792 513
EBITDA 487 556 685 1,079 1,031 947
Depreciation and Amortization (114) (126) (142) (133) (157) (186)
Financial Charges (90) (89) (88) (181) (231) (154)
Profit before Taxation 283 340 455 789 645 606
Taxation (17) (37) (44) (67) (161) (176)
Profit after Taxation 266 303 411 722 497 430
Statement of Financial Position
Non-Current Assets 1,420 1,827 1,863 2,516 3,089 3,390
Current Assets 1,310 1,816 2,405 3,299 3,148 3,623
Total Assets 2,730 3,643 4,268 5,815 6,237 7,013
Paid-up Capital 718 1,118 1,230 1,350 1,485 1,785
Equity 1,887 2,744 3,155 4,540 4,944 6,184
Short-Term Borrowings 659 698 779 945 805 505
Non-Current Liabilities - 30 85 71 163 54
Current Liabilities 843 870 1,027 1,205 1,131 775
Stock-in-trade 239 188 117 245 184 398
Trade debts 702 911 1,598 2,265 2,275 2,315
Trade and other payables 145 142 196 144 149 132
Cash Flow Statement
Operating Activities 377 27 (18) 47 970 169
Investing Activities (290) (533) (152) (114) (67) (505)
Financing Activities (39) 572 67 (156) (27) 737
Net increase in Cash 49 67 (103) (223) 269 400
Net Cash Balance 7 125 142 219 348 447
Capital Expenditure (289) (533) (174) (120) (348) (494)
Sales Growth (%) 31 16 19 37 85 19
EBITDA Growth (%) 6 14 23 58 (5) (8)
Net Profit Growth (%) 22 14 36 138 (31) (14)
Margins
Gross Margin (%) 19 17 13 13 13 9
EBITDA Margin (%) 14 14 15 17 9 7
Net Margin (%) 8 8 9 11 4 3
Break-up Value per Share (Rs.) 26.28 24.50 25.65 33.63 21.03 34.64
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Profitability and Earnings Ratios

Profit after Tax 266 303 411 722 497 430
Earnings per Share (PKR) - as per audited account 2.16 2.46 3.34 5.35 3.35 2.76
Return on Equity (%) 14 11 13 16 10 7
Return on Asset (%) 10 8 10 12 8 6
Balance Sheet Ratios

Fixed Asset Turnover (x) 2.38 2.15 2.50 2.53 3.82 4.13
Asset Turnover (x) 1.24 1.08 1.09 1.09 1.89 2.00
Capex to Total Assets (%) 11 15 4 2 5.58 7.04
Current Ratio (x) 1.55 2.09 2.34 2.74 2.78 4.67
Inventory Turnover (days) 29 24 14 12 7.66 8.35
Receivables Turnover (days) 82 75 98 111 70.23 59.81
Payables Turnover (days) 14 16 15 11 5.24 4.03
Leverage Ratios

EBITDA/Interest (x) 5.41 6.25 7.78 5.96 4.46 6.15
(EBITDA - Capex) 198 23 511 959 684 453
(EBITDA - Capex)/Interest (x) 2.20 0.26 5.81 5.30 2.95 2.94
Number of Shares Outstanding 72 112 123 135 148 179
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF

THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED

JUNE 30, 2025
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The Board of Directors
The Organic Meat Company Limited
Karachi.

September 26, 2024
AA-1597/25

AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
Dear Board Members,

We are pleased to enclose herewith two copies of the draft consolidated financial statements of
The Organic Meat Company Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company namely
Mohammad Saeed Mohammad Hussain Limited (together referred to as "the Group”) for the year
ended June 30, 2025 together with our draft audit report thereon duly initialed by us for
identification purposes only. We shall be pleased to sign our report in its present or amended form
after the consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors (“the
Board”) of the holding company and signed on their behalf by the Chief Executive Officer, Director
Finance and any one director and upon receipt of the following:

X A letter of representation addressed to us on behalf of the Board and signed by the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as per draft provided by us; and

X Signed audited financial statements of Mohammad Saeed Mohammad Hussain Limited for
the year ended June 30, 2025.

We would like to advise you that unless we have signed our report, the draft consolidated financial
statements shall remain and be deemed unaudited.

Below are the matters that we would like to bring to the attention of the Board:

1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUDITORS AND THE MANAGEMENT IN RELATION TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1 The responsibilities of the independent auditors in a usual examination of consolidated
financial statements are stipulated in section 249 of the Companies Act, 2017 and
International Standards on Auditing. While the auditors are responsible for forming and
expressing their opinion on the consolidated financial statements, the responsibility for
preparation of such statements is primarily that of the Group’s management.

Page - 2
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The management’s responsibilities include the maintenance of adequate accounting
records and internal controls, the selection and application of accounting policies,
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and prevention and detection of frauds and
irregularities. The audit of the consolidated financial statements does not relieve the
management of its responsibilities.

Significant issues noted during our audit of the Holding Company have been reported vide
our letter [AA-1598/25] addressed to the Board of Directors of the Holding Company.

FRAUDS AND ERRORS

We have been informed by the management of the Group that to the best of their
knowledge, there have been no instances of fraud or irregularities during the year that
could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. Kindly
confirm the representation made by the management.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

We have been informed by the management of the group that there were no transactions
with related parties other than those disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements. Kindly confirm the representation made by the management.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

We have been informed by the management that there were no contingencies and
commitments as or the reporting date that are required to be disclosed in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, other than those disclosed in notes to the
consolidated financial statements. Kindly confirm the representation made by the
management.

COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY LAWS AND REGULATIONS
We have been informed by the management of the Group that there have been no

instances of non-compliance with statutory laws and regulations that would have financial
reporting implications. Kindly confirm the representations made by the management.

Page - 2
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NUUHTHTHTTHT

6. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

We have been informed by the management of the Group that there were no subsequent
events having an impact on amounts and /or disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements except as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. Kindly confirm the
representation made by the management.

We take this opportunity to thank your management and staff for the courtesy and cooperation
extended to us during the course of our audit.

Yours faithfully,

s """

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
Enclosed as above




NUUHTHTHTTHT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY
LIMITED and its subsidiary MOHAMMAD SAEED MOHAMMAD HUSSAIN LIMITED (together referred to as
“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and
the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policy information. and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at June 30, 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the Key audit matters:

S.

No

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit
report

1.

Valuation of stock in trade

As disclosed in notes 8 to the annexed
consolidated financial statements, the
Company held stock-in-trade amounting to
Rs. 397.953 million as at June 30, 2025.

As described in notes 4.8 to the consolidated
financial statements, stock-in-trade s
measured at a lower of cost and net
realizable value.

Due to the significance of inventory balances
and related estimations involved in valuing
the inventory, we considered this as a key
audit matter.

Our audit procedures,
included the following:

amongst others,

K Assessed the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of the
relevant key controls over valuation of
stock in trade;

K Assessing the appropriateness of the
Group’s accounting policy for valuation
of stock in trade and compliance of the
policy with International Accounting
Standard (IAS-2) “Inventories”;

K Assessed net realizable value (NRV) by
comparing management’s estimation of
future selling prices for the products
with the selling prices achieved
subsequent to the reporting period;

K Assessed the adequacy of the
obsolescence  provision and  the
management judgement used;

K Assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of the
accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan.
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Valuation of biological assets

As disclosed in note 9 to the annexed
consolidated financial statements, the Group
held biological assets amounting to Rs.
96.561 million as at June 30, 2025.

As described in notes 4.6 to the consolidated
financial statements, biological assets are
measured at fair value less estimated point-
of-sale costs, with any resultant gain or loss
recognized in consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Point-of-sale costs include all
costs that would be necessary to sell the
assets, excluding costs necessary to get the
assets to market. The fair value of livestock
is based on the market price of livestock of
similar age, breed and genetic merit.

Due to the significance of biological assets
balances and related estimations involved in
valuing the biological assets, we considered
this as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation
of biological assets included the following:

X Obtained an understanding of the
Group’s process with respect to the
valuation of biological assets.

X  Attended the physical head count of and
observed the weights of animals.

X Assessed the appropriateness and
consistency of Group’s valuation method
for biological assets with applicable
accounting and reporting standard.

X Tested the fair value assumptions used
by the Group, including market prices of
similar stock and point of sale costs, by
comparing them to market data and
industry benchmarks.

X Observed yield of animals slaughtered
during the year and performed
analytical review procedures on yields
which is obtained from the same kind of
stock for the year.

X Evaluated the adequacy of the

disclosures presented in the
consolidated financial statements
regarding biological assets in

accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework.
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Revenue recognition

As disclosed in note 25 to the annexed
consolidated financial statements, the Group
reported revenue amounting to Rs.
14,006.064 million.

The Group is engaged in the slaughtering and
sale of halal meat & allied products in the
local and export market. Revenue is
recognized when performance obligation is
satisfied by transferring control of promised
goods to the customers.

We considered revenue recognition as a key
audit matter due to the high volume of
transactions involving large number of
customers spread in various geographical
locations and the significance of revenue as a
key performance indicator for users of the
consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures, others,

included the following:

amongst

X Assessed the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the relevant
key controls over recording of revenue;

X Assessed the appropriateness of the
Group’s accounting policy for recognition
of revenue and compliance of the policy
with International Accounting Standard
(IFRS-15) “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”;

X Performed tests of details on sample
basis of revenue transactions during the
year with underlying documentation
including delivery documents and sales
invoices;

X Performed cut-off procedures on sample
basis of revenue transactions with
underlying  documentation  including
delivery documents and sales invoices at
near the year end to check that revenue
has been recorded in the relevant period;

X Assessed the adequacy of the

disclosures made in consolidated
financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of the

accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan.
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Trade debts

As at June 30, 2025, the Group has trade
debts amounting to Rs. 2,314.605 million
which constitutes 33% of total assets of the
Company, as disclosed in notes 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

A discrepancy in the valuation or existence of
trade debts could cause the assets to be
materially misstated, which would impact the
Group’s reported consolidated statement of
financial position as the valuation of
aforesaid head is one of the main drivers of
movements in the total assets of the Group.

Management estimates the collectible
amount of trade debts through expected
credit loss (ECL) approach. An estimated
provision is made against trade debts on the
basis of lifetime expected credit loss model
as explained in note 4.4 whereas trade debts
considered irrecoverable are written off.

In view of the significance of trade debts in
relation to the total assets of the Group, we
have considered it as a key audit matter due
to the significant management judgment
involved in determining the provision for
expected credit losses and that the existence
and carrying amount of trade debts could be
material to the performance of the Group.

Our audit procedures to assess the trade
debts included the following:

K  Circularized confirmation to a sample of
trade debts with the outstanding
balance at the end of the reporting
period.

X Examined on sample basis evidence
related to post year-end receipts.

X Considered the appropriateness for
expected credit losses (ECL) against
trade debts as per the Group’s policy
and assessed compliance with applicable
accounting standards.

X Reviewed the methodology developed
and applied by the Group to estimate
the ECL in relation to trade debts and
evaluated the assumptions used in
applying the ECL methodology based on
historical information and qualitative
factors as relevant for such estimates.

X Evaluated the relevance, completeness,
and accuracy of the source data used for
computation of ECL.

X Checked the mathematical accuracy of
the ECL model by performing
recalculation on test basis.

X Reviewed the adequacy of the
disclosures and presentation of trade
debts as per the requirements of
applicable financial reporting
framework.
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NUUHTHTHTTHT

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

K Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

K Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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X Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

X  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

X Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

K Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Zulfikar Ali
Causer.

KARACHI
BDO EBRAHIM & CO.

DATED: CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS /..

UDIN: AR202510067fZS51DmOF

Page - 7

59




THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Advance against acquisition of shares
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares
Stock-in-trade
Biological assets
Trade debts
Loans and advances - unsecured
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Cash and bank balances
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Authorized share capital
200,000,000 (2024: 165,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
Reserves
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment - net of tax

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term borrowings
Long term lease liabilities
Deferred taxation
Staff retirement benefits
Deferred liability on acquisition of shares

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturity of long term borrowings
Current portion of lease liabilities
Short term borrowings
Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Taxation
Accrued mark-up
Unclaimed dividend
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

@.E; QCJW" |

U ke e
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Note

(o)}

1.1

10
11
12
13

14

15

16
17
18

19

16
17
20
21

32

22
23

24

2025
Rupees

3,387,656,449

2,281,199

2024
Rupees

2,910,153,056
6,651,363
2,331,203
170,000,000

3,389,937,648

3,089,135,622

2,262,984 5,138,234
397,953,496 178,941,508
96,561,116 71,967,600
2,314,605,674 2,275,006,671
164,536,143 78,714,119
198,653,717 190,917,666
448,048,183 347,723,137
3,622,621,313 3,148,408,935
7,012,558,961 6,237,544,557
2,000,000,000 1,650,000,000

1,784,912,132
3,587,292,885
811,805,523

1,484,912,132
2,610,482,400
848,827,642

6,184,010,540

4,944,222,174

- 44,204,210

- 1,990,696
40,449,068 78,740,359
13,454,492 8,840,087
- 37,714,296
53,903,560 171,489,648
- 24,557,949

- 2,014,011
504,898,603 805,000,000
132,248,355 140,446,753
42,146,190 46,612,869
76,922,127 42,675,747
18,078,859 60,148,620
350,727 376,786
774,644,861 1,121,832,735
7,012,558,961 6,237,544,557

>
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THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Sales - net 25 14,006,064,880 11,797,754,504
Cost of sales 26 (12,724,522 ,855) (10,218,713,730)
Gross profit 1,281,542,025 1,579,040,774
Administrative expenses 27 (269,855,145) (173,271,959)
Selling expenses 28 (339,824,547) (581,598,234)
Allowance for expected credit loss 10.1 (158,637,849) (35,179,868)
(768,317,541) (790,050,061)
Operating profit 513,224,484 788,990,713
Other income 30 246,815,419 87,017,017
Finance costs 29 (153,773,591) (231,486,545)
93,041,828 (144,469,528)
Profit before levy and taxation 606,266,312 644,521,185
Levy - Final Tax 31 - (161,069,370)
Profit before taxation 606,266,312 483,451,815
Taxation 32 (176,477,946) 13,921,489
Profit for the year 429,788,366 497,373,304
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 33 2.76 3.35
(Restated)
The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATED STATEMENT
THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees

Profit for the year 429,788,366 497,373,304
Other comprehensive income / (loss):
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and - -

equipment - net

Deferred tax liability 15 - (92,661,848)
Total comprehensive income for the year 429,788,366 404,711,456

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash generated from operating activities 35

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Sale proceed from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Payment for acquisition of shares - deferred liability
Profit received on bank accounts

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term loan repaid
Proceeds against right shares issued
Payment of lease rentals
Dividends paid
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 34

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2025
Rupees

169,151,851

2024
Rupees

969,739,495

(493,628,400)

(37,714,296)
26,033,350

(558,810,909)
965,000

(452,000)

(132,285,704)
16,408,936

(505,309,346)

(674,174,677)

(68,762,159)

(23,112,129)

810,000,000 -
(4,627,844) (3,228,759)
(26,059) (238,974)
736,583,938 (26,579,862)
400,426,443 268,984,956
(457,276,863) (726,261,819)
(56,850,420) (457,276,863)
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THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1

1.1

b)

CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORAMTION

The Group consists of:
- The Organic Meat Company Limited
- Mohammad Saeed Mohamad Hussain Limited

The Group is engaged in the business of slaughtering and sale of halal meat and allied products.
Holding Company

The Organic Meat Company Limited ("the Holding Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on
July 14, 2010 as a private limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984 (now
Companies Act, 2017), and subsequently it was converted into public limited company on
November 08, 2018. The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited since August 03, 2020. The registered address of the Company is situated at
Survey No. 310, Deh Shah Mureed, Gadap, Karachi, Pakistan. The correspondence address and
the offal processing facility is situated at Plot No. 257, Sector 24, Korangi Industrial Area,
Karachi.

Subsidiary Company

Mohammad Saeed Mohammad Hussain Limited ("the Subsidiary Company") is a 100% owned
subsidiary of the Holding Company as at June 30, 2025. The Subsidiary Company was
incorporated in Pakistan on June 27, 2006 as a private Company under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The registered address of the Subsidiary
Company is situated at Plot 1, Sector E-III, Karachi Export Processing Zone (KEPZ) Karachi.

During the year, the Holding Company acquired 100% shareholding MSMHL. Consequently, 7
(seven) ordinary shares of MSMHL have been transferred in the name of the Holding Company,
which results in a gain on the acquisation as the consideration paid is less than the fair value of
net assets. Following is the break-up of gain on bargain purchase.

Rupees
Total consideration paid to MSMHL for the acquisition of shares. 170,000,000
Fair value of net assets acquired by the Holding Company 193,700,743
Gain on bargain purchase 23,700,743
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2.1

2.2

2.3

24

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRs) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRSs, and IFAS's, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have
been followed.

Basis of Measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the followings:

- Certain items of property, plant and equipment that are stated at revalued amount; and
- Biological assets other than bearer plants which are carried at fair value of livestock.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees (PKR or Rupee) which is
the Holding Company’s functional and presentation currency. The Subsidiary Company is
functional currency is USD and converted at year end conversion rate into the Holding
Company functional currency.

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding
Company and the Subsidiary Company.

A company is a subsidiary, if the Holding Company directly or indirectly controls, beneficially
owns or holds more than fifty percent of its voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and
appoint more than fifty percent of its directors.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Holding Company obtains control and
continue to be consolidated until the date when such.
Page - 2
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2.5

Control is achieved when the company:

- has power over the investee
- 1s exposed or has rights, to variable returns from involvement with the investee ; and
- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The assets and liabilities of the subsidiary have been consolidated on a line by line basis and the
carrying value of the investment held by the Holding Company has been eliminated against
corresponding holding in subsidiary' shareholders' equity in the consolidated financial
statements.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gain / (losses) on transactions between
group are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiary have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Where the ownership of a subsidiary is less than hundred percent and therefore, a non-
controlling interest (NCI) exists, the NCI is allocated its share of the total comprehensive
income of the period, even if that results in a deficit balance. However, there is no NCI is
recorded, as the subsidiary is 100% owned by the Holding Company.

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Group accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revision to estimates are recognized prospectively.

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effects on the amount recognized in the consolidated financial statements and to the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities and assumptions and estimation uncertainties that
may have a significant risk resulting in a material adjustment in the subsequent year are set forth
below:

Notes

Useful lives, residual values, and depreciation assumption method of  4.1,4.3,5.1

property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets &7
Lease liabilities 4.2
Trade debts 10
Impairment of financial assets and non financial assets 4.4
Biological assets 4.6&9
Provision for stock in trade and store and spare 48,49 &8
Provisions and contingent liabilities and assets 4.15 & 4.16
Taxation 4.14, 18 & 31
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3.1

3.2

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDSMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
TO PUBLISHED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS AS APPLICABLE
IN PAKISTAN

New standards, amendments, IFRS interpretations and guidance that are effective for
the year ended June 30, 2025

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June
30, 2025. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Group's
operations or did not have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.

Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or

after)
Standard or Interpretation
Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Supplier
finance arrangements January 1, 2024
Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-
lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -Classification
of liabilities as current or non-current January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-current
liabilities with covenants January 1, 2024
Amendments to TAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance
arrangements January 1, 2024
Amendments to the Fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 made in
respect of shariah related disclosure. August 15, 2024

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective and
have not early adopted by the Group

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting
periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Group's operations or are not
expected to have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements other than certain
additional disclosures.
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Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or

after)
Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments
regarding the classification and measurement of financial instruments January 1, 2026
Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding the
classification and measurement of financial instruments January 1, 2026

Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange

i J 1,2025
Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability anuary

IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts January 1, 2027
Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of I[FRSs and IASs.

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by
IASB effective from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified the revised timeframe for the
adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 01, 2027.

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
The material accounting policies applied in the presentation of these consolidated financial

statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied throughout the
period presented, unless stated otherwise.
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4.1

b)

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except for
factory leasehold land, factory building on lease hold land and plant and machinery which are
carried at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Cost in relation to certain items in operating fixed assets and capital work-in-
progress, signifies historical cost and financial charges on borrowings, in case of qualifying
assets.

Depreciation is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss by applying the reducing
balance method, at the rates specified in note 5 to these consolidated financial statements.
Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which
an item is available for use, while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the item is
disposed off.

The assets’ residual values, and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Gains and losses on disposal of operating fixed assets are recognized in consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period of disposal.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress held for capital expenditures are stated at cost and consists of
expenditure incurred, advances made and other costs directly attributable to operating fixed
assets in the course of their construction and installation. Cost also includes applicable
borrowing costs. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as and when
assets are available for use intended.
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4.2

b)

Revaluation

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of leasehold land, building on leasehold
land, plant and machinery and equipment is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as “Revaluation surplus
on property, plant and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
for the same asset previously recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss, in which
case the increase is credited to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously charged.

Any decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of leasehold land, building on lease
hold land, plant and machinery and equipment is charged to consolidated statement of profit or
loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the the Group's shareholders.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract or
contains a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. If the Group assesses contract contains a lease ,the
Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.

Right of use assets

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost where lease liabilities are adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred,
less any lease incentive received, and subsequent at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss, if any.

The right of use asset is depreciated using reducing balance method over the lease term as
disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements.

Lease Liability

Lease liability is initial measured at the present value of the future lease payments over the lease
term, discounted at incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequently lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change
in the rate, if there is a change in the Group estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option.
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4.3

4.4

b)

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right of use asset, or is recorded in consolidated statement of profit or
loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group has opted not to recognize right of use assets for short-term leases i.e. leases with a
term of twelve (12) months or less. The payments associated with such leases are recognized in
consolidated statement of profit or loss when incurred.

Intangible assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Cost
represents the expense incurred to acquire the intangible assets and bring them to use.
Amortization is computed using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets at the rates disclosed in note 7 to these consolidated financial statements.

The assets’ residual values, the method of amortization and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Impairment
Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications exist, the assets’
recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.
An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in-
use. Value-in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with
its debt instruments carried at amortized cost and at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant

increase in credit risk.
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4.5

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

The Group measures ECL of a financial instrument in a way that reflects:

a) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes;

b) the time value of money; and

c) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for the exposure at default for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets' gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- Amortised cost
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The classification depends on the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Further, financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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(i)

(iii)

Measurement of financial assets

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where the contractual
terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortized cost. Financial assets at amortized
cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment losses or reversals, interest income, and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is transferred directly to
unappropriated profit.

Fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. A gain or loss on a investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised
in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Financial liabilities
Classification
The Group classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

- Amortised cost; and
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Recognition and derecognition

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value
less any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequently to initial recognition, these are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
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4.6

4.7

4.8

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Biological assets

These are stated at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs, with any resultant gain or loss
recognized in statement of profit or loss. Point-of-sale costs include all costs that would be
necessary to sell the assets, excluding costs necessary to get the assets to market. The fair value
of livestock is based on the market price of livestock of similar age, breed and genetic merit.
Directly attributable costs incurred during the period of biological growth to the stage of
slaughtering the biological assets are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Agricultural activity is defined as a biological transformation of biological assets for sale into
agricultural produce, or into additional biological assets. The Group classifies its livestock of
cattle as biological assets.

The Group recognizes a biological asset, when it controls the asset as a result of past events, and
it is probable that further economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group,
and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recorded at the transaction price and subsequently measured at
amortised cost. They are presented at their nominal value less an allowance for expected credit
losses. The allowance is determined using the expected credit loss (ECL) model, which
incorporates management’s forward-looking assessment of potential credit losses. This
approach recognises credit losses based on anticipated risk, rather than waiting for an
impairment trigger or specific indication of default.

Stock-in-trade

Stock in trade, except goods in transit, are valued at the lower of cost, determined using the
weighted average method, and net realisable value less impairment if any.

Stock-in-transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to be incurred in order to make
the sale.
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4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.13.1

Stores and spares

Stores and spares, except in transit, are valued at lower of cost determined using the weighted
average method and net realisable value less impairment if any. Items in transit are valued at
cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares is determined based on management's
estimate regarding their future usability.

Employees' retirement benefits

The Group operates an unfunded staff retirement gratuity scheme covering all employees with
two or more years of service with the Group. Provision is made annually to cover obligations
under the scheme. Gratuity is one month basic salary per year for number of years of service by
employees.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances, cash in hand and short-term running
finance.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received
whether or not billed to the Group.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds received (net of
transaction cost) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

4.13.2 Borrowings cost

Borrowing cost on long term finances and short term borrowings which are obtained for the
acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing
costs are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which these are
incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest cost as allowed
under IAS 23 "Borrowing cost".
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4.14

b)

4.15

4.16

Taxation
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Current tax

The current tax charge is based on the taxable income for the year calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the consolidated statement of financial position
date, and any adjustment or tax payable in respect of prior years. The tax is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly to equity. In this case the tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly to equity, respectively.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all taxable temporary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits
can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from the past events that is not recognized because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the consolidated notes to the
accounts. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it
will then be recognized as provision.
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4.17

4.18

b)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group. Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When an inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognized.

Ijarah contracts

Payments made under ijarah contract are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
on straight line basis over the ijarah term as per IFAS 2.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when or as performance obligations are satisfied by
transferring control of a promised goods to a customer at a point in time. The assessment of
satisfaction of performance obligations depends on the contractual terms when goods are
dispatched.

Rendering of services

Revenue from renderined of services include slaughtering fee. Revenue is recognized when the
service is completed.

Other income

(1) Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of biological assets are recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(i1) Profit on bank deposit in savings account is recognized on a time proportion basis on the
principal amount outstanding and at the applicable rate.

(ii1)) Other income is recognized when the right to receive is established, and the amount and
timing of related receipt is virtually certain.
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4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Pakistan Rupees using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated into Pakistan Rupee using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions
and on translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
reporting date are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting

A financial asset and financial liability is off-set and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off
the transaction and also there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the consolidated profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Group by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the consolidated profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Dividends and appropriations to reserves

Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is recognised as a liability and appropriation
to / from reserves are made in the period in which these are approved. However, if these are
approved after the reporting period but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, they are disclosed as subsequent event in the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Share capital is classified as equity and recognized at the face value. Incremental costs net of tax
and directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction in equity.

Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties are based on normal commercial rates at the same terms and
conditions as applicable to third party transactions.
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4.25

4.26

Segment reporting

For management purposes, the activities of the Group are organized into one reportable
operating segment. The Group operates in the said reportable operating segment based on the
nature of the products, risks and returns, organizational and management structure, and internal
financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the figures reported in the consolidated financial
statements are related to the Group’s only reportable segment.

Levy

The Group accounted for current tax calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate as
an income tax and any tax charged under the income tax laws which is not based on the taxable
income recorded as a levy in accordance with the Guidance on "Accounting for Minimum
Taxes and Final taxes issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan". The
minimum tax and final taxes which are not calculated on the ‘taxable profit’ but calculated on
turnover or other basis are recognized as a levy in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
under the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS37.

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating assets - at net book value 5.1 3,326,022,001 2,676,167,089
Capital work-in-progress - at cost 5.7 61,634,448 233,985,967

3,387,656,449 2,910,153,056
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5.2

5.2.1

5.3

54

5.5

Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and buildings) in the name of the Group are as
follows:

Particulars Nature Location Total area
Factory premises Commercial / Survey No. 310, 310/1 & 313 Deh Shah Mureed, 3474 Acre
(Note 5.2.1) Industrial Gadap, Karachi, Pakistan. ’

. . Survey No. 315 Deh Shah Mureed, Gadap,

Fatt A 1 .500 A
attening farm gricultura Karachi, Pakistan. 3.500 Acre
Additional fattening farm . Survey No. 315 Deh Shah Mureed, Gadap,
A 1 2.8 A
land gricultura Karachi, Pakistan. cre
Offal processing facility Commercial / Plot No. 257, Sector 24, Korangi Industrial Area, 1,066.66 Sq.Yd.

Industrial Karachi, Pakistan.
The area of the processing facility and fattening farm is included in the factory premises.
Revalued leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant, machinery & equipment

Had there assets been recognized under cost model, thus carrying values of these revalued
assets would have been as follows:

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Factory land - Leasehold 247,776,612 247,776,612
Factory building -Leasehold land 360,580,057 379,557,955
Plant and machinery 670,191,914 744,657,682

1,278,548,583 1,371,992,249

The forced sale value of the revalued leasehold land of Rs. 453.395 million , buildings on
leasehold land of Rs. 815.24 million and plant, machinery & equipment of Rs. 596.9 million at
the date of revaluation, respectively.

The fair value measurements of the Group’s its factory leasehold land, building on factory
leasehold land and plant and machinery on March 31, 2023, was carried out by Sipra and
Company (Private) Limited, an independent valuer.

Fair value hierarchy

Details of the Group's land, building and plant and machinery, and information about the fair
value hierarchy of latest revaluation is as follows:
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5.6

5.6.1

5.6.2

5.6.3

5.6.4

5.7

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 f:;;;’la;'ie ;;;;

----- (Rupees) ——-
Factory land - Leasehold - 566,744,900 - 566,744,900
Factory building -Leasehold land - 1,086,987,800 - 1,086,987,800
Plant and machinery - - 852,720,000 852,720,000
- 1,653,732,700 852,720,000 2,506,452,700

Fair value measurement

Fair value of property, plant and equipment are based on the valuations carried out by an
independent valuer on the basis of market value.

Fair value of land and building are based on assumptions considered to be level 2 in the fair
value hierarchy due to significant observable inputs used in the valuation, while fair value of
plant and machinery and equipment are considered to be level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due
to significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation.

Fair value of land and building has been derived using a sales comparison approach. Sale prices
of comparable land and buildings in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key
attributes such as location and size of the property. Moreover value of building also depends
upon the type of construction, age and quality. The most significant input in this valuation
approach is price / rate per square foot in particular locality.

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the fair value is determined by taking into
account the following factors:

- Make, model, country of origin etc.;
- Operational capacity;

- Present physical condition;

- Resale prospects; and

- Obsolescence.

The wvaluation is considered to be level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to the above
unobservable inputs used in the valuation. Most significant input in this valuation is the current
replacement cost which is adjusted for factors above.

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)
Balance at the beginning of the year 233,985,967 6,755,639
Additions during the year 180,235,986 278,614,943
Transfers during the year 5.8 (352,587,505) (51,384,615)
Balance at the end of the year 61,634,448 233,985,967
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5.8

6.1

6.2

71

Note

Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Administrative expense

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Net book value at beginning of the year

Additions during the year
Deletions during the year
Depreciation expense for the year
Net book value at end of the year

6.2

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
178,145,586 150,877,977
7,902,998 4,512,040
186,048,584 155,390,017
6,651,363 8,630,607
(5,653,659) -
(997,704) (1,979,244)
- 6,651,363

The Group has lease contracts related to motor vehicles with useful lives ranges from (3 to 5
years). The Group’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased

assets.

Depreciation expense related to right-of-use assets has been charged to ‘administrative expense’
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Owned - software

Work-in-progress - software

Owned - software

Intangible assets

Net carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2025
Opening net book value

Addition (at cost)
Disposal (at NBV)
Depreciation charged

Closing net book value

7.1
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- 50,004
2,281,199 2,281,199
2,281,199 2,331,203
Computer Software Total
50,004 50,004
(50,004) (50,004)
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7.2

Gross carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2025
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Closing net book value
Net carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2024
Opening net book value
Addition (at cost)
Disposal (at NBV)
Depreciation charged
Closing net book value
Gross carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2024
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Closing net book value

Amortization rate (in %)

Computer Software Total

500,000 500,000
(500,000) (500,000)
150,000 150,000
(99,996) -
50,004 50,004
500,000 500,000
(449,996) (449,996)
50,004 50,004
20 20

Amortization costs of intangible assets have been allocated fully to administrative expenses.

STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw material
Finished goods
Packing material

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Livestock - cattle

Carrying amount at the beginning of year
Additions during the year

Decrease due to consumption/sales
Gains arising from changes in fair value
Carrying amount at the end of the year

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
2,423,940 6,901,060
375,225,614 157,047,063
20,303,942 14,993,385
397,953,496 178,941,508
71,967,600 62,489,961
524,017,969 460,818,637
(620,165,594) (556,490,039)
120,741,141 105,149,041
96,561,116 71,967,600
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9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

Fair value hierarchy

Details of the biological assets, and information about the fair value hierarchy of latest
revaluation, which has been based on observable market sales data, using market comparison
technique under which the price is based on the market price of livestock of similar age, weight

and market values, is as follows:

Livestock - Cattle

As at June 30, 2025
As at June 30, 2024

TRADE DEBTS

Unsecured, considered good
- Trade debts - export
- Trade debts - local

Considered doubtful

Trade receivables - gross

Less: Provision against doubtful debt
Trade receivables - net

Movement in provision against doubtful debts

Balance at the beginning of the year
Write off during the year
Allowance for expected credit loss
Balance at the end of the year

Level 1 | | Level 2 | | Level 3 | | Fair Value |
----- (Rupees) ——--
- 96,561,116 - 96,561,116
- 71,967,600 - 71,967,600
2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees

1,731,653,535 2,046,432,181
582,952,139 228,574,490
2,314,605,674 2,275,006,671
182,900,056 239,254,351
2,497,505,730 2,514,261,022

10.1 (182,900,056) (239,254,351)
2,314,605,674 2,275,006,671
239,254,351 204,074,483

(214,992,144) -

158,637,849 35,179,868
182,900,056 239,254,351

The aging of export and local receivable balances as at the date of consolidated statement of

financial position is as follows:

Aging profile

Not past due

Past due 1-30 days

Past due 31-60 days
Past due 61-120 days
Past due 121-180 days
Past due 181-360 days
Past due 360 days above

2025 2024
Export Local Export Local
—-—- Rupees ——- -—— Rupees —-—-

1,019,466,719 - 1,626,361,846 59,450,020
240,333,940 281,110,923 202,736,657 12,792,178
242,253,391 224,079,105 234,062,796 2,760,000
203,776,325 77,109,465 54,119,405 28,307,498
157,897,946 - - 113,235,000
50,652,184 825,732 - 11,833,175
- - 168,585,828 16,619
1,914,380,505 583,125,225 2,285,866,532 228,394,490
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10.3

11

These receivables are being adjusted from the realization of the proceeds on first in first out
basis as payments from customers are received periodically. The sales are made to the
customers with pre-set credit terms and these trade debts are unsecured.

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured

Loans to employees - considered good 11.1 11,151,158 10,902,572
Advances, considered good
- to suppliers 11.2 149,254,069 41,352,569
- against fixed assets 4,076,081 25,850,982
- against expenses 54,835 607,996

153,384,985 67,811,547

164,536,143 78,714,119

11.1 This balance represents the non-interest bearing unsecured loan given to the employee.

11.2  Advances to suppliers

Considered good 11.2.1 149,254,069 41,352,569
Considered doubtful - 27,152,270
149,254,069 68,504,839
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss - (27,152,270)
Balance at the end of year 149,254,069 41,352,569

11.2.1 This represents the amount paid to suppliers against purchase of meat, offal and animals etc.

11.2.2 During the year write off for amounting Rs. 27.152 million.

12.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES
Rebate receivable - net 12.1 147,978,605 148,829,501
Sales tax refundable 12.2 31,344,939 27,729,436
Prepayments 5,983,205 1,578,541
Other receivables 12.3 9,278,905 9,181,430
Security deposit 4,068,063 3,598,758
198,653,717 190,917,666
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12.1

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
Rebate receivable - net of provision

Balance at the beginning of year 148,829,501 121,877,554
Re-measurement gain / (loss) on financial asset

at amortized cost - 26,951,947
Recovery of rebate receivable (850,896) -
Balance at the end of year 12.1.1 147,978,605 148,829,501

12.1.1 This represents an amount receivable against drawback of local taxes and levies collected from

12.2

12.3

13.

exporters of eligible products, vide S.R.O. No. 711(I)/2018 issued by the Ministry of
Commerce & Textile, Commerce Division. The new scheme for financial year 2022 and
onwards has not been announced by the Ministry of Commerce, and therefore has not been

accounted for in these consolidated financial statements.

Sales tax refundable

Balance at the beginning of year 27,729,436 22,916,906
Input tax paid during the year 20,976,056 14,133,159
Refund from tax authorities (17,360,552) (9,320,629)
Balance at the end of year 31,344,940 27,729,436

This includes an amount of Rs.7.35 million, held as lien by banks on overdue export proceeds.
The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) had, vide its FE Circular No.02 of 2023 dated March 31,
2023, directed the banks dealing with export proceeds to hold under lien partial remittance after
conversion of proceeds in Pak Rupees based on the timing delays from maximum allowable
time limits, that is 21 days in case of clean (unsecured) export sales and time based delays
(number of days overdue) in case of secured export sales against letter of credits (due
acceptance period expiry). The rates of lien withheld ranged from 3% to 9% of the net proceeds
realised. The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has established a process for refunds of these lien
marked funds and following that process, the Group has applied for and received refunds out of
the amount marked under lien, subsequent to the date of consolidated statement of
financial position.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 643,352 195,762
Balances with banks
- current accounts 13.1 91,174,093 70,099,200
- saving accounts 13.2 356,230,738 277,428,175
447,404,831 347,527,375
448,048,183 347,723,137
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13.1

13.2

14.

14.1

14.2

15.

This balance includes the balance in the dividend accounts.

The rates of markup on savings accounts during the year ranged from 11.50% to 18.50% per

anum (2024: 20.50% to 22.50% per anum).

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2025 2024
Number of shares

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

91,817,777
86,673,436

61,817,777
86,673,436

- Fully paid in cash
- Issued as bonus shares

178,491,213 148,491,213

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding

2025 2024
Number of shares

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

148,491,213 134,992,012 At the beginning of the year
30,000,000 - Issued as right issue
13,499,201 - Issued as bonus shares
178,491,213 148,491,213

These fully paid ordinary shares of the Holding Company carry one vote per share and an equal

right of entitlement to dividends.

Note

REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET OF TAX

Balance as at July 01

Surplus on revaluation during the year

Transfer to unappropriated profit in respect

of incremental depreciation charged during the year
Balance as at June 30

Related deferred tax liability
Balance as at July 01
Charge on surplus for the year
Incremental depreciation charged during the year

Balance as at June 30
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2025
Rupees

918,177,770
866,734,362

2024
Rupees

618,177,770
866,734,362

1.784.912,132

1,484.912.132

2025
Rupees

1,484,912,132

300,000,000

2024
Rupees

1,349,920,120

134,992,012

1,784,912,132

1,484,912,132

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
941,489,490 1,011,150,446
(58,765,268) (69,660,956)
882,724,222 941,489,490
(92,661,848) -

- (66,887,294)

21,743,149 (25,774,554)
(70,918,699) (92,661,848)

811,805,523

848,827,642
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16.

16.1

16.2

17.

17.1

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees
LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Samba Bank Limited 16.1 - 21,084,858
Al-Baraka Bank Limited 16.2 - 47,677,301
- 68,762,159
Less: Current maturity long term borrowings - (24,557,949)
Non-current portion of long-term borrowing - 44,204,210

The Holding Company had obtained State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) Temporary Economic
Refinance Facility for the purpose of capital expenditure, which carries mark-up at SBP's
prescribed rate of 1% plus bank's spread of 4% for a tenor of five years. The facility was
secured by way of first equitable mortgage over land and building amounting Rs.153 million
and specific charge over plant and machinery amounting Rs.114 million respectively, located at
Korangi offal processing facility. During the year, the Holding Company has fully settled this
facility through utilization of proceeds received from right issue of its shares.

The Holding Company had obtained long term loan financing under Diminishing Musharka, for
the purposes of capital expenditure which is secured by way of first exclusive charge over
specific fixed assets which comprise of land and fattening farm sheds, located at Gadap factory,
amounting Rs. 145.83 million, and personal guarantees of directors. It carried mark-up at the
rate of one-year KIBOR plus 2.5%. The loan had a tenor of five years including a grace period
of one year, with 48 equal quarterly principal installments. During the year, the Holding
Company has fully settled this diminishing musharaka facility through utilization of funds
received from right issue of its shares.

LEASE LIABILITIES
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,004,707 5,992,876
Additions / net transfers during the year - 194,720
Interest expense 623,137 1,240,590
Repaid / adjusted during the year (4,627,844) (3,423,479)
Balance at the end of the year - 4,004,707
Current portion of lease liabilities - (2,014,011)
Non-current portion of lease liabilities - 1,990,696

The amount of future payments of the lease and the period in which these payments will become due
are as follows:

Less than 1 year - 2,014,011
Between 1 and 5 years - 1,990,696
- 4,004,707
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18.

18.1

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation comprises of:

Taxable temporary differences:
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant
& equipment
Accelerated tax depreciation allowance
Right-of-use assets
Gains arising from changes in fair value on
biological assets
Unrealised exchange gains on trade debtors
Remeasurement gain on rebate receivable
Gross deferred tax liabilities
Deductible temporary differences:
Provision against doubtful debt
Provision against doubtful advances
Provision for gratuity
Accrued markup
Lease liabilities

Balance at the beginning of year

Deferred tax income to profit or loss
Deferred tax expense to other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of year

Note
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2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
70,918,699 92,661,848
22,710,500 29,645,344
- 2,461,004
3,004,292 41,963,419
5,668,922 2,656,730
- 9,620,000
102,302,412 179,008,345
50,186,004 88,739,906
- 10,046,339
4,978,162 -
6,689,178 -

- 1,481,741
61,853,344 100,267,986
40,449,068 78,740,359
78,740,359 -

(16,548,142) (13,921,489)
(21,743,149) 92,661,848
40,449,068 78,740,359

Up to and including Tax Year (TY) 2024 (year ended 30 June 2024), the Holding Company’s
export income was subject to Final Tax Regime (FTR) and no deferred tax was recognized on
income subject to FTR. Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2024 (enacted on 29 June 2024), tax
collected on export proceeds is now treated as minimum tax and export income falls under the
Normal Tax Regime (NTR) with effect from 1 July 2024. Accordingly, exporters are required
to compute normal taxable income and pay incremental tax where normal tax exceeds
minimum tax.

Consistent with TIAS 12.47, deferred tax is measured using tax laws/rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Because the Finance Act, 2024 was enacted before
30 June 2024, deferred tax has been recognized at 30 June 2024 (TY 2024) for temporary
differences expected to reverse under NTR.
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19.

20.

20.1

Further, in line with ICAP’s “IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes
and Final Taxes” (Circular 07/2024), levies that are not computed on “taxable profit” (e.g.,
FTR/minimum taxes) are accounted for under IAS 37/IFRIC 21; this does not affect deferred
tax recognition, which follows IAS 12. TR-27 was withdrawn in favour of this guidance.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets (DTAs) are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax is measured using the rates expected to
apply when the related assets are realized or liabilities settled, based on tax laws/rates enacted
or substantively enacted by the reporting date (currently the corporate tax rate applicable to the
Holding Company; surcharges/“super tax” are considered to the extent they are part of enacted
profit-based income taxes expected to apply on reversal).

Under the minimum tax regime, DTAs continue to be recognized and measured based on
normal income-tax rates; however, recoverability is assessed considering whether the Holding
Company expects to remain in minimum-tax positions (i.e., only the portion expected to be
realized against tax on future taxable profits in excess of minimum tax is recognized).

DEFERRED LIABILITY ON ACQUISITION OF SHARES

As per the share purchase agreement between the Holding Company and share holders of
Mohammad Saced Mohammad Hussain Limited (MSMHL), the amounts represent deferred
consideration for acquisition of shares of MSMHL. The full amount is paid to MSMHL during
the year.

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Financial Institutions 504,898,603 805,000,000
Financial Institutions
HBL Bank Limited 124,898,603 125,000,000
Samba Bank Limited - 100,000,000
Faysal Bank Limited - 100,000,000
Al-Baraka Bank Limited 180,000,000 180,000,000
Soneri Bank Limited - 100,000,000
National Bank of Pakistan 200,000,000 200,000,000
504,898,603 805,000,000
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20.2

21.

21.1

22,

Details of borrowings from financial institutions are as follows:

| Name of Institution | Facility Name | 2025 | 2024 | Rate | Purpose |Secun'ty |
(Rs. In million) %

HBL Bank Limited 1) Running finance 68.9 70.0 6MK +2%  Working Capital Joint Pari Passu hypothecation charge of Rs.156

i) Export refinance 55 55 3MK+2%  Working Capital million registered with SECP over existing and

facility future stocks and receivables with 25% margin, lien

on export documents and proceeds with 10%
margin, Joint Pari Passu Hypothecation charge over
Plant and Machinery to the extent of Rs. 143
million. Joint Pari Passu charge over land and
Building to the extent of Rs. 57 million and personal
guarantees of all directors having 10% or more

sharcholding.
Al-Baraka Bank Limited i) Istisna 100 100 6MK +2%  Working capital Joint Pari Passu charge by way of equitable
ii) Murabahah 80 80 6MK +2%  Working Capital mortgage over land and buildings up to the extent of

(Purchase of ~ Rs. 57 million, joint pari passu charge by way of
fattening animals)  hypothecation charge over plant and machinery up
to the extent of Rs. 143 million and on current
assets to the extent of Rs. 225 million and by way
of personal guarantees of two directors of the
National Bank of Pakistan Running finance 200 200 6MK + 1.5%  Working capital First Joint Pari Passu charge over the Holding
Company's fixed assets , which includes land and
buildings up to the extent of Rs.100 million, plant
and machinery up to the extent of Rs.300 million,
and on current assets to the extent of Rs.400 million
and by way of personal guarantees of directors of
the Holding Company having 10% or more

shareholding.
2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors 9,083,862 18,825,585
Workers' profit participation fund payable 21.1 80,454,534 80,454,534
Workers' welfare fund payable 21.1 12,445,544 12,445,544
Payable to contractors 11,318,572 6,857,133
Salaries, benefits and allowances payable 16,015,579 19,969,717
Audit fee payable 2,930,264 1,894,240
132,248,355 140,446,753

The Holding Company has provided for the Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) and
Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) liability till December 31, 2022. The Group, effective January
1, 2023, has ceased to provide for the provisioning of these statutory obligations based on the
premise that as an agricultural producer the provisions of the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund Act,
2021 and the Sindh Companies Profits (Workers' Participation) Act, 2015 do not apply to it.

ACCRUED MARK-UP
On long-term borrowing - secured - 1,029,971
On short-term borrowing - secured 18,078,859 59,118,649

18,078,859 60,148,620
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23.

24.

24.1

24.1.1

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

This represents part of final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2020, which remained unpaid
to the shareholders, who have not provided valid documentation to claim dividend.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The Holding Company has received notice from Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) for
recovery of workers welfare fund contribution amounting to Rs. 2.115 million and Rs. 3.433
million pertaining to financial years 2023 and 2022 respectively. The Holding Company has
filed and secured stay against demand recovery proceedings by paying 10% of the departmental
demand and has filed a case with the Sindh revenue board Sindh workers welfare fund appellate
commissioner pleading that the SWWF act 2016 does not apply to the Holding Company on the
premise that the Holding Company is an agricultural undertaking and does not qualify the
definition of industrial undertaking. The management is confident that based on the nature of the
Holding Company's business and agriculture based operations, no further liability for SWWF
and Sindh Workers' Profit Participation Fund (SWPPF) shall crystalize.

24.1.2 The Company had filed Suit No. 1063/2024, M/s The Organic Meat Company Limited vs.

Federation of Pakistan, before the competent court. The matter relates to a demand raised by
Employees' Old-Age Benefits Institution (EOBI) for recovery of contributions in respect of
approximately 250 employees. The Company, under protest, issued cheques towards the said
demand; however, it maintains that as an agricultural produce entity, EOBI contributions are not
applicable to it. Accordingly, the Company instituted legal proceedings challenging the
recovery. A stay order has been granted, restraining the encashment of the cheques. The next
hearing in the matter is scheduled for October 9, 2025. Management, in consultation with its
legal advisors, believes that it has a reasonable position in the case and is actively monitoring
the proceedings.

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
24.2 Commitments
24.2.1 Commitments against capital expenditure
Commitments in respect of letter of
credits and purchase order for capital - 60,389,498
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24.2.2 The Holding Company has entered into shariah compliant [jarah arrangements for vehicles with
bank. Aggregate commitments for these [jarah arrangements as at reporting date are Rs. 17.570
million (2024: nil).

25.

25.1

25.2

26.

2025
Note Rupees
SALES - NET
Export sales 8,132,507,417
Local sales 25.1 5,873,557,463

2024
Rupees

11,288,060,215
509,694,289

14,006,064,880

11,797,754,504

This includes sales of biological assets, amounting to Rs. 51.29 million (2024: Rs. 20.32

million).

Geographical wise export sales as follows:

7,212,018,578
538,502,582
1,908,096,755
775,514,345
359,765,794
11,477,788
48,722,701
284,108,547
63,269,814
4,066,116
82,517,194

11,288,060,215

Location
United Arab Emirates 4,567,748,372
China 1,360,373,102
Kingdom of Suadi Arabia 1,005,575,477
Vietnam 773,595,975
Oman 181,155,435
Qattar 122,960,477
Maldives 90,731,471
Uzebekistan 23,193,466
Hong Kong 5,014,800
Canada 1,657,933
Others 500,910
8,132,507,417
COST OF SALES

Finished goods at the beginning of the year
Cost of goods available for sale
Finished goods at the end of the year

157,047,063
12,942,701,406
(375,225,614)

26.1

240,223,889
10,135,536,904
(157,047,063)

12,724,522,855

10,218,713,730
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26.1

26.2 Animal feed and other consumables

26.3 Packing materials consumed

27.

Cost of goods available for sale

Note

Raw material and livestock purchased and

consumed

Depreciation on property, plant and

equipment

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Animal feed and other consumables

Fuel and power
Cutting and deboning

Packing materials consumed

Repairs and maintenance
Transportation

Insurance

Printing and stationary
Janitorial expense
Communication expense

Opening stock
Purchases of animal feed
Closing stock

Opening stock

Purchases of packing material

Closing stock

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

5.8

26.2

26.3

Salaries, benefits and other allowances

Fee and subscription
Food and entertainment
Legal and professional

Depreciation on property, plant & equipmer 5.8

Amortization
Repair and maintenance
Ijarah rentals

7.1
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2025
Rupees

11,691,001,055

2024
Rupees

9,041,166,190

178,145,586
195,306,431
140,349,657
270,796,572
85,289,069
218,646,828
125,838,830
10,671,649
5,511,260
1,923,609
17,818,202
1,402,658

150,877,977
145,143,662
81,362,964
231,427,991
135,776,075
236,466,529
81,614,561
9,699,433
4,125,074
2,571,245
13,999,303
1,305,900

1,251,700,351

1,094,370,714

12,942,701,406

10,135,536,904

5,138,234 2,413,289
137,474,407 84,087,909
(2,262,984) (5,138,234)
140,349,657 81,362,964
14,993,385 2,156,455
223,957,385 249,303,459
(20,303,942) (14,993,385)
218,646,828 236,466,529
101,605,414 88,429,726
58,810,768 22,530,670
39,212,804 24,053,156
4,598,765 1,996,178
7,902,998 4,512,040
50,004 99,996
763,000 969,910
15,944,173 ;
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Travelling

Insurances

Security services

Depreciation on right of use assets
Printing and stationery

Auditors' remuneration

Vehicle running and maintenances
Donation and charity

Others

27.1 Auditor's remuneration

27.2 This includes donations paid to Apna Dastarkhuwan and Madarsa Darul Uloom Islamia
amounting to Rs. 0.4 million (2024: Rs. 1.2 million) and Rs. 1.4 million (2024: Rs. 1.17
million) respectively.

Statutory audit fee - standalone
Statutory audit fee - consolidation
Half yearly review

Certifications

Code of corporate governance
Out of pocket expenses

Note

27.1

27.2

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
543,800 2,213,398
5,271,690 2,986,538
5,983,775 3,778,303
997,705 1,979,244
4,231,526 1,691,642
4,154,677 2,753,064
16,355,994 12,642,824
2,659,825 2,635,270
768,227 -
269,855,145 173,271,959
1,896,000 1,580,000
700,000 -
720,000 600,000
237,000 130,000
153,600 128,000
448,077 315,064
4,154,677 2,753,064

27.2.1 None of the directors or their spouse have any interest in the donees.

28.

29.

SELLING EXPENSES

Clearing and forwarding charges
Quarantine charges

Export duties

Business development

FINANCE COSTS

Markup on long term finance
Markup on short term finance
Interest on lease liability
Bank charges
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277,569,674 494,318,062
34,052,195 46,836,798
28,202,678 39,902,754
- 540,620
339,824,547 581,598,234
8,585,134 14,334,700
130,976,102 199,776,889
623,137 1,240,590
13,589,218 16,134,366

153,773,591 231,486,545
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Note

30. OTHER INCOME / (LOSS)

Income from financial assets
Re-measurement gain on financial assets
carried at amortized cost
Exchange gain /(loss) 30.1
Profit on pls account

Income from non-financial assets
Gain on biological assets-net
Other income 30.2
(Loss) / gain on disposal of fixed assets

30.1 Exchange Gain / (Loss)

Realized gain / (loss)
Unrealized gain

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
- 26,951,947
41,063,226 (67,347,018)
26,033,350 18,235,787
67,096,576 (22,159,284)
152,440,303 105,149,041
27,355,706 1,244,714
(77,166) 2,782,546
179,718,843 109,176,301
246,815,419 87,017,017
22,146,666 (74,527,368)
18,916,560 7,180,350
41,063,226 (67,347,018)

30.2 This inculdes gain on bargain purchase of acquisition of shares of MSMHL amounting to Rs.

23.70 million. See note 1.1(b) for details.

31. LEVIES - FINAL TAX

Income tax levy under IFRIC 21/IAS 37 31.1

161,069,370

31.1. This represents final taxes paid under Section 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO,
2001), representing levy in terms of requirement of IFRIC21/IAS 37.

32. TAXATION

Current
Deferred

Page - 34

(136,028,878) 92,661,848
(40,449,068) (78,740,359)
(176,477,946) 13,921,489
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33.

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees
32.1 Relationship between tax expense and
accounting profit
Accounting profit for the year 606,266,312 644,521,185
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2024: 29%) 175,817,231 186,911,144
Super tax @ 8% (2024: 8%) 48,501,305 51,561,695
Tax effect of permanent differences - -
Others (400,822,107) (224,551,349)
(176,503,571) 13,921,489
2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
(Restated)
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit for the year attributable to the
ordinary shareholders of Holding Company Rupees 429,788,366 497,373,304
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year Number 155,991,213 148,491,213
Basic and diluted earnings per share Rupees 2.76 3.35

33.1

33.2

34.

During the year, 20.203% right shares were issued (i.e. 30,000,000 shares) by the Holding
Company. Accordingly, the weighted average number of ordinary shares for the corresponding
year (i.e. Year 2024) have been re-stated.

There is no dilutive effect on the earnings per share of the Holding Company, as it does not have
any convertible instruments as at June 30, 2025 and 2024.

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Short term borrowings -
financial institutions 20 (504,898,603) (805,000,000)
Cash and bank balances 13 448,048,183 347,723,137

(56,850,420) (457,276,863)
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3s.

36.

36.1

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before levies and taxation

Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment 5.8
Depreciation on right of use assets 6
Deletion of right of use assets
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 30
Amortization expense 7.1
Provision against trade debtors 10.1
Finance costs 29
Unrealised exchange gain on trade
debtors 30.1
Un-realized gain on biological assets 30
Profit on savings account 30

Working capital changes
Stock-in-trade
Store and spares
Biological assets
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Deposits and prepayments and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Cash generated from operating activities
Tax and levies paid
Finance costs paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

2025
Rupees

606,266,312

186,048,584
997,705
5,653,659
77,166
50,004
158,637,849
623,137

(18,916,560)
(120,741,141)
(26,033,350)

2024
Rupees

644,521,185

155,390,017
1,979,244
(1,244,714)
99,996
35,179,868
231,486,545

(7,180,350)
(21,379,694)
(18,235,787)

792,663,365 1,020,616,310
(219,011,988) 57,988,846
2,875,250 2,725,045
96,147,625 11,902,055
(123,036,738) (37,229,406)
(85,822,024) 274,501,108
(7,736,051) (34,424,366)
(8,198,398) 5,192,855
1,344,304 3,024,916
449,225,345 1,304,297,363
(84,229,399) (119,538,361)
(195,844,095) (215,019,507)
169,151,851 969,739,495

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Risk management policies

The Group’s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of shareholders’ value.
Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The
process of risk management is critical to the Group’s continuing profitability. The Group is
exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (which includes interest rate risk and price

risk) arising from the financial instruments it holds.
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The Board of Directors / Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance
with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Audit Committee is
assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the
Audit Committee.

The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working
capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to
minimize risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if
counter parties fail to perform as contracted and arises principally from trade and other
receivables. The Group’s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter parties
in accordance with the internal guidelines and regulatory requirements.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposures. The
accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties failed to perform
as contracted. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of financial
assets amounting to Rs. 2,962 million (2024: Rs. 2,819 million).

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Trade debts 2,314,605,674 2,275,006,671
Loans to employees 11,151,158 10,902,572
Duty drawback 147,978,605 148,829,501
Sales tax refundable 31,344,939 27,729,436
Other receivables 9,278,905 9,181,430
Cash and bank balances 448,048,183 347,723,137

2,962,407,464 2,819,372,747

The Group monitors its exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis at various level. The Group
believes that it is not exposed to any major credit risk as it operates in an essential commodity
industry, and its customer are organizations and individuals with good credit history.

The credit quality of the bank balances can be assessed with reference to the recent external

credit ratings assigned to these banks where such balances are maintained. The long-term credit
ratings of such banks are categorized below:
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Bank Rating Agency Long term Short term

Allied Bank Limited PACRA AAA Al+
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited VIS AA- Al
JS Bank Limited PACRA AA Al+
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA AA+ -
Meezan Bank Limited VIS AAA Al+
Askari Bank Limited PACRA AA Al+
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA AAA Al+
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited VIS AA Al+
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA AA A-1
Habib Bank Limited VIS AAA A-1
MCB Bank Limited PACRA AAA Al+
National Bank of Pakistan PACRA AAA Al+
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA AA- Al+
United Bank Limited VIS AAA A-1
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited PACRA AA- Al
MCB Islamic Bank Limited PACRA A+ Al
Telenor Microfinance Bank PACRA A+ Al
Bank of Punjab PACRA AA+ Al+
Bank of Khyber VIS A+ Al
Bank of China Fitch A F1+
Samba Bank Limited PACRA AA Al

As at reporting period the Group helds amount of Rs. 93.169 million in the shariah compliant
institution.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet
contractual obligation to be similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or other
conditions. The Group believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stress conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including
interest payments, if any:
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The Group's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as summarised below:

Less than 6 6to12 1to5
On demand
months months years Total
2025 (Rupees)
Interest bearing financial liabilities
Lease liabilities - - - - -
Short-term financing - - 504,898,603 - 504,898,603
Accrued mark-up - - 18,078,859 - 18,078,859
Non-interest bearing financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - 132,248,355 - 132,248,355
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 42,146,190 - - 42,146,190
Unclaimed dividend 350,727 - - - 350,727
350,727 42,146,190 655,225,817 - 697,722,734
On demand Less than 6 6to12 1toS
months months years Total
2024 (Rupees)
Interest bearing financial liabilities
Long-term financing - - 24,557,949 44,204,210 68,762,159
Lease Liabilities - - 2,014,011 1,990,696 4,004,707
Short-term financing - - 805,000,000 - 805,000,000
Accrued mark-up - - 60,148,620 - 60,148,620
Non-interest bearing financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - 56,386,762 92,900,078 - 149,286,840
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 46,612,869 - - 46,612,869
Deferred liability on acquisition of shares - - 37,714,296 - 37,714,296
Unclaimed dividend 376,786 - - - 376,786
376,786 102,999,631 1,022,334,954 46,194,906 1,171,906,277

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The Group is not exposed to price risk.

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or a financial liability will
fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and
payables exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. The Group's exposure to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date is as follows:

USD
Bank balance
Trade debts

30 June 30 June
2025 2024
FCY
9,780 8,107
6,596,105 7,659,110

The exchange rate taken for consolidated statement of financial position is the rate applicable
for LC's as at June 30,2025. The following significant exchange rate was applied during the

year:
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Average rate Year-end spot rate

2025 2024 2025 2024
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
USD 281.77 278.44 284.10 278.80

A ten percent strengthening / weakening of the Pakistani Rupee against the above foreign
currencies at the reporting date would increase / decrease profit before tax for the year by Rs.
187.673 million (2024: Rs. 213.762 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the
previous year.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Group's interest rate exposure arises on
long-term and deposits with banks. At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group’s
interest-bearing financial instrument was as follows:

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
----- Carrying amounts --——--

Fixed rate instruments
Bank balance - saving account 356,230,738 277,428,175

Variable rate instruments

Long term borrowings - 68,762,159
Lease liability - 4,004,707
Short term borrowings 504,898,603 805,000,000

Sensitivity analysis

A change of 100 basis points (1%) in interest rate at the reporting date would have changed the
Group's profit before tax for the year by the amounts shown below, with all other variables held
constant.

1% 1%
(1,486,679) (6,003,387)

Change in interest rate
Effect on

[+ I+
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Financial instruments

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities by
categories:

2025 2024
. Financial . Financial
Emcr';ls:;s;t:t tiabilities at Total :::::;'i:;s;t:t tiabilities at Total
amortised cost amortised cost
Note Rupees Rupees
Financial assets
Trade debts 10 2,314,605,674 - 2,314,605,674 2,275,006,671 - 2,275,006,671
Loans to employees 11 11,151,158 - 11,151,158 10,902,572 - 10,902,572
Duty drawback 12 147,978,605 - 147,978,605 148,829,501 - 148,829,501
Sales taxrefundable 12 31,344,939 - 31,344,939 27,729,436 - 27,729,436
Other receivables 12 9,278,905 - 9,278,905 9,181,430 - 9,181,430
Cash and bank balances 13 448,048,183 - 448,048,183 347,723,137 - 347,723,137
2,962,407,464 - 2,962,407,464 2,819,372,747 - 2,819,372,747
Financial liabilities

Long term borrowings - secured 16 - - - - 68,762,159 68,762,159
Lease liability 17 - - - - 4,004,707 4,004,707
Deferred liability on acquisition of shares - - - - 37,714,296 37,714,296
Short term borrowings - secured 20 - 504,898,603 504,898,603 - 805,000,000 805,000,000
Trade and other payables 21 - 132,248,355 132,248,355 - 149,286,840 149,286,840
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 42,146,190 42,146,190 - 46,612,869 46,612,869
Accrued mark-up 22 - 18,078,859 18,078,859 - 60,148,620 60,148,620
Unclaimed dividend - 350,727 350,727 - 376,786 376,786
- 697,722,734 697,722,734 - 1,171,906,277 1,171,906,277

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:

2025
Other Short term Long t?rm
. borrowings .
b.orrow1.ngs including deferred Lease liability Un.cl.almed Total
including . dividend
income and
markup thereon markup thereon

Balance as at July 01, 2024 864,118,649 69,792,130 4,004,707 376,786 938,292,272
Changes from financing cash flows:

Repayments of long term borrowings (490,196,148) (78,377,264) - - (568,573,412)

Proceeds from long term borrowings - - - - -

Lease rentals paid - - (4,627,844) - (4,627,844)

Dividend paid - - - (26,059) (26,059)

Changes in short term borrowings

relating to financing activities - - - - -
Total changes from financing activities (490,196,148) (78,377,264) (4,627,844) (26,059) (573,227,315)
Other changes:

Addition to lease - - - - -

Amortisation of government grant - - - - -

Finance cost 130,976,102 8,585,134 623,137 - 140,184,373

Finance cost paid - - - - -
Total loan related other changes 130,976,102 8,585,134 623,137 - 140,184,373
Total equity related other changes - - - - -
Balance as at June 30, 2025 504,898,603 - - 350,727 505,249,330
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2024

Other Short term Long t?rm
borrowings borrowings Unclaimed
. | including deferred Lease liability . Total
including . dividend
income and
markup thereon markup thereon

Balance as at July 01, 2023 901,632,150 92,280,658 5,992,876 615,760 1,000,521,444
Changes from financing cash flows:

Repayments of long term borrowings (96,632,150) (23,112,129) - - (119,744,279)

Proceeds from long term borrowings - - - - -

Lease rentals paid - - (3,423,479) - (3,423,479)

Dividend paid - - - (238,974) (238,974)

Changes in short term borrowings

relating to financing activities - - - - -
Total changes from financing activities (96,632,150) (23,112,129) (3,423,479) (238,974) (123,406,732)
Other changes:

Addition to lease - - 194,720 - 194,720

Amortisation of government grant - - - - -

Finance cost 199,776,889 14,334,700 - - 214,111,589

Finance cost paid - - 1,240,590 - 1,240,590
Total loan related other changes 199,776,889 14,334,700 1,435,310 - 215,546,899
Total equity related other changes - - - - -
Balance as at June 30, 2024 1,004,776,889 83,503,229 4,004,707 376,786 1,092,661,611

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concern and
there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to
undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Group to classify fair value measurements and
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements
of fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset either directly that is, derived from prices.

- Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data ( that
is, unadjusted) inputs.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy is recognised at the end of the reporting
period during which the changes have occurred. The carrying values of all other financial assets
and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
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39.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors
monitor the return on capital, which the Group defines as net profit after taxation divided by
total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitor the level of dividend to ordinary
shareholders. There were no changes to the Group's approach to capital management during the
year and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

(1 to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
and

(ii) to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The management at all times seeks to earn returns higher than its weighted average cost of
capital, by increasing efficiencies in operations, so as to increase profitability.

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
Long term borrowings - secured 16 - 68,762,159
Lease liabilities 17 - 4,004,707
Short term borrowings - secured 20 504,898,603 805,000,000
Accrued mark-up 22 18,078,859 60,148,620
Gross debt 522,977,462 937,915,486
Less: Cash and bank balances 13 (448,048,183) (347,723,137)
Net debt 74,929,279 590,192,349
Total shareholder's equity 6,184,010,540 4,944.222.,174
Equity and net debt 6,258,939,819 5,534,414,523

Gearing ratio (%)

OPERATING SEGMENTS

1%

11%

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable
segment. The principal classes of products are meat and offal. All non-current assets of the
Group as at June 30, 2025 are located in Pakistan.
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40.1

40.2

41.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND
EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in the consolidated financial statements for remuneration,
including certain benefits to the chief executive officer, executive & non executive directors and
executives of the Group are as follows:

Chief Executive Directors Executives Total
Officer
Rupees
2025
Managerial remuneration 26,307,915 15,000,000 34,493,595 75,801,510
Other benefits 1,120,518 1,120,518 7,043,256 9,284,292
Board meeting fee - 1,110,000 - 1,110,000
27,428,433 17,230,518 41,536,851 86,195,802
Number of person(s) 1 7 13
2024
Managerial remuneration 24,014,000 15,225,000 35,550,826 74,789,826
Other benefits 1,134,000 1,125,000 7,630,200 9,889,200
Board meeting fee - 1,109,000 - 1,109,000
25,148,000 17,459,000 43,181,026 85,788,026
Number of person(s) 1 7 12

Executive means an employee, other than the Chief Executive Officer and the Directors, whose
basic salary exceeds twelve hundred thousand Rupees in a financial year.

The Chief Executive Officer, Executive Directors and certain Executives of the Group are also
provided with Group maintained cars.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise principal shareholders and their affiliates, directors, companies
with common directors and key management personnel. Remuneration of key management
personnel are in accordance with their terms of engagements. Transactions with other related
parties are entered into, at the rates negotiated with them.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including any director
(whether executive or otherwise) of the Group. The Group in the normal course of business
carries any transaction with various related parties.

Details of significant transactions and balances at year end with related parties as at year end or

remained during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, are as follows:
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41.2

Transactions during the year

Name of related party

Mr. Faisal Hussain
Mr. Ali Hussain

Sindh Gas Company (Private)
Limited

Mohammad Saeed Mohammad
Hussain Limited

Shaikh Hamid Asghar

Farooq Saeed

Zain Farooq

Amna Hafeez Mastoor

Ali Hussain

Key management personnel

Non-executive directors

Balance at the end of year

Sindh Gas Company (Private)

Limited

Shaikh Hamid Asghar

Farooq Saeed

Zain Farooq

Ali Hussain

Relationship
Chief Executive

Officer
Executive Director

Associate (Common
Directorship)

Associate (Common
Directorship)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Executives other
than CEO and
Directors

Directors

Associate (Common
Directorship)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Nature

Salary
Salary

Purchase of goods

Sales

Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL

Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL

Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL

Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL

Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL

Salary and other
benefits

Fees

Trade and other
payables

Payable against
share purchase of
MSMHL
Payable against
share purchase of
MSMHL
Payable against
share purchase of
MSMHL
Payable against
share purchase of
MSMHL
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2025 2024
Rupees Rupees

26,307,915 24,014,000
15,000,000 15,225,000
1,417,283 2,493,840

- 9,892,250
9,428,572 14,857,140
9,428,572 14,857,140
9,428,572 14,857,140

- 72,857,144
9,428,572 14,857,140
41,536,851 43,181,026
1,110,000 1,109,000

- 170,069

- 9,428,572

- 9,428,572

- 9,428,572

- 9,428,572
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43.

44.

45.

45.1

46.

2025 2024

Numbers Numbers
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Permanent employees 42 51
Daily wagers 310 329
Total employees as at the year end 352 380
Average number of employees during the year 366 332

UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHT ISSUE SHARES

. . Actual Right Issue Under/(Over)
Funds R d Allocati
Description u equire ocation Expenditure Funds Utilized Spent
-— Rupees — % --—- Rupees - - Rupees-—-——
Purpose of the Issue
Beef Tripe Cooking (Heat Treated) & Red
. . 260,000,000 32.10% 50,000,000 260,000,000 210,000,000
Offals Processinf Unit
Additional Working Capital
UAE Meat (MAP, Fresh & Frozen) & Red
100,000,000 12.35% 100,000,000 100,000,000
Offal Export
Backend Fattenning 100,000,000 12.35% 100,000,000 100,000,000 -
High-Cost Debt Reduction with Banks 350,000,000 43.21% 346,920,000 350,000,000 3,080,000
Total 810,000,000 100.00% 596,920,001 810,000,000 213,080,000
CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the
purpose of comparison and for better presentation.

2025 2024
PRODUCTION CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION
Installed slaughtering capacity (heads) 240,000 240,000
Actual slaughtering capacity (heads) 97,851 93,645
Capacity utilization (%) 41% 39%

Actual production of the Group was sufficient to meet the customers' demand.
GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee unless otherwise stated.



47. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025 were authorized for
issue on 27 Sep 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Group.

\ WW YA | })//\”

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer A
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The Board of Directors,

The Organic Meat Company Limited,
Survey # 310, Deh Shah Mureed
Gadap, Karachi.

September 26, 2025
AA-1598/25

AUDIT OF UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Dear Board Members,

We are pleased to enclosed two copies of the draft unconsolidated financial statements of The
Organic Meat Company Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2025 together with our
draft audit report thereon duly initialed by us for identification purposes only. We shall be pleased
to sign our draft report in its present or amended form after the draft unconsolidated financial
statements have been approved by the Board of Directors (“the Board”) and signed on their behalf
by the Chief Executive Officer, at least one other director and Chief Financial Officer and upon
receipt of the following:

a) The Board’s resolutions in respect of the following:

X
X

X XX

X

X

Addition to capital work in progress amounting to Rs. 180.235 million;

Addition to operating fixed assets amounting to Rs. 642.279 million including transfers from
capital work in progress amounting to Rs. 352.587 million;

Disposal of property, plant and equipment having net book value amounting to Rs. 0.077
million;

Disposal of right of use amounting to Rs. 5.653 million;

Long term borrowings paid off during the year amounting to Rs. 68.762 million;

Short term borrowings paid off during the year amounting to Rs. 303.101 million;

Donation paid during the year amounting to Rs. 2.659 million;

Expected credit loss charge during the year amounting to Rs. 158.637 million; (refer
paragraph 6)

Write off allowance for expected credit loss against trade debts during the year amounting
to Rs. 214.992 million; (refer paragraph 6)

Provision in respect of unfunded staff retirement gratuity scheme made during the year
amounting to Rs. 4.614 million;

Contingencies and commitments as disclosed in the note 24 to the draft unconsolidated
financial statements;

Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, Directors & other Executives as disclosed in note
40 to the unconsolidated financial statements;
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Transactions and balances with related parties as disclosed in notes to the unconsolidated
financial statements; and
Specific management’s representations made to us as stated in paragraph 11 below.

b) Responses to request letter for confirmation as mentioned in ‘Annexure A’ to this letter.

c) The statement of compliance with the best practices contained in the (Code of Corporate
Governance Regulations, 2019) approved by the Board of Directors.

d) Other information as defined in the International Standard on Auditing - 720, ‘The auditor’s
responsibilities relating to other information in documents containing audited financial
statements.

e) Letter of representation addressed to us on behalf of the Board and signed by the Chief Executive
and Chief Financial Officer as per draft provided by us.

We would like to advise you that unless we have signed our draft audit report, these draft
unconsolidated financial statements shall remain and be deemed un-audited.

We would like to bring the following matters to the attention of the Board:

1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MANAGEMENT AND AUDITORS IN RELATION TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The responsibilities of the independent auditors in a usual examination of financial statements
are stipulated in section 249 of the Companies Act, 2017 and International Standards on
Auditing. While the auditors are responsible for forming and expressing their opinion on the
financial statements, the responsibility for preparation of such financial statements is
primarily that of the Company’s management.

The management’s responsibilities include the maintenance of adequate accounting records
and internal controls, the selection and application of accounting policies, safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and prevention and detection of frauds and irregularities. The audit
of unconsolidated financial statements does not relieve the management of its
responsibilities.

Page - 2

114




NUUHTHTHTTHT

2. KEY AUDIT MATTERS

As per ISA- 701 “Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’s Report, key
audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. Our draft audit report on the draft unconsolidated financial statements includes key
audit matters on “Valuation of stock in trade” due to the significance of inventory balance
and related estimation involved in valuing the inventory, “Revenue recognition” due to the
high volume of transactions involving large number of customers spread in various
geographical locations and the significance of revenue as a key performance indicator for
users of the draft unconsolidated financial statements, “Valuation of biological assets” due
to the significance of biological assets balances and related estimations involved in valuing the
biological assets and on “Trade debts” due to the significant management judgment involved in
determining the provision for expected credit losses and that the existence and carrying
amount of trade debts could be material to the performance of the Company.

3. ENTITY LEVEL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES
GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

We have observed certain deficiencies related to control environment of the Company with
respect to scraps and left overs of the carcass. The Company is not maintaining the timely
recording of the items in and out of the premises of the factory. Evidence of supervision is
lacking on the said process.

We would like to bring to the Board's attention the need to strengthen the Company’s control
environment by implementation of an integrated ERP solution to improve record-keeping of
the animals, carcass and scraps in the factory and efficient reporting at head office level.

We understand that from the tax year 2025, the Company will be assessed under normal tax
regime (NTR) as per the changes in the tax laws and would possibly be subject to tax audits.
Due to this, we recommend that the board should take necessary steps to enhance the
standards of record keeping by ensuring that the documentation, invoices of suppliers,
procurement and other supplementary records should meet the standards of best practices.

We recommend that management must equip the finance department with essential

resources, including documented systems and procedures, adequate staff and appropriate
training to meet the challenges of growing business, changing laws and accounting standards.
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ACQUISITION OF MOHAMMAD SAEED HUSSAIN LIMITED (MSMHL)

As disclosed in note 1.2 to the unconsolidated financial statements, the Company entered into
a Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) dated May 16, 2023 with the shareholders of Mohammad
Saeed Mohammad Hussain Limited (MSMHL), an unlisted public company, for acquisition of
100% of its outstanding share capital at a cash, cum deferred price arrangement, of Rs. 170.00
million. Under the SPA the right in the shares of MSMHL shall be transferred to the Company
upon settlement of payment on or before August 15, 2025. The Company paid amounting to
Rs. 132.285 million upto June 30, 2024 and remaining balance of Rs. 37.714 million has been
paid during the year. Accordingly, shares of MSMHL have been transferred in the name of the
Company on May 13, 2025 and other legal formalities in this regard have been completed. As
a result the control is transferred to the Company.

TRADE DEBTS MANAGEMENT AND CASH COLLECTION PRACTICES

The Company has trade receivable amounting to Rs. 2,314.605 million as of June 30, 2025. In
line with the market practice, the Company adjusts the receivable from the party on FIFO
basis when the proceed is received. This is due to the limitation that proceeds from debtors
are not received in the order of the shipments and invoices. Due to the above, we understand
that ageing of trade debts at any date may not represent the invoice-wise balance of the
parties.

Moreover, it was also noted that the Company is raising invoice for a shipment to UAE in the
name of a particular party whereas that particular shipment contains product of various
parties that are segregated by way of identification marks on the packaging. Subsequently,
the payments are collected by the designated individual of the Company from the parties and
remitted to the Company’s bank account using an exchange company.

We understand the current practice poses significant risk of misappropriation of asset due to
the involvement of cash and thus we recommend that the Board should devise the strategy to
replace such practice with a lower risk approach.

PROVISION FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS (ECL)

As at June 30, 2025, the Company has trade debts balance of Rs. 2,497.506 million against
which the Company maintained provision for expected credit loss (‘ECL’) amounting Rs.
182.90 million.
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The management has carried out ECL exercise at reporting date while applying simplified
approach with the consideration of historical default rate and forward-looking factor and
determined an aggregate expected credit loss and also carried exercise based on subjective
evaluation considering age analysis for determined the provision.

Based on above exercises, the management prudently recorded the provision for ECL
amounting to Rs. 158.637 million during the year and, an amount of Rs. 214.992 million has
been written off during the period.

We recommend that the management should reevaluate the current ECL model and
incorporate all necessary adjustment in it to determine appropriate amount of ECL through
ECL model without using subjective evaluation as per International Financial Reporting
Standard 9 - “Financial Instruments”.

PROVISION OF WORKERS' PROFIT PARTICIPATION FUND (WPPF) AND WORKERS' WELFARE
FUND (WWF)

The Company charged a liability against the Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) and
Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) liability till December 31, 2022. However, based on the opinion
of Company’s legal advisor, being an agricultural producer, the Company does not fall under
the definition of Industrial Undertaking, and so is not subject to such provisions under the
Sindh Workers Welfare Fund Act, 2021 and the Sindh Companies Profits (Workers'
Participation) Act, 2015. Therefore, the Company ceased to its present obligations and did
not charge further expense in this regard.

During the year, the Company has received a notice from the Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund
for the recovery of contributions amounting to Rs. 2.115 million and 3.433 million pertaining
to financial years 2023 and 2022 respectively. While management has secured a stay by paying
10% of the demand and filed an appeal before the Honorable Sindh Revenue Board on the
grounds of exemption, the matter is pending adjudication before the Honorable Sindh High
Court.

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

We draw your attention to the International Accounting Standards 19 “Employee Benefits”
(IAS 19) which requires actuarial valuation should be carried out by the management to
determine the provision for the year and related liability at reporting date. In this regard, we
have been given to understand by the management of the Company that the impact on
provision for gratuity for the year and related liability recorded in the financial statements
would not be materially different, if determined, based on an actuarial valuation.
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10.

We recommend that the management should apply the preferred treatment involving
actuarial valuation, in order to determine the provision for the year and present value of the
benefits payable under the said scheme. Further, efforts should be made to get the scheme
approved by tax authorities and ultimately funded so that tax benefit arising from the same
could be available for both the Company and the employees.

FIXED ASSETS REGISTER

We noted a fixed assets register has not been maintained as required by Technical Release 6
(TR-6) ‘Fixed assets inventory and records’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan. The said TR states that adequate itemized record of fixed assets should be
maintained and suggests certain minimum particulars.

We recommend that a fixed assets register should be maintained in the required form so that
cost, revalued amounts and details of physical location of each item of fixed assets are easily
accessible as and when required in compliance with the requirements of TR 6.

IFRS SUSTAINABILITY DISCLOSURE STANDARDS IN PAKISTAN

The ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance) considerations have become increasingly
important for companies in recent years as awareness among investors and stakeholders have
been on the rise owing to the significant impact of E, S and G factors on the climate, society,
and corporate governance. It is pertinent to mention that governance disclosures are already
focus of regulatory disclosure requirements are predominately covered under the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 subject to regulatory filings.
There is also increasing investor expectations for disclosure on E&S governance, including how
the board provides oversight of material E&S factors, how E&S factors are integrated into
company strategy, how E&S is taken into account in the board skills matrix and director
education, and the linkage of executive compensation to E&S metrics and targets.

Integrating sustainability considerations into business operations can assist businesses in
mitigating risks, improving reputation, offering sustainable products/services and creating
long-term value for stakeholders.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) issued an ESG Regulatory Roadmap
in June 2022 outlining actions ranging from creating awareness, discussing disclosures needs,
development of ESG focused products leading to an overall impact assessment in a phased
manner.
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The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan had also established a working group
“Study, Consultation and Recommendations for Implementation in Pakistan” which has
proposed adoption of IFRS S1 and S2. All companies, subject to fulfillment of criteria given
below, shall publish sustainability reports in accordance with IFRS Sustainability Disclosure
Standards.

During the year, the SECP vide its order dated December 31, 2024 notified to apply
sustainability disclosure standards in accordance with below mentioned timelines. However,
SECP has encouraged all companies to early adopt sustainability disclosure standards.

Phase | - Period beginning on or after July 1, 2025 (Listed companies fulfilling any two
criteria below):

X Turnover greater than Rs. 25 billion in last two consecutive financial years as per their
unconsolidated financial statements; or

X Employees (permanent and contractual) greater than 1000 in number; or

X Total assets greater than Rs. 12.5 billion

Phase Il - Period beginning on or after July 1, 2026 (Listed companies fulfilling any two
criteria below):

X Turnover greater than Rs. 12.5 billion in last two consecutive financial years as per their
unconsolidated financial statements; or

X Employees (permanent and contractual) greater than 500 (in number); or

K Total assets greater than Rs. 6.25 billion

Phase lll - Period beginning on or after July 1, 2027

Listed Companies (other than those falling in Phase | and Phase Il above) and non-listed Public
Interest Companies which are licensed or registered with the Commission shall comply the
Sustainability Disclosure Standards from annual reporting periods beginning on or after July
01, 2027.

The auditors of the Company are also required to provide assurance on the reporting under
the Sustainability Disclosure Standards from the second year of reporting in accordance with
the prescribed format by the SECP.
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11.

X

12.

SPECIFIC MANAGEMENT’S REPRESENTATIONS

Related party transactions and balances

We have been informed by the management that there were no transactions and balances
with related parties other than those disclosed in the notes to the draft unconsolidated
financial statements.

Contingencies and commitments

We have been informed by the management that there are no contingencies and commitments
as on the date of the unconsolidated financial statements other than disclosed in the draft
unconsolidated financial statements.

Fraud and error

We have been informed by the management that no case of fraud and/or error, has been
brought to their knowledge during the year. Kindly confirm the representations made by
management.

Subsequent events

We have been informed by management that there were no subsequent events having an
impact on amounts and / or disclosures in these draft financial statements except as disclosed
in the accompanying draft unconsolidated financial statements.

Compliance with statutory laws and regulations

We have been informed by management that there were no instances of non-compliance with
applicable statutory laws and regulations that would have financial reporting implications.

Independence
We confirm that in our professional judgment, the Firm is independent within the meaning of

regulatory and professional requirements and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner
and audit engagement team has not been compromised.
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We take this opportunity to thank all your staff for the courtesy and cooperation extended to us

during the course of our audit.

Yours faithfully,

s b—"""

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
Enclosed as above
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Annexure “A”

X

X

X

X

X X

X XXX R XX

X

a) Bank Confirmation

Samba Bank Limited
Soneri Bank Limited

b) Related party Confirmations

Sindh Gas Company (Private) Limited
Amna Hafeez

Zain Farooq

Ali Hussain

c) Legal Confirmations

U & A Associates
AUC Law

d) Debtor Confirmations

Luxury Meat Trading L.L.C

Kiku Trading Co L.L.C

Bab Al Meezan Meat Trading (SPS - L.L.C)

Tianjin Longing International Logistics Co.
Shengchanghong (Guangzhou) International
International Hub For Trading Co

Aseel Al-Afia L.L.C

Al Dawliya For Meat W.L.L

Adnan Ocean Fish Company

Falcon Shipping And Trading Joint Stock Company

Dar Alfalah Foodstuff Trading LLC

Audeh Mohammad Al Safry Trading Est

Khairat Al Bahar Trading

Almahra Albana Contracting & Trading Co

Saber Abud Bin Omar Baamiran Est

Pacific Asia International Maritime Forwarding Service Joint Stock
Quang Phu Warehousing And Trading Company Limited
Sharifa Kenar Sadqi General Trading L.L.C

Mianz Pvt Ltd.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed Unconsolidated financial statements of The Organic Meat Company Limited
(the Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025,
and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best the our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity,
the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view
of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the profit and other comprehensive income,
the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the Key audit matters:

S. No

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit
report

1.

Valuation of stock in trade

As disclosed in notes 8 to the annexed
unconsolidated financial statements, the
Company held stock-in-trade amounting to Rs.
397.953 million as at June 30, 2025.

As described in notes 4.8 to the
unconsolidated financial statements, stock-in-
trade is measured at a lower of cost and net
realizable value.

Due to the significance of inventory balances
and related estimations involved in valuing the
inventory, we considered this as a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures,
included the following:

amongst others,

X  Assessed the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the relevant
key controls over valuation of stock in
trade;

X Assessing the appropriateness of the

Company’s accounting policy for
valuation of stock in trade and
compliance of the policy with

International Accounting Standard (IAS-2)
“Inventories”;

X  Assessed net realizable value (NRV) by
comparing management’s estimation of
future selling prices for the products with
the selling prices achieved subsequent to
the reporting period;

K Assessed the adequacy of the
obsolescence  provision and  the
management judgement used;

B Assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made  in financial
statements in accordance with the
requirements of the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan.

124




Valuation of biological assets

As disclosed in note 9 to the annexed
unconsolidated financial statements, the
Company held biological assets amounting to
Rs. 96.561 million as at June 30, 2025.

As described in notes 4.6 to the
unconsolidated financial statements,
biological assets are measured at fair value
less estimated point-of-sale costs, with any
resultant gain or loss recognized in
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.
Point-of-sale costs include all costs that would
be necessary to sell the assets, excluding costs
necessary to get the assets to market. The fair
value of livestock is based on the market price
of livestock of similar age, breed and genetic
merit.

Due to the significance of biological assets
balances and related estimations involved in
valuing the biological assets, we considered
this as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation
of biological assets included the following:

K Obtained an understanding of the
Company’s process with respect to the
valuation of biological assets;

K Attended the physical head count of and
observed the weights of animals;

K Assessed the appropriateness and
consistency of Company’s valuation
method for biological assets with
applicable accounting and reporting
standard;

K Tested the fair value assumptions used
by the Company, including market prices
of similar stock and point of sale costs,
by comparing them to market data and
industry benchmarks;

K Observed yield of animals slaughtered
during the year and performed analytical
review procedures on yields which is
obtained from the same kind of stock for
the year;

X Evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures presented in the
unconsolidated financial statements
regarding biological assets in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting

framework.
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Revenue recognition

As disclosed in note 25 to the annexed
unconsolidated financial statements, the
Company reported revenue amounting to Rs.
14,006.064 million.

The Company is engaged in the slaughtering
and sale of halal meat & allied products in the
local and export market. Revenue is
recognized when performance obligation is
satisfied by transferring control of promised
goods to the customers.

We considered revenue recognition as a key
audit matter due to the high volume of
transactions involving large number of
customers spread in various geographical
locations and the significance of revenue as a
key performance indicator for users of the
unconsolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures, others,

included the following:

amongst

K Assessed the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the relevant
key controls over recording of revenue;

K Assessed the appropriateness of the
Company’s  accounting  policy  for
recognition of revenue and compliance of
the policy with International Accounting
Standard  (IFRS-15)  “Revenue  from
Contracts with Customers”;

X Performed tests of details on sample basis
of revenue transactions during the year
with underlying documentation including
delivery documents and sales invoices;

K Performed cut-off procedures on sample
basis of revenue transactions with
underlying  documentation  including
delivery documents and sales invoices at
near the year end to check that revenue
has been recorded in the relevant period;

K Assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made in financial
statements in accordance with the
requirements of the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan.
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Trade debts

As at June 30, 2025, the Company has trade
debts amounting to Rs. 2,314.605 million
which constitutes 33% of total assets of the
Company, as disclosed in notes 10 to the
unconsolidated financial statements.

A discrepancy in the valuation or existence of
trade debts could cause the assets to be
materially misstated, which would impact the
Company’s reported unconsolidated
statement of financial position as the
valuation of aforesaid head is one of the main
drivers of movements in the total assets of the
Company.

Management estimates the collectible amount
of trade debts through expected credit loss
(ECL) approach. An estimated provision is
made against trade debts on the basis of
lifetime expected credit loss model as
explained in note 4.4 whereas trade debts
considered irrecoverable are written off.

In view of the significance of trade debts in
relation to the total assets of the Company,
we have considered it as a key audit matter
due to the significant management judgment
involved in determining the provision for
expected credit losses and that the existence
and carrying amount of trade debts could be
material to the performance of the Company.

Our audit procedures to assess the trade debts
included the following:

K Circularized confirmation to a sample of
trade debts with the outstanding balance
at the end of the reporting period.

K Examined on sample basis evidence
related to post year-end receipts.

K Considered the appropriateness for
expected credit losses (ECL) against
trade debts as per the Company’s policy
and assessed compliance with applicable
accounting standards.

K Reviewed the methodology developed
and applied by the Company to estimate
the ECL in relation to trade debts and
evaluated the assumptions used in
applying the ECL methodology based on
historical information and qualitative
factors as relevant for such estimates.

K Evaluated the relevance, completeness,
and accuracy of the source data used for
computation of ECL.

K Checked the mathematical accuracy of
the ECL model by performing
recalculation on test basis.

X Reviewed the adequacy of the
disclosures and presentation of trade
debts as per the requirements of
applicable financial reporting
framework.
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s unconsolidated financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

K Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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X Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

X Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

K Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

X Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017);

b) the statement of unconsolidated financial position, the statement of unconsolidated profit or loss,
the statement of unconsolidated comprehensive income, the statement of unconsolidated cash flows,
and the statement of unconsolidated changes in equity together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the
books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditures incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and
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d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zulfikar Ali Causer.

KARACHI

DATED: BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

UDIN: AR2025100670XSjrtBDi
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THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Long term investments
Investment in subsidiary
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares
Stock-in-trade
Biological assets
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Cash and bank balances
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves

Authorized share capital
200,000,000 (2024: 165,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
Reserves
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment - net of tax

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term borrowings
Long term lease liabilities
Deferred taxation
Staff retirement benefits
Deferred liability on acquisition of shares

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturity of long term borrowings
Current portion of lease liabilities
Short term borrowings
Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Taxation
Accrued mark-up
Unclaimed dividend
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Note

[o)}

1.2
1.2

10
11
12
13

14

15

16
17
18

19

16
17
20
21

32

22
23

24

2025
Rupees

3,193,955,706

2,281,199

170,000,000

2024
Rupees

2,910,153,056
6,651,363
2,331,203
170,000,000

3,366,236,905

3,089,135,622

2,262,984
397,953,496
96,561,116
2,314,605,674
164,536,143
198,653,717
448,048,183

5,138,234
178,941,508
71,967,600
2,275,006,671
78,714,119
190,917,666
347,723,137

3,622,621,313

3,148,408,935

6,988.,858,218

6,237,544,557

2,000,000,000

1,650,000,000

1,784,912,132
3,563,592,142
811,805,523

1,484,912,132
2,610,482,400
848,827,642

6,160,309,797

4,944,222,174

- 44,204,210

- 1,990,696
40,449,068 78,740,359
13,454,492 8,840,087

- 37,714,296
53,903,560 171,489,648

- 24,557,949

- 2,014,011
504,898,603 805,000,000
132,248,355 140,446,753
42,146,190 46,612,869
76,922,127 42,675,747
18,078,859 60,148,620
350,727 376,786
774,644,861 1,121,832,735
6,988,858,218 6,237,544,557
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THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 2025 2024
Rupees Rupees

Sales - net 25 14,006,064,880 11,797,754,504
Cost of sales 26 (12,724,522,855) (10,218,713,730)

Gross profit 1,281,542,025 1,579,040,774
Administrative expenses 27 (269,855,145) (173,271,959)
Selling expenses 28 (339,824,547) (581,598,234)
Allowance for expected credit loss 10.1 (158,637,849) (35,179,868)
(768,317,541) (790,050,061)

Operating profit 513,224,484 788,990,713

Other income 30 223,114,676 87,017,017
Finance costs 29 (153,773,591) (231,486,545)
69,341,085 (144,469,528)

Profit before levy and taxation 582,565,569 644,521,185
Levy 31 - (161,069,370)

Profit before taxation 582,565,569 483,451,815

Taxation 32 (176,477,946) 13,921,489

Profit for the year 406,087,623 497,373,304

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 33 2.60 3.35

(Restated)

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025
Note Rupees

Profit for the year 406,087,623
Other comprehensive (loss) / income:

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and -

equipment - net
Deferred tax liability 15 -

2024
Rupees

497,373,304

(92,661,848)

Total comprehensive income for the year 406,087,623

404,711,456

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash generated from operating activities 35 145,451,851 969,739,495
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (469,928,400) (558,810,909)

Sale proceed from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 965,000

Intangible assets - (452,000)

Payment for acquisition of shares- deferred liability (37,714,296) (132,285,704)

Profit received on bank accounts 26,033,350 16,408,936
Net cash used in investing activities (481,609,346) (674,174,677)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term loan repaid (68,762,159) (23,112,129)

Proceeds against right shares issued 810,000,000 -

Payment of lease rentals (4,627,844) (3,228,759)

Dividends paid (26,059) (238,974)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 736,583,938 (26,579,862)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 400,426,443 268,984,956
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year (457,276,863) (726,261,819)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 34 (56,850,420) (457,276,863)

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements. -
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THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1.

1.1

1.2

2.1

CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

The Organic Meat Company Limited (the "Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on July 14,
2010 as a private limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984 (now
Companies Act, 2017), and subsequently it was converted into public limited company on
November 08, 2018. The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited since August 03, 2020. The Company's principal activities are slaughtering
and sale of halal meat and allied products as well as feedlot farming of animals.

The registered address of the Company is situated at Survey No. 310, Deh Shah Mureed,
Gadap, Karachi, Pakistan. The correspondence address and the offal processing facility is
situated at Plot No. 257, Sector 24, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi.

The Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) dated May 16, 2023 with the
shareholders of Mohammad Saeed Mohammad Hussain Limited (MSMHL), an unlisted public
company, for acquisition of 100% of its outstanding share capital at a cash, cum deferred price
arrangement, of Rs. 170.00 million. Under the SPA the right in the shares of MSMHL shall be
transferred to the Company upon settlement of payment on or before August 15, 2025. The
Company paid amounting to Rs.132.285 million upto June 30, 2024 and remaining balance of
Rs.37.714 million has been paid during the year. Accordingly, shares of MSMHL have been
transferred in the name of the Company on May 13, 2025 and other legal formalities in this
regard have been completed. As a result the control is transferred to the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting

standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRs) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Act,

2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
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2.2

2.3

2.4

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRSs, or IFAS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have
been followed.

Basis of Measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the followings:

- Certain items of property, plant and equipment that are stated at revalued amount; and
- Biological assets other than bearer plants which are carried at fair value of livestock.

Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees (PKR or Rupee) which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

In preparing these unconsolidated financial statements, management has made judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Company's accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revision to estimates are recognized prospectively.

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effects on the amount recognized in the unconsolidated financial statements and to
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities and assumptions and estimation uncertainties
that may have a significant risk resulting in a material adjustment in the subsequent year are set
forth below:

Notes

Useful lives, residual values, and depreciation assumption method of  4.1,4.3,5.1

property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets &7
Lease liabilities 4.2
Trade debts 4.7
Impairment of financial assets and non financial assets 4.4
Biological assets 46&9
Stock in trade and stores and spares 48 &8
Provisions and contingent liabilities and assets 4.15 & 4.16
Taxation 4.14, 18 & 31
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3.1

3.2

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDSMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
TO PUBLISHED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS AS APPLICABLE
IN PAKISTAN

New standards, amendments, IFRS interpretations and guidance that are effective for the
year ended June 30, 2025

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June
30, 2025. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the
Company's operations or did not have significant impact on the unconsolidated financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or
after)
Standard or Interpretation

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Supplier
January 1, 2024

finance arrangements

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-
. January 1, 2024

lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -

. . e January 1, 2024

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non- current

e . January 1, 2024

liabilities with covenants

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance January 1, 2024

arrangements

Amendments t.o the Fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 made in August 15, 2024

respect of shariah related disclosure.

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective and

have not early adopted by the Company

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting
periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not
expected to have significant impact on the Company's unconsolidated financial statements other
than certain additional disclosures.
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Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or

after)
Standard or Interpretation
Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments
regarding the classification and measurement of financial instruments January 1, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding
. . o January 1, 2026

the classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amendments to IAS 21 The.]?ffects of Changes in Foreign Exchange January 1, 2025

Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability

IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts January 1, 2027
Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs and IASs.

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by
IASB effective from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified the revised timeframe for
the adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 01, 2027.

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the presentation of these unconsolidated financial

statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied throughout the
period presented, unless stated otherwise.
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4.1

b)

Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except for
factory leasehold land, factory building on lease hold land and plant and machinery which are
carried at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Cost in relation to certain items in operating fixed assets and capital work-in-
progress, signifies historical cost and financial charges on borrowings, in case of qualifying
assets.

Depreciation is charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss by applying the reducing
balance method, at the rates specified in note 5 to these unconsolidated financial statements.
Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which
an item is available for use, while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the item is
disposed off.

The assets’ residual values, and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss during the financial year in which they are
incurred.

Gains and losses on disposal of operating fixed assets are recognized in unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period of disposal.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress held for capital expenditures are stated at cost and consists of
expenditure incurred, advances made and other costs directly attributable to operating fixed
assets in the course of their construction and installation. Cost also includes applicable
borrowing costs. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as and when
assets are available for use intended.

Revaluation

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of leasehold land, building on leasehold
land, plant and machinery and equipment is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as “Revaluation
surplus on property, plant and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease for the same asset previously recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss,
in which case the increase is credited to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent
of the decrease previously charged.
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4.2

b)

Any decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of leasehold land, building on lease
hold land, plant and machinery and equipment is charged to unconsolidated statement of profit
or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders.
Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract or
contains a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. If the Company assesses contract contains a lease
,the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date.

Right of use assets

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost where lease liabilities are adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred,
less any lease incentive received, and subsequent at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss, if any.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated using reducing balance method over the lease term as
disclosed in note 6 to the unconsolidated financial statements.

Lease Liability

Lease liability is initial measured at the present value of the future lease payments over the lease
term, discounted at incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequently lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change
in the rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right of use asset, or is recorded in unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company has opted not to recognize right of use assets for short-term leases i.e. leases with

a term of twelve (12) months or less. The payments associated with such leases are recognized
in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss when incurred.
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4.3

4.4

b)

Intangible assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Cost
represents the expense incurred to acquire the intangible assets and bring them to use.
Amortization is computed using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets at the rates disclosed in note 7 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

The assets’ residual values, the method of amortization and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Impairment
Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications exist, the assets’
recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.
An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in-
use. Value-in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortized cost and at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has

been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
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4.5

The Company measures ECL of a financial instrument in a way that reflects:

a) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes;

b) the time value of money; and

c¢) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for the exposure at default for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets' gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- Amortised cost
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Further, financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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)

(i)

(iii)

Measurement of financial assets

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where the contractual
terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortized cost. Financial assets at amortized
cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment losses or reversals, interest income, and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is transferred directly to
unappropriated profit.

Fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. A gain or loss on a investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised
in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Financial liabilities
Classification
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

- Amortised cost; and
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Recognition and derecognition

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair
value less any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequently to initial recognition, these are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
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4.6

4.7

4.8

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Biological assets

These are stated at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs, with any resultant gain or loss
recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Point-of-sale costs include all costs
that would be necessary to sell the assets, excluding costs necessary to get the assets to market.
The fair value of livestock is based on the market price of livestock of similar age, breed and
genetic merit. Directly attributable costs incurred during the period of biological growth to the
stage of slaughtering the biological assets are charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Agricultural activity is defined as a biological transformation of biological assets for sale into
agricultural produce, or into additional biological assets. The Company classifies its livestock of
cattle as biological assets.

The Company recognizes a biological asset, when it controls the asset as a result of past events,
and it is probable that further economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the
Company, and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recorded at the transaction price and subsequently measured at
amortised cost. They are presented at their nominal value less an allowance for expected credit
losses. The allowance is determined using the expected credit loss (ECL) model, which
incorporates management’s forward-looking assessment of potential credit losses. This
approach recognises credit losses based on anticipated risk, rather than waiting for an
impairment trigger or specific indication of default.

Stock-in-trade

Stock in trade, except goods in transit, are valued at the lower of cost, determined using the
weighted average method, and net realisable value less impairment if any.

Stock-in-transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less

the estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to be incurred in order to make
the sale.
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4.9  Stores and spares

Stores and spares, except in transit, are valued at lower of cost determined using the weighted
average method and net realisable value less impairment if any. Items in transit are valued at
cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares is determined based on management's
estimate regarding their future usability.

4.10 Employees' retirement benefits

The Company operates an unfunded staff retirement gratuity scheme covering all employees
with two or more years of service with the Company. Provision is made annually to cover
obligations under the scheme. Gratuity is one month basic salary per year for number of years of
service by employees.

4.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances, cash in hand and short-term running
finance.

4.12 Trade and other payables

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received
whether or not billed to the Company.

4.13 Borrowings

4.13.1 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds received (net of
transaction cost) and the redemption value is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

4.13.2 Borrowings cost

Borrowing cost on long term finances and short term borrowings which are obtained for the
acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing
costs are charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which these are
incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest cost as allowed
under IAS 23 "Borrowing cost".

4.14 Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
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b)

4.15

4.16

Current tax

The current tax charge is based on the taxable income for the year calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the unconsolidated statement of financial position
date, and any adjustment or tax payable in respect of prior years. The tax is recognized in the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly to equity. In this case the tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly to equity, respectively.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all taxable temporary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
unconsolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of financial position when the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company. It can also be a present obligation arising
from the past events that is not recognized because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes to the accounts. When a

change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognized as provision.
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4.17

4.18

b)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognized but are
disclosed in the notes to the accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When
an inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognized.

Ijarah contracts

Payments made under ijarah contract are charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss on straight line basis over the ijarah term as per IFAS 2.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when or as performance obligations are satistied by
transferring control of a promised goods to a customer at a point in time. The assessment of
satisfaction of performance obligations depends on the contractual terms when goods are
dispatched.

Rendering of services

Revenue from renderined of services include slaughtering fee. Revenue is recognized when the
service is completed.

Other income

(1) Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of biological assets are
recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

(i1) Profit on bank deposit in savings account is recognized on a time proportion basis

on the principal amount outstanding and at the applicable rate.

(111) Other income is recognized when the right to receive is established, and the
amount and timing of related receipt is virtually certain.
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4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Pakistan Rupees using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated into Pakistan Rupee using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions
and on translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
reporting date are recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting

A financial asset and financial liability is off-set and the net amount is reported in the
unconsolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set-
off the transaction and also there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the unconsolidated profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the unconsolidated profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Dividends and appropriations to reserves

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability and
appropriation to / from reserves are made in the period in which these are approved. However,
if these are approved after the reporting period but before the unconsolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, they are disclosed as subsequent event in the unconsolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

Share capital is classified as equity and recognized at the face value. Incremental costs net of
tax and directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction in equity.

Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties are based on normal commercial rates at the same terms and
conditions as applicable to third party transactions.
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4.25

4.26

4.27

Segment reporting

For management purposes, the activities of the Company are organized into one reportable
operating segment. The Company operates in the said reportable operating segment based on
the nature of the products, risks and returns, organizational and management structure, and
internal financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the figures reported in the unconsolidated
financial statements are related to the Company’s only reportable segment.

Levy

The Company accounted for current tax calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate
as an income tax and any tax charged under the income tax laws which is not based on the
taxable income recorded as a levy in accordance with the Guidance on Accounting for
Minimum Taxes and Final taxes issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
The minimum tax and final taxes which are not calculated on the ‘taxable profit’ but calculated
on turnover or other basis are recognized as a levy in the unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss under the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS37.

Investment in subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. A reversal of an
impairment loss on subsidiary is recognised as it arises, provided the increased carrying amount

does not exceed cost.

Gain or loss on sale of investment in subsidiary is recognised in these unconsolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year.

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating assets - at net book value 5.1 3,132,321,258 2,676,167,089
Capital work-in-progress - at cost 5.7 61,634,448 233,985,967

3,193,955,706 2,910,153,056

Page - 15

150



9] -33eyq

(UONJIW [6£°€ S *HTOT) UONIIW [6L°€ S ST SZOT 0 dUNf J SB 3SN UL [[US I8 YOIYM §}asse. pajerodidap A[ng Jo 3500 oy,

07 o1 0€ SI S -
680°L91°9L9°C LTH'S6T11 601°560°566 95€°198°t LETOTIT 090°050°960°1 006°tL 995

(Tey'LTTo61°)  (8¥6°0TL TE) (8LTH0E08) (06£°006°01) (12¥°'199°9) ($8€°079°5£€) -
11676€°998°¢ SLEQIOYY LBE66E66L T 9PL 9L ST 8S9°18L'S SHP 069 1EH° 1 006°tL°99S
680°L91°9L9°C LTY'S6T11 601°560°566 95€°198"Y LETOTIT 090°050°960°T 006°1L 995

(L10°06€°SST) (881°L8L°T) (926°LT8°56) (S€L960°T) (8127°82¢€) (6¥6°6¥€°SS) -
SI9P8ETS - 000°000°9¢ - - S19v8€°ST -

(PS'T81°Y) (L96°C19) (L8¥°695°¢) - - - -
PE1°€T9°68T 00S°8%S 8L T6Y81T 00°008°LES’T 00°00v°61€ 00°9564TL Y9 -
T18°1€L°861°C €80°LY1P1 ¥70°000°078 162°0TH Y SS0°621°C 8EH 06T TLOT 0061L°995
8STITETEIE LLOS8S TE LYL6ET°T00°T €L8'8IV Y 9P8ETLT SI8°80LTLY'T 006 YL ‘819

(TL1'9vToLE D) (LETTIOBE) (9LE061°C16) (eL8°cTyTT) (T18°611°L) (YL8°668°S0t) -
0EV°L9S°80SY  YIEL6TOL €TT0EEHI6T 9L TH8 9T 859°€18°6 689°809°8L8°T 006 YL ‘819
8STITETEIE LLOS8S TE LYL6ET°T00°T €L8'8IV Y 9P8ETLT SI8°80LTLY'T 006 YL ‘819

(¥85°810°981) (€T1°126°9) (860°988°L0T) (€84S’ 1) (16€£°8SH) (68t°65T°0L) -
S0S°L8STSE - ¥ST8YL9S - - 1ST°6€8°56T -

(991°LL) (991°LL) - - - - -
PI¥°T69°68C 6£6°L8T°9T T8 T8I'8S 000°T80°T 000°790°T £66°8L0°TST 000°000°CS
680°L9T°9L9T  LTH'S6T'TI 601°560°566 95€° 198" LETOTIT 090°050°960°T 006 %L 99S

.......... ddny ----------
(S°S 230N) (S°S 9j0N) pue| (S°S 230N)
1ejoL SI[AIYIA ARunydew jywowdinby danyxyy pIoyased| pue|
hcacz —uﬂﬁ a-—ﬂ—h uOEO pue 0.—5:-::@ uo w-:u::m ﬂ—c-—vwﬁv‘.— bc«uw.m

(2% ur) sayea uonenddaq

anea yooq jau Fuisoy)
uonerodrdep pajenunooy
150D

$T0T ‘0€ dunp papud aedk

sIseq Injea Sulfi1ed ssoao)

an[ea yooq jdu 3uiso|)
pagieyo uoneroardoq
JIMD WOl I9JsueL],
(AGN 1e) [esodsiq
(3500 7€) UONIPPY
anjea y00q 1ou SuruadQ
$207 ‘0€ dung papud aedk
sIseq InfeA Sulf1Ied JON

aneA yooq jau Jursop)
uonjerodrdop pajenunooy
150D

ST0T ‘0€ dunp pIpud aedk

sIseq Infea 3urfiaed ssoan

anjeA yooq jau Jursop)
padaeyo uonerodrdoq
JIAD WOy JoJsuel],
(AGN 1®) [esodsiq
(1502 18) UOTNPPY
anfeA yooq 1ou SurnadQ
S70T ‘0€ dunp pIpud Iedk
siseq anfeA Surkiied JON

sjasse paxyy superddQ

I'rs

151



5.2

5.2.1

53

5.4

5.5

Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and buildings) in the name of the Company are as
follows:

Particulars Nature Location Total area
Factory premises Commercial / Survey No. 310, 310/1 & 313 Deh Shah Mureed, 3474 Acre
(Note 5.2.1) Industrial Gadap, Karachi, Pakistan. ’

. . Survey No. 315 Deh Shah Mureed, Gadap
Fatt fa A, Itural ? > 3.500 A

attening tarm griculura Karachi, Pakistan. cre
Additional fattening farm . Survey No. 315 Deh Shah Mureed, Gadap,
A, ltural 2.8 A
land griculura Karachi, Pakistan. cre
Offal processing facility Commercial / Plot No. 257, Sector 24, Korangi Industrial Area, 1,066.66 Sq.Yd.

Industrial Karachi, Pakistan.

The area of the processing facility and fattening farm is included in the factory premises.
Revalued leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant, machinery & equipment

Had there assets been recognized under cost model, thus carrying values of these revalued assets
would have been as follows:

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Factory land - Leasehold 247,776,612 247,776,612
Factory building -Leasehold land 360,580,057 379,557,955
Plant and machinery 670,191,914 744,657,682

1,278,548,583 1,371,992,249

The forced sale value of the revalued leasehold land of Rs. 453.395 million , buildings on
leasehold land of Rs. 815.24 million and plant, machinery & equipment of Rs. 596.9 million at the
date of revaluation, respectively.

The fair value measurements of the Company’s its factory leasehold land, building on factory
leasehold land and plant and machinery on March 31, 2023, was carried out by Sipra and Company
(Private) Limited, an independent valuer.

Fair value hierarchy

Details of the Company's land, building and plant and machinery, and information about the fair
value hierarchy of latest revaluation is as follows:

Fair Value as at

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 March 31, 2023

-——- (Rupees) —-
Factory land - Leasehold - 566,744,900 - 566,744,900
Factory building - Leasehold land - 1,086,987,800 - 1,086,987,800
Plant and machinery - - 852,720,000 852,720,000

- 1,653,732,700 852,720,000  2,506,452,700
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5.6

5.6.1

5.6.2

563

5.6.4

5.7

5.8

Fair value measurement

Fair value of property, plant and equipment are based on the valuations carried out by an
independent valuer on the basis of market value.

Fair value of land and building are based on assumptions considered to be level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy due to significant observable inputs used in the valuation, while fair value of plant and
machinery and equipment are considered to be level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to significant
unobservable inputs used in the valuation.

Fair value of land and building has been derived using a sales comparison approach. Sale prices of
comparable land and buildings in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such
as location and size of the property. Moreover value of building also depends upon the type of
construction, age and quality. The most significant input in this valuation approach is price / rate
per square foot in particular locality.

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the fair value is determined by taking into
account the following factors:

- Make, model, country of origin etc.;
- Operational capacity;

- Present physical condition;

- Resale prospects; and

- Obsolescence.

The valuation is considered to be level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to the above unobservable
inputs used in the valuation. Most significant input in this valuation is the current replacement cost
which is adjusted for factors above.

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)

Balance at the beginning of the year 233,985,967 6,755,639

Additions during the year 180,235,986 278,614,943

Transfers during the year 5.8 (352,587,505) (51,384,615)

Balance at the end of the year 61,634,448 233,985,967
Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 178,145,586 150,877,977
Administrative expense 7,902,998 4,512,040

186,048,584 155,390,017
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6.1

6.2

7.1

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Net book value at beginning of the year 6,651,363 8,630,607
Additions during the year - -
Deletions during the year (5,653,659) -
Depreciation expense for the year 6.2 (997,704) (1,979,244)
Net book value at end of the year - 6,651,363

The Company has lease contracts related to motor vehicles with useful lives ranges from (3 to 5
years). The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased
assets.

Depreciation expense related to right-of-use assets has been charged to ‘administrative expense’ in
the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Owned - software 7.1 - 50,004
Work-in-progress - software 2,281,199 2,281,199
2,281,199 2,331,203
Owned - software
Computer Software Total
Net carrying value basis
year ended June 30,2025
Opening net book value 50,004 50,004
Addition (at cost) - -
Disposal (at NBV) - -
Depreciation charged (50,004) (50,004)
Closing net book value - -
Gross carrying value basis
year ended June 30,2025
Cost 500,000 500,000
Accumulated depreciation (500,000) (500,000)
Closing net book value - -
Net carrying value basis
year ended June 30,2024
Opening net book value 150,000 150,000
Addition (at cost) - -
Disposal (at NBV) - -
Depreciation charged (99,996) (99,996)
Closing net book value 50.004 50.004
Gross carrying value basis
year ended June 30,2024
Cost 500,000 500,000
Accumulated depreciation (449,996) (449,996)
Closing net book value 50.004 50.004
Amortization rate (in %) 20 20
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7.2

8.

9.

9.1

10.

Amortization costs of intangible assets have been allocated fully to administrative expenses.

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw material 2,423,940 6,901,060
Finished goods 375,225,614 157,047,063
Packing material 20,303,942 14,993,385
397,953,496 178,941,508
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
Livestock - cattle
Carrying amount at the beginning of year 71,967,600 62,489,961
Additions during the year 524,017,969 460,818,637
Decrease due to consumption/sales (620,165,594) (556,490,039)
Gains arising from changes in fair value 120,741,141 105,149,041
Carrying amount at the end of the year 96,561,116 71,967,600

Fair value hierarchy

Details of the biological assets, and information about the fair value hierarchy of latest revaluation,
which has been based on observable market sales data, using market comparison technique under
which the price is based on the market price of livestock of similar age, weight and market values,

is as follows:

Livestock - Cattle | Levell |[  Level2 || Level3 || FairValue |
———- (Rupees) —-
As at June 30, 2025 - 96,561,116 96,561,116
As at June 30, 2024 - 71,967,600 71,967,600
2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
TRADE DEBTS

Unsecured, considered good

- Trade debts - export 1,731,653,535 2,046,432,181
- Trade debts - local 582,952,139 228,574,490
2,314,605,674 2,275,006,671
Considered doubtful 182,900,056 239,254,351
Trade receivables - gross 2,497,505,730 2,514,261,022
Less: Provision against doubtful debt 10.1 (182,900,056) (239,254,351)
Trade receivables - net 2,314,605,674 2,275,006,671
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2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
10.1 Movement in provision against doubtful debts
Balance at the beginning of the year 239,254,351 204,074,483
Write off during the year (214,992,144) -
Allowance for doubtful debts expected credit loss 158,637,849 35,179,868
Balance at the end of the year 182,900,056 239,254,351

10.4 The aging of export and local receivable balances as at the date of unconsolidated statement of

10.

11

financial position is as follows:

2025 2024
Aging profile Export Local Export Local
(——- Rupees -—-) (——-- Rupees -—-)

Not past due 1,019,466,719 - 1,626,361,846 59,450,020
Past due 1-30 days 240,333,940 281,110,923 202,736,657 12,792,178
Past due 31-60 days 242,253,391 224,079,105 234,062,796 2,760,000
Past due 61-120 days 203,776,325 77,109,465 54,119,405 28,307,498
Past due 121-180 days 157,897,946 - - 113,235,000
Past due 181-360 days 50,652,184 825,732 - 11,833,175
Past due 360 days above - - 168,585,828 16,619

1,914,380,505 583,125,225 2,285,866,532 228,394,490

5 These receivables are being adjusted from the realization of the proceeds on first in first out basis as
payments from customers are received periodically. The sales are made to the customers with pre-
set credit terms and these trade debts are unsecured.

LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured
Loans to employees - considered good 11.1 11,151,158 10,902,572
Advances, considered good
- to suppliers 11.2 149,254,069 41,352,569
- against fixed assets 4,076,081 25,850,982
- against expenses 54,835 607,996
153,384,985 67,811,547
164,536,143 78,714,119
11.1 This balance represents the non-interest bearing unsecured loan given to the employee.
156
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11.2  Advances to suppliers

Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Balance at the end of year

Note

11.2.1

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
149,254,069 41,352,569

- 27,152,270
- (27,152,270)
149,254,069 41,352,569

11.2.1 This represents the amount paid to suppliers against purchase of meat, offal and animals etc.

11.2.2 During the year write off for amounting Rs. 27.152 million.

12.

12.2 Sales tax refundable

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

Rebate receivable - net
Sales tax refundable

Prepayments

Other receivables
Security deposit

12.1 Rebate receivable - net of provision

Balance at the beginning of year

Re-measurement gain / (loss) on financial asset

at amortized cost
Recovery of rebate receivable
Balance at the end of year

Balance at the beginning of year
Input tax paid during the year
Refund from tax authorities
Balance at the end of year
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12.1
12.2

12.3

12.1.1

147,978,605 148,829,501
31,344,939 27,729,436
5,983,205 1,578,541
9,278,905 9,181,430
4,068,063 3,598,758
198,653,717 190,917,666
148,829,501 121,877,554
- 26,951,947

(850,896) -
147,978,605 148,829,501

12.1.1 This represents an amount receivable against drawback of local taxes and levies collected from
exporters of eligible products, vide S.R.O. No. 711(I)/2018 issued by the Ministry of Commerce &
Textile, Commerce Division. The new scheme for financial year 2022 and onwards has not been
announced by the Ministry of Commerce, and therefore has not been accounted for in these
unconsolidated financial statements.

27,729,436 22,916,906
20,976,056 14,133,159
(17,360,552) (9,320,629)
31,344,940 27,729,436
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12.3

13.

13.1

13.2

14.

14.1

This includes an amount of Rs.7.35 million, held as lien by banks on overdue export proceeds. The
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) had, vide its FE Circular No.02 of 2023 dated March 31, 2023,
directed the banks dealing with export proceeds to hold under lien partial remittance after
conversion of proceeds in Pak Rupees based on the timing delays from maximum allowable time
limits, that is 21 days in case of clean (unsecured) export sales and time based delays (number of
days overdue) in case of secured export sales against letter of credits (due acceptance period
expiry). The rates of lien withheld ranged from 3% to 9% of the net proceeds realised. The State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has established a process for refunds of these lien marked funds and
following that process, the Company has applied for and received refunds out of the amount
marked under lien, subsequent to the date of unconsolidated statement of financial position.

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 643,352 195,762
Balances with banks
- current accounts 13.1 91,174,093 70,099,200
- saving accounts 13.2 356,230,738 277,428,175
447,404,831 347,527,375
448,048,183 347,723,137

This balance includes the balance in the dividend accounts.

The rates of markup on savings accounts during the year ranged from 11.50% to 18.50% per anum
(2024: 20.50% to 22.50% per anum).

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2025 2024
Number of shares
Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

91,817,777 61,817,777 - Fully paid in cash 918,177,770 618,177,770
86,673,436 86,673,436 - Issued as bonus shares 866,734,362 866,734,362
178.491.213 148,491,213 1,784.912.132 1,484.912.132

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding

2025 2024
Number of shares
Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

148,491,213 134,992,012 At the beginning of the year 1,484,912,132 1,349,920,120
30,000,000 - - Issued as right shares 300,000,000 -

- 13,499,201 - Issued as bonus shares - 134,992,012

178.491.213 148.491.213 1,784.912,132 1,484.912,132
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14.2

15.

16.

16.1

16.2

These fully paid ordinary shares of the Company carry one vote per share and an equal right of

entitlement to dividends.

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET OF TAX
Balance as at July 01 941,489,490 1,011,150,446

Surplus on revaluation during the year
Transfer to unappropriated profit in respect

of incremental depreciation charged during the year (58,765,268) (69,660,956)
Balance as at June 30 882,724,222 941,489,490
Related deferred tax liability
Balance as at July 01 (92,661,848) -
Charge on surplus for the year - (66,887,294)
Incremental depreciation charged during the year 21,743,149 (25,774,554)
(70,918,699) (92,661,848)
Balance as at June 30 811,805,523 848,827,642
LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Samba Bank Limited 16.1 - 21,084,858
Al-Baraka Bank Limited 16.2 - 47,677,301
- 68,762,159
Less: Current maturity long term borrowings - (24,557,949)
Non-current portion of long-term borrowing - 44,204,210

The Company had obtained State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) Temporary Economic Refinance
Facility for the purpose of capital expenditure, which carries mark-up at SBP's prescribed rate of
1% plus bank's spread of 4% for a tenor of five years. The facility was secured by way of first
equitable mortgage over land and building amounting Rs.153 million and specific charge over plant
and machinery amounting Rs.114 million respectively, located at Korangi offal processing facility.
During the year, the Company has fully settled this facility through utilization of proceeds received
from right issue of its shares.

The Company has obtained long term loan financing under Diminishing Musharka, for the
purposes of capital expenditure which is secured by way of first exclusive charge over specific
fixed assets which comprise of land and fattening farm sheds, located at Gadap factory, amounting
Rs. 145.83 million, and personal guarantees of directors. It carried mark-up at the rate of one-year
KIBOR plus 2.5%. The loan had a tenor of five years including a grace period of one year, with 48
equal quarterly principal installments. During the year, the Company has fully settled this
diminishing musharaka facility through utilization of funds received from right issue of its shares.
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17.

17.1

18.

18.1

LEASE LIABILITIES

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions / net transfers during the year
Interest expense

Repaid / adjusted during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Current portion of lease liabilities
Non-current portion of lease liabilities

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees

4,004,707 5,992,876

- 194,720

623,137 1,240,590
(4,627,844) (3,423,479)

- 4,004,707
- (2,014,011)

- 1,990,696

The amount of future payments of the lease and the period in which these payments will become due are as

follows:

Less than 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation comprises of:

Taxable temporary differences:
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment

Accelerated tax depreciation allowance

Right-of-use assets

Gains arising from changes in fair value on

biological assets

Unrealised exchange gains on trade debtors

Remeasurement gain on rebate receivable
Gross deferred tax liabilities

Deductible temporary differences:

Provision against doubtful debt

Provision against doubtful advances

Provision for gratuity

Accrued markup

Lease liabilities

Balance at the beginning of year

Deferred tax income to profit or loss

Deferred tax expense to other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of year
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- 2,014,011

- 1,990,696

] 4,004,707
70,918,699 92,661,348
22,710,500 29,645,344

- 2,461,004

3,004,292 41,963,419

5,668,922 2,656,730

- 9,620,000

102,302,412 179,008,345

50,186,004 88,739,906

- 10,046,339
4,978,162 -
6,689,178 -

- 1,481,741
61,853,344 100,267,986
40,449,068 78,740,359
78,740,359 -

(16,548,142) (13,921,489)
(21,743,149) 92,661,848
40,449,068 78,740,359




19.

20.

Up to and including Tax Year (TY) 2024 (year ended 30 June 2024), the Company’s export income
was subject to Final Tax Regime (FTR) and no deferred tax was recognized on income subject to
FTR. Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2024 (enacted on 29 June 2024), tax collected on export
proceeds is now treated as minimum tax and export income falls under the Normal Tax Regime
(NTR) with effect from 1 July 2024. Accordingly, exporters are required to compute normal
taxable income and pay incremental tax where normal tax exceeds minimum tax.

Consistent with [IAS 12.47, deferred tax is measured using tax laws/rates enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Because the Finance Act, 2024 was enacted before 30 June 2024,
deferred tax has been recognized at 30 June 2024 (TY 2024) for temporary differences expected to
reverse under NTR.

Further, in line with ICAP’s “IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes
and Final Taxes” (Circular 07/2024), levies that are not computed on “taxable profit” (e.g.,
FTR/minimum taxes) are accounted for under IAS 37/IFRIC 21; this does not affect deferred tax
recognition, which follows IAS 12. TR-27 was withdrawn in favour of this guidance.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets (DTAs) are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax is measured using the rates expected to
apply when the related assets are realized or liabilities settled, based on tax laws/rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date (currently the corporate tax rate applicable to the
Company; surcharges/“super tax” are considered to the extent they are part of enacted profit-based
income taxes expected to apply on reversal).

Under the minimum tax regime, DTAs continue to be recognized and measured based on normal
income-tax rates; however, recoverability is assessed considering whether the Company expects to
remain in minimum-tax positions (i.c., only the portion expected to be realized against tax on future
taxable profits in excess of minimum tax is recognized).

DEFERRED LIABILITY ON ACQUISITION OF SHARES

As per the share purchase agreement between the Holding Company and share holders of
Mohammad Saeed Mohammad Hussain Limited (MSMHL), the amounts represent deferred
consideration for acquisition of shares of MSMHL. The full amount is paid to MSMHL during the
year.

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Financial Institutions 504,898,603 805,000,000
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20.1

21.

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Financial Institutions
HBL Bank Limited 124,898,603 125,000,000
Samba Bank Limited - 100,000,000
Faysal Bank Limited - 100,000,000
Al-Baraka Bank Limited 180,000,000 180,000,000
Soneri Bank Limited - 100,000,000
National Bank of Pakistan 200,000,000 200,000,000
504,898,603 805,000,000
20.2  Details of borrowings from financial institutions are as follows:
[ Name of Institution | Facility Name [ 2025 [ 2024 ] Rate | Purpose [Security
(Rs. In million) %
HBL Bank Limited i) Running finance 68.9 70.0 6MK + 2% Working Capital Joint Pari Passu hypothecation charge of Rs.156 million
i) Export refinance facility 55 55 3MK + 2% Working Capital registered with SECP over existing and future stocks and
receivables with 25% margin, lien on export documents
and proceeds with 10% margin, Joint Pari Passu
Hypothecation charge over Plant and Machinery to the
extent of Rs. 143 million. Joint Pari Passu charge over land
and Building to the extent of Rs. 57 million and personal
guarantees of all directors having 10% or more
sharcholding.

Al-Baraka Bank Limited i) Istisna 100 100 6MK + 2% Working capital Joint Pari Passu charge by way of equitable mortgage over

ii) Murabahah 80 80 6MK + 2% Working Capital land and buildings up to the extent of Rs. 57 million, joint
pari passu charge by way of hypothecation charge over
plant and machinery up to the extent of Rs. 143 million and
on current assets to the extent of Rs. 225 million and by
way of personal guarantees of two directors of the
Conpany.

National Bank of Pakistan Running finance 200 200 6MK+1.5% Working capital First Joint Pari Passu charge over the Company's fixed
assets , which includes land and buildings up to the extent
of Rs.100 million, plant and machinery up to the extent of
Rs.300 million, and on current assets to the extent of
Rs.400 million and by way of personal guarantees of
directors of the Company having 10% or more
sharcholding.

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 9,083,862 18,825,585
Workers' profit participation fund payable 21.1 80,454,534 80,454,534
Workers' welfare fund payable 21.1 12,445,544 12,445,544
Payable to contractors 11,318,572 6,857,133
Salaries, benefits and allowances payable 16,015,579 19,969,717
Audit fee payable 2,930,264 1,894,240

132,248,355 140,446,753

21.1

The Company has provided for the Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) and Workers'
Welfare Fund (WWF) liability till December 31, 2022. The Company, effective January 1, 2023,
has ceased to provide for the provisioning of these statutory obligations based on the premise that
as an agricultural producer the provisions of the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund Act, 2021 and the
Sindh Companies Profits (Workers' Participation) Act, 2015 do not apply to it.
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22,

23.

24,

24.1

24.1.1

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees
ACCRUED MARK-UP
On long-term borrowing - secured - 1,029,971
On short-term borrowing - secured 18,078,859 59,118,649
18,078,859 60,148,620

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

This represents part of final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2020, which remained unpaid to
the shareholders, who have not provided valid documentation to claim dividend.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The Company has received notice from Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) for recovery of
workers welfare fund contribution amounting to Rs. 2.115 million and Rs. 3.433 million pertaining
to financial years 2023 and 2022 respectively. The Company has filed and secured stay against
demand recovery proceedings by paying 10% of the departmental demand and has filed a case with
the Sindh revenue board Sindh workers welfare fund appellate commissioner pleading that the
SWWEF act 2016 does not apply to the company on the premise that the Company is an agricultural
undertaking and does not qualify the definition of industrial undertaking. The management is
confident that based on the nature of the Company's business and agriculture based operations, no
further liability for SWWF and Sindh Workers' Profit Participation Fund (SWPPF) shall crystalize.

24.1.2 The Company has filed Suit No. 1063/2024, M/s The Organic Meat Company Limited vs.

24.2

Federation of Pakistan, before the competent court. The matter relates to a demand raised by
Employees' Old-Age Benefits Institution (EOBI) for recovery of contributions in respect of
approximately 250 employees. The Company, under protest, issued cheques towards the said
demand; however, it maintains that as an agricultural produce entity, EOBI contributions are not
applicable to it. Accordingly, the Company instituted legal proceedings challenging the recovery. A
stay order has been granted, restraining the encashment of the cheques. The next hearing in the
matter is scheduled for October 9, 2025. Management, in consultation with its legal advisors,
believes that it has a reasonable position in the case and is actively monitoring the proceedings.

Commitments

24.2.1 Commitments against capital expenditure

Commitments in respect of letter of
credits and purchase order for capital - 60,389,498

24.2.2 The Company has entered into shariah compliant [jarah arrangements for vehicles with bank.

Aggregate commitments for these [jarah arrangements as at reporting date are Rs. 17.570 million
(2024: nil).
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25.

251

25.2

26.

26.1

SALES - NET

Export sales
Local sales

Note

25.1

2025
Rupees

8,132,507,417
5,873,557,463

2024
Rupees

11,288,060,215

509,694,289

14,006,064,880

11,797,754,504

This includes sales of biological assets, amounting to Rs. 51.29 million (2024: Rs. 20.32 million).

Geographical wise export sales as follows:

Location

United Arab Emirates

China

Kingdom of Suadi Arabia

Vietnam
Oman
Qattar
Maldives
Uzebekistan
Hong Kong
Canada
Others

COST OF SALES

Finished goods at the beginning of the year

Cost of goods available for sale
Finished goods at the end of the year

Cost of goods available for sale

26.1

Raw material and livestock purchased and

consumed

Depreciation

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Animal feed and other consumables
Fuel and power

Cutting and deboning

Packing materials consumed
Repairs and maintenance

5.8

26.2

26.3
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4,567,748,372
1,360,373,102
1,005,575,477
773,595,975
181,155,435
122,960,477
90,731,471
23,193,466
5,014,800
1,657,933
500,910

7,212,018,578
538,502,582
1,908,096,755
775,514,345
359,765,794
11,477,788
48,722,701
284,108,547
63,269,814
4,066,116
82,517,194

8,132,507,417

11,288,060,215

157,047,063

12,942,701,406

(375,225,614)

240,223,889

10,135,536,904

(157,047,063)

12,724,522,855

10,218,713,730

11,691,001,055

9,041,166,190

178,145,586 150,877,977
195,306,431 145,143,662
140,349,657 81,362,964
270,796,572 231,427,991

85,289,069 135,776,075
218,646,828 236,466,529
125,838,830 81,614,561
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Transportation
Insurance

Printing and stationary
Janitorial expense
Communication expense

26.2 Animal feed and other consumables

Opening stock
Purchases of animal feed
Closing stock

26.3 Packing materials consumed

Opening stock
Purchases of packing material
Closing stock

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, benefits and other allowances

Fee and subscription

Food and entertainment

Legal and professional
Depreciation

Amortization

Repair and maintenance

[jarah rentals

Travelling

Insurances

Security services

Depreciation on right of use assets
Printing and stationery

Auditors' remuneration

Vehicle running and maintenances
Donation and charity

Others

Note

5.8
7.1

27.1

27.2
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2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
10,671,649 9,699,433
5,511,260 4,125,074
1,923,609 2,571,245
17,818,202 13,999,303
1,402,658 1,305,900

1,251,700,351

1,094,370,714

12,942,701,406

10,135,536,904

5,138,234 2,413,289
137,474,407 84,087,909
(2,262,984) (5,138,234)
140,349,657 81,362,964
14,993,385 2,156,455
223,957,385 249,303,459
(20,303,942) (14,993.385)
218,646,828 236,466,529
101,605,414 88,429,726
58,810,768 22,530,670
39,212,804 24,053,156
4,598,765 1,996,178
7,902,998 4,512,040
50,004 99,996
763,000 969,910
15,944,173 -
543,800 2,213,398
5,271,690 2,986,538
5,983,775 3,778,303
997,705 1,979,244
4,231,526 1,691,642
4,154,677 2,753,064
16,355,994 12,642,824
2,659,825 2,635,270
768,227 -
269,855,145 173,271,959
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271

27.2  This includes donations paid to Apna Dastarkhuwan and Madarsa Darul Uloom Islamia amounting
to Rs. 0.4 million (2024: Rs. 1.2 million) and Rs. 1.4 million (2024: Rs. 1.17 million) respectively.

Auditor's remuneration

Statutory audit fee - standalone
Statutory audit fee - consolidation
Half yearly review

Certifications

Code of corporate governance
Out of pocket expenses

Note

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees

1,896,000 1,580,000
700,000 -
720,000 600,000
237,000 130,000
153,600 128,000
448,077 315,064

4,154,677 2,753,064

27.2.1 None of the directors or their spouse have any interest in the donees.

28.

29.

30.

SELLING EXPENSES

Clearing and forwarding charges
Quarantine charges

Export duties

Business development

FINANCE COSTS

Markup on long term finance
Markup on short term finance
Interest on lease liability

Bank charges

OTHER INCOME / (LOSS)

Income from financial assets

Re-measurement gain on financial assets

carried at amortized cost
Exchange gain /(loss)
Profit on pls account

Income from non-financial assets
Gain on biological assets-net
Other income

(Loss) / gain on disposal of fixed assets
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30.1

277,569,674 494,318,062
34,052,195 46,836,798
28,202,678 39,902,754

- 540,620
339,824,547 581,598,234
8,585,134 14,334,700
130,976,102 199,776,889
623,137 1,240,590
13,589,218 16,134,366
153,773,591 231,486,545
- 26,951,947
41,063,226 (67,347,018)
26,033,350 18,235,787
67,096,576 (22,159,284)
152,440,303 105,149,041
3,654,963 1,244,714
(77,166) 2,782,546
156,018,100 109,176,301
223,114,676 87,017,017

166



30.1

31.

31.1.

32.

32.1

33.

33.1

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees
Exchange Gain / (Loss)
Realized gain / (loss) 22,146,666 (74,527,368)
Unrealized gain 18,916,560 7,180,350
41,063,226 (67,347,018)
LEVY
Income tax levy under IFRIC 21/IAS 37 31.1 - 161,069,370

This represents final taxes paid under Section 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO, 2001),
representing levy in terms of requirement of IFRIC21/IAS 37.

TAXATION
Current (136,028,878) 92,661,848
Deferred (40,449,068) (78,740,359)
(176,477,946) 13,921,489
Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Accounting profit for the year 582,565,569 644,521,185
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2024: 29%) 168,944,015 186,911,144
Super tax @ 8% (2024: 8%) 46,605,246 51,561,695

Tax effect of permanent differences

Others (400,822,107) (224,551,349)

(176,477,946) 13,921,489
2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
(Restated)
EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit for the year attributable to the

ordinary shareholders Rupees 406,087,623 497,373,304

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding during the year Number 155,991,213 148,491,213

Basic and diluted earnings per share Rupees 2.60 3.35

During the year, 20.203% right shares were issued (i.e. 30,000,000 shares) by the Company.
Accordingly, the weighted average number of ordinary shares for the corresponding year (i.e. Year
2024) have been re-stated.
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33.2

34.

3S.

There is no dilutive effect on the earnings per share of the Company, as it does not have any

convertible instruments as at June 30, 2025 and 2024.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Short term borrowings -
financial institutions
Cash and bank balances

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before levies and taxation
Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation on right of use assets
Deletion of right of use assets
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Amortization expense
Provision against trade debtors
Finance costs
Unrealised exchange gain on trade debtors
Un-realized gain on biological assets
Profit on savings account

Working capital changes
Stock-in-trade
Store and spares
Biological assets
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Deposits and prepayments and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Cash generated from operating activities
Tax and levies paid
Finance costs paid
Net cash generated from operating activities
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Note

20
13

5.8

30
7.1
10.1
29
30.1
30
30

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
(504,898,603) (805,000,000)
448,048,183 347,723,137
(56,850,420) (457,276,863)
582,565,569 644,521,185
186,048,584 155,390,017
997,705 1,979,244
5,653,659 -
77,166 (1,244,714)
50,004 99,996
158,637,849 35,179,868
623,137 231,486,545
(18,916,560) (7,180,350)

(120,741,141)
(26,033,350)

(21,379,694)
(18,235,787)

768,962,622 1,020,616,310
(219,011,988) 57,988,846
2,875,250 2,725,045
96,147,625 11,902,055
(123,036,738) (37,229,406)
(85,822,024) 274,501,108
(7,736,051) (34,424,366)
(8,198,398) 5,192,855
1,344,304 3,024,916
425,524,602 1,304,297,363
(84,229,399) (119,538,361)
(195,843,352) (215,019,507)
145,451,851 969,739,495
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36.

36.1

36.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Risk management policies

The Company’s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of sharecholders’
value. Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, but it is managed through a process of
ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls.
The process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The
Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (which includes interest rate
risk and price risk) arising from the financial instruments it holds.

The Board of Directors / Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance
with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit
Committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both
regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the Audit Committee.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working
capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to
minimize risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if
counter parties fail to perform as contracted and arises principally from trade and other
receivables. The Company’s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter
parties in accordance with the internal guidelines and regulatory requirements.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposures. The
accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties failed to
perform as contracted. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of
financial assets amounting to Rs. 2,962 million (2024: Rs. 2,819 million).

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Trade debts 2,314,605,674 2,275,006,671
Loans to employees 11,151,158 10,902,572
Duty drawback 147,978,605 148,829,501
Sales tax refundable 31,344,939 27,729,436
Other receivables 9,278,905 9,181,430
Cash and bank balances 448,048,183 347,723,137

2,962,407,464 2,819,372,747
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36.3

The Company monitors its exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis at various level. The
Company believes that it is not exposed to any major credit risk as it operates in an essential
commodity industry, and its customer are organizations and individuals with good credit
history.

The credit quality of the bank balances can be assessed with reference to the recent external
credit ratings assigned to these banks where such balances are maintained. The long-term credit
ratings of such banks are categorized below:

Bank Rating Agency Long term Short term
Allied Bank Limited PACRA AAA Al+
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited VIS AA- Al
JS Bank Limited PACRA AA Al+
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA AA+ -
Meezan Bank Limited VIS AAA Al+
Askari Bank Limited PACRA AA Al+
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA AAA Al+
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited VIS AA Al+
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA AA A-1
Habib Bank Limited VIS AAA A-1
MCB Bank Limited PACRA AAA Al+
National Bank of Pakistan PACRA AAA Al+
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA AA- Al+
United Bank Limited VIS AAA A-1
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited PACRA AA- Al
MCB Islamic Bank Limited PACRA A+ Al
Telenor Microfinance Bank PACRA A+ Al
Bank of Punjab PACRA AA+ Al+
Bank of Khyber VIS A+ Al
Bank of China Fitch A Fl1+
Samba Bank Limited PACRA AA Al

As at reporting period the Company helds amount of Rs. 93.169 million in the shariah
compliant institution.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet
contractual obligation to be similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or other
conditions. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far
as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stress conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Company's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities,

including interest payments, if any:
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36.4

The Company's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as summarised below:

Less than 6 6to 12 1to5
On demand
months months years Total
2025 (Rupees)
Interest bearing financial liabilities
Lease liabilities - - - - -
Short-term financing - - 504,898,603 - 504,898,603
Accrued mark-up - - 18,078,859 - 18,078,859
Non-interest bearing financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - 132,248,355 - 132,248,355
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 42,146,190 - - 42,146,190
Unclaimed dividend 350,727 - - - 350,727
350,727 42,146,190 655,225,817 - 697,722,734
On demand Less than 6 6to 12 1to5
months months years Total
2024 (Rupees)
Interest bearing financial liabilities
Long-term financing - - 24,557,949 44,204,210 68,762,159
Lease Liabilitics - - 2,014,011 1,990,696 4,004,707
Short-term financing - - 805,000,000 - 805,000,000
Accrued mark-up - - 60,148,620 - 60,148,620
Non-interest bearing financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - 56,386,762 92,900,078 - 149,286,840
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 46,612,869 - - 46,612,869
Deferred liability on acquisition of shares - - 37,714,296 - 37,714,296
Unclaimed dividend 376,786 - - - 376,786
376,786 102,999,631 1,022,334,954 46,194,906 1,171,906,277

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The Company is not exposed to price risk.

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or a financial liability will
fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and
payables exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. The Company's exposure to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date is as follows:

30 June 30 June
2025 2024
el U ) e
USD
Bank balance 9,780 8,107
Trade debts 6,596,105 7,659,110
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b)

The exchange rate taken for unconsolidated statement of financial position is the rate applicable
for LC's as at June 30,2025. The following significant exchange rate was applied during the
year:

Average rate Year-end spot rate
2025 2024 2025 2024
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
USD 281.77 278.44 284.10 278.80

A ten percent strengthening / weakening of the Pakistani Rupee against the above foreign
currencies at the reporting date would increase / decrease profit before tax for the year by Rs.
187.673 million (2024: Rs. 213.762 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the
previous year.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Company's interest rate exposure arises on
long-term and deposits with banks. At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the
Company’s interest-bearing financial instrument was as follows:

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
----- Carrying amounts -----

Fixed rate instruments

Bank balance - saving account 356,230,738 277,428,175
Variable rate instruments

Long term borrowings - 68,762,159

Lease liability - 4,004,707

Short term borrowings 504,898,603 805,000,000

Sensitivity analysis

A change of 100 basis points (1%) in interest rate at the reporting date would have changed the
Company's profit before tax for the year by the amounts shown below, with all other variables
held constant.

1% 1%
(1,486,679) (6,003,387)

Change in interest rate
Effect on

[+ I+
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36.5

Financial instruments

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities by

categories:
2025 2024
Financial assets 'Fil.la'n.cml Financial assets 'Fu'u%n'clal
at amortised cost llabll.mes at Total at amortised cost llalll'll‘les at Total
amortised cost amortised cost
Note (—— Rupees -—-) (—-- Rupees -—---)
Financial assets
Trade debts 10 2,314,605,674 - 2,314,605,674 2,275,006,671 - 2,275,006,671
Loans to employees 11 11,151,158 - 11,151,158 10,902,572 - 10,902,572
Duty drawback 12 147,978,605 - 147,978,605 148,829,501 - 148,829,501
Sales taxrefundable 12 31,344,939 - 31,344,939 27,729,436 - 27,729,436
Other receivables 12 9,278,905 - 9,278,905 9,181,430 - 9,181,430
Cash and bank balances 13 448,048,183 - 448,048,183 347,723,137 - 347,723,137
2,962,407,464 - 2,962,407,464 2,819,372,747 - 2,819,372,747
Financial liabilities

Long term borrowings - secured 16 - - - 68,762,159 68,762,159
Lease liability 17 - - - 4,004,707 4,004,707
Deferred liability on acquisition of shares - - - 37,714,296 37,714,296
Short term borrowings - secured 20 - 504,898,603 504,898,603 805,000,000 805,000,000
Trade and other payables 21 - 132,248,355 132,248,355 149,286,840 149,286,840
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 42,146,190 42,146,190 46,612,869 46,612,869
Accrued mark-up 22 - 18,078,859 18,078,859 60,148,620 60,148,620
Unclaimed dividend - 350,727 350,727 376,786 376,786
- 697,722,734 697,722,734 1,171,906,277 1,171,906,277

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:

2025
Other Short 08 term
borrowings
term including
inc
borrowings . Unclaimed
including ) deferred Lease liability dividend Total
income and
markup
markup
thereon
thereon
Balance as at July 01, 2024 864,118,649 69,792,130 4,004,707 376,786 938,292,272
Changes from financing cash flows:
Repayments of long termborrowings (490,196,148) (78,377,264) - - (568,573,412)
Proceeds fromlong term borrowings - - - - -
Lease rentals paid - - (4,627,844) - (4,627,844)
Dividend paid - - - (26,059) (26,059)
Changes in short term borrowings
relating to financing activities - - - - -
Total changes from financing activities (490,196,148) (78,377,264) (4,627,844) (26,059) (573,227,315)
Other changes:
Addition to lease - - - - -
Amortisation of government grant - - - - -
Finance cost 130,976,102 8,585,134 623,137 - 140,184,373
Finance cost paid - - - - -
Total loan related other changes 130,976,102 8,585,134 623,137 - 140,184,373
Total equity related other changes - - - - -
Balance as at June 30, 2025 504,898,603 - - 350,727 505,249,330
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37.

2024

Other Short Long t?'rm
borrowings
term including
borrowings R Unclaimed
including ) deferred Lease liability dividend Total
income and
markup
markup
thereon
thereon
Balance as at July 01, 2023 901,632,150 92,280,658 5,992,876 615,760 1,000,521,444
Changes from financing cash flows:
Repayments of long term borrowings (96,632,150) (23,112,129) - - (119,744,279)
Proceeds fromlong term borrowings - - - - -
Lease rentals paid - - (3,423,479) - (3,423,479)
Dividend paid - - - (238,974) (238,974)
Changes in short term borrowings
relating to financing activities - - - - -
Total changes from financing activities (96,632,150) (23,112,129) (3,423,479) (238,974) (123,406,732)
Other changes:
Addition to lease - - 194,720 - 194,720
Amortisation of government grant - - - - -
Finance cost 199,776,889 14,334,700 - - 214,111,589
Finance cost paid - - 1,240,590 - 1,240,590
Total loan related other changes 199,776,889 14,334,700 1,435,310 - 215,546,899
Total equity related other changes - - - - -
Balance as at June 30, 2024 1,004,776,889 83,503,229 4,004,707 376,786 1,092,661,611

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern
and there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to
undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements
and fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements of fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset either directly that is, derived from prices.

- Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data ( that

is, unadjusted) inputs.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy is recognised at the end of the reporting
period during which the changes have occurred. The carrying values of all other financial assets
and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
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38.

39.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors
monitor the return on capital, which the Company defines as net profit after taxation divided by
total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitor the level of dividend to ordinary
shareholders. There were no changes to the Company's approach to capital management during
the year and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

(1 to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
and

(i) to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The management at all times seeks to earn returns higher than its weighted average cost of
capital, by increasing efficiencies in operations, so as to increase profitability.

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
Long term borrowings - secured 16 - 68,762,159
Lease liabilities 17 - 4,004,707
Short term borrowings - secured 20 504,898,603 805,000,000
Accrued mark-up 22 18,078,859 60,148,620
Gross debt 522,977,462 937,915,486
Less: Cash and bank balances 13 (448,048,183) (347,723,137)
Net debt 74,929,279 590,192,349
Total shareholder's equity 6,160,309,797 4,944,222 174
Equity and net debt 6,235,239,076 5,534,414,523

Gearing ratio (%)

OPERATING SEGMENTS

1%

11%

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment. The
principal classes of products are meat and offal. All non-current assets of the Company as at
June 30, 2025 are located in Pakistan.
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40.

40.1

40.2

41.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND
EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in the unconsolidated financial statements for remuneration,
including certain benefits to the chief executive officer, executive & non executive directors and
executives of the Company are as follows:

Chief Executive Directors Executives Total
Officer
Rupees
2025
Managerial remuneration 26,307,915 15,000,000 34,493,595 75,801,510
Other benefits 1,120,518 1,120,518 7,043,256 9,284,292
Board meeting fee - 1,110,000 - 1,110,000
27,428,433 17,230,518 41,536,851 86,195,802
Number of person(s) 1 7 13
2024
Managerial remuneration 24,014,000 15,225,000 35,550,826 74,789,826
Other benefits 1,134,000 1,125,000 7,630,200 9,889,200
Board meeting fee - 1,109,000 - 1,109,000
25,148,000 17,459,000 43,181,026 85,788,026
Number of person(s) 1 7 12

Executive means an employee, other than the Chief Executive Officer and the Directors, whose
basic salary exceeds twelve hundred thousand Rupees in a financial year.

The Chief Executive Officer, Executive Directors and certain Executives of the Company are
also provided with Company maintained cars.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise principal shareholders and their affiliates, directors, companies
with common directors and key management personnel. Remuneration of key management
personnel are in accordance with their terms of engagements. Transactions with other related
parties are entered into, at the rates negotiated with them.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, including any
director (whether executive or otherwise) of the Company. The Company in the normal course
of business carries any transaction with various related parties.

Details of significant transactions and balances at year end with related parties as at year end or

remained during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these
unconsolidated financial statements, are as follows:
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41.1

41.2

Transactions during the year

Name of related party

Mr. Faisal Hussain
Mr. Ali Hussain

Sindh Gas Company (Private)
Limited

Mohammad Saeed Mohammad
Hussain Limited

Shaikh Hamid Asghar

Farooq Saeed

Zain Farooq

Amna Hafeez Mastoor

Ali Hussain

Key management personnel

Non-executive directors
Balance at the end of year

Sindh Gas Company (Private)

Limited

Shaikh Hamid Asghar

Farooq Saeed

Zain Farooq

Ali Hussain

Relationship
Chief Executive

Officer
Executive Director

Associate (Common
Directorship)

Associate (Common
Directorship)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Executives other
than CEO and
Directors

Directors

Associate (Common
Directorship)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Nature

Salary
Salary

Purchase of goods

Sales

Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL

Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL

Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL

Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL

Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL

Salary and other
benefits

Fees

Trade and other
payables

Payable against
share purchase of
MSMHL
Payable against
share purchase of
MSMHL
Payable against
share purchase of
MSMHL
Payable against
share purchase of
MSMHL
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2025 2024
Rupees Rupees

26,307,915 24,014,000
15,000,000 15,225,000
1,417,283 2,493,840

- 9,892,250
9,428,572 14,857,140
9,428,572 14,857,140
9,428,572 14,857,140

- 72,857,144
9,428,572 14,857,140
41,536,851 43,181,026
1,110,000 1,109,000

- 170,069

- 9,428,572

- 9,428,572

- 9,428,572

- 9,428,572
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42.

43.

44.

45.

45.1

46.

2025 2024

Numbers Numbers
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Permanent employees 42 51
Daily wagers 310 329
Total employees as at the year end 352 380
Average number of employees during the year 366 332

UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHT ISSUE SHARES

. . Actual Right Issue Under/(Over)
Funds R d Allocati
Description un equire ocation Expenditure Funds Utilized Spent
-— Rupees -— %o -— Rupees —- -—-—- Rupees -
Purpose of the Issue
Beef Tripe Cooking (Heat Treated) & Red
. . 260,000,000 32.10% 50,000,000 260,000,000 210,000,000
Offals Processinf Unit
Additional Working Capital
UAE Meat (MAP, Fresh & Frozen) & Red
. 100,000,000 12.35% 100,000,000 100,000,000
Offal Export
Backend Fattenning 100,000,000 12.35% 100,000,000 100,000,000 -
High-Cost Debt Reduction with Banks 350,000,000 43.21% 346,920,000 350,000,000 3,080,000
Total 810,000,000 100.00% 596,920,001 810,000,000 213,080,000

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the
purpose of comparison and for better presentation.

2025 2024
PRODUCTION CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION
Installed slaughtering capacity (heads) 240,000 240,000
Actual slaughtering capacity (heads) 97,851 93,645
Capacity utilization (%) 41% 39%

Actual production of the Company was sufficient to meet the customers' demand.
GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee unless otherwise stated.
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47. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025 were authorized for
issue on 27 Sep 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

U kgt Ui A, }/)W

Chief Executive Officer Director Chiéf Financial Officer ;(,-,
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INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

REGISTERED OFFICE

The Organic Meat Company Limited
Survey # 310, Deh Shah Mureed Gadap, Karachi - Pakistan
Tel: +92-21-35059969, +92-21-35079969

Email: info@tomclnet

SHARE REGISTRAR
CorpTec Associates (Pvt.) Limited

Corporate Consultant
503-E, Johar Town, Lahore

Email: info@corptec.com.pk Website: www.corptec.com.pk

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Mr. Imran Khan

Email: cs@tomcl.net

INVESTOR COMPLAINTS

For any complaints you may email at: investorcomplaint@tomclnet

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

The Company follows the period of July 1 to June 30 as the Financial Year. For the Financial Year

2025-2026, financial results will be announced as per the following tentative schedule:
1st Quarter ending September 30, 2025 last week of October 2026

Half Year ending December 31, 2025 2" week of February 2026

3rd Quarter ending March 31, 2026 Last week of April 2027

Year ending June 30, 2026 Last week of September 2027
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LISTING

Ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

STOCK CODE
The stock code for trading in ordinary shares of the Company at the Pakistan Stock Exchange is

TOMCL.

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

The Company is in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2017, which replaced
by the Companies Ordinance 1984, as well as circulars/mandates issued thereunder, the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Regulations of the Securities and

Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the Listing Rules of the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

BOOK CLOSURE
Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 14, 2025 to October 27, 2025

(both days inclusive).
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Pattern of Shareholding

[Pursuant to Section 227(2)(f) of the Companies Act, 2017 read with
Regulation 30 of the Companies Regulations, 2024]

PART -1
1.1 Name of The Company The Organic Meat Company Limited
| PART-II |
2.1 Pattern of Holding of the Shares held by the Shareholders as at :June 30, 2025
2.2 No. of Shareholders Shareholding Total Shares held
From To
1,142 1 100 41,665
1,208 101 500 381,870
1,157 501 1,000 938,550(|
2,100 1,001 5,000 5,471,243
625 5,001 10,000 4,807,473
236 10,001 15,000 2,993,955
130 15,001 20,000 2,376,201
116 20,001 25,000 2,695,790
68 25,001 30,000 1,935,424
37 30,001 35,000 1,201,157
29 35,001 40,000 1,108,596
18 40,001 45,000 781,045
44 45,001 50,000 2,147,632
13 50,001 55,000 689,327
15 55,001 60,000 880,765
11 60,001 65,000 689,259
8 65,001 70,000 555,900(|
4 70,001 75,000 294,570
5 75,001 80,000 392,007,
4 80,001 85,000 322,700
3 85,001 90,000 269,172
4 90,001 95,000 371,835
17 95,001 100,000 1,695,500
3 100,001 105,000 312,471
7 105,001 110,000 760,036
1 110,001 115,000 115,000
4 115,001 120,000 472,896
3 120,001 125,000 371,000
2 125,001 130,000 253,213
3 130,001 135,000 401,300
1 135,001 140,000 138,834
1 140,001 145,000 140,500(|
3 145,001 150,000 450,000
2 150,001 155,000 302,225
2 155,001 160,000 316,552
2 160,001 165,000 329,289
2 165,001 170,000 338,729)|
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4 170,001 175,000
1 180,001 185,000 180,304
1 190,001 195,000 192,000
3 195,001 200,000 600,000
2 200,001 205,000 407,606
1 235,001 240,000 239,798
2 245,001 250,000 500,000
1 265,001 270,000 268,756
1 275,001 280,000 276,741
1 285,001 290,000 286,000
1 295,001 300,000 299,091
1 340,001 345,000 342,237,
2 345,001 350,000 700,000
1 350,001 355,000 352,383
1 365,001 370,000 368,00
2 395,001 400,000 799,890
1 400,001 405,000 404,071
1 430,001 435,000 433,543
2 445,001 450,000 895,297]|
1 455,001 460,000 455,344
1 460,001 465,000 464,777
2 495,001 500,000 998,000
1 515,001 520,000 515,464,
1 540,001 545,000 545,000
1 585,001 590,000 587,997,
1 595,001 600,000 600,000
1 610,001 615,000 615,000(|
1 615,001 620,000 620,000(|
1 620,001 625,000 623,500
1 630,001 635,000 632,385
2 760,001 765,000 1,525,686
1 790,001 795,000 791,444
3 995,001 1,000,000 3,000,000
1 1,195,001 1,200,000 1,200,000]|
1 1,455,001 1,460,000 1,456,000
1 1,495,001 1,500,000 1,500,000
1 2,570,001 2,575,000 2,572,752
1 2,625,001 2,630,000 2,627,500
1 3,210,001 3,215,000 3,212,822
1 3,355,001 3,360,000 3,358,803
1 3,480,001 3,485,000 3,480,014
1 3,705,001 3,710,000 3,709,471
1 10,870,001 10,875,000 10,873,582
1 14,930,001 14,935,000 14,930,093
1 71,605,001 71,610,000 71,606,091

7,089 178,491,213
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The Organic Meat Company Limited As On: June 30, 2025

2.3 Categories of Shareholder Folios Physical CDC Share held Percentage
2.3.1 - Directors, CEO, Their Spouse and Minor Childern 7 - 86,739,450 86,739,450 48.60
2.3.4 - Banks, DFIs, NBFCs 4 - 947,186 947,186 0.53
2.3.5 - Insurance Companies 2 - 3,646,365 3,646,365 2.04
2.3.6 - Modarabas and Mutual Funds 5 - 2,920,445 2,920,445 1.64
2.3.8 - A. General Public (Local) 6,995 686 75,893,743 75,782,689 42.46
2.3.8 - B. General Public (Foreigner) 3 - 111,740 111,740 0.06
2.3.9 - A, Other Companies (Local) 73 - 8,343,338 8,343,338 4.67
7,089 686 178,602,267 178,491,213 100.00
Shareholders More Than 10.00%
FAISAL HUSSAIN 1 71,606,091 40.12
The Organic Meat Company Limited
List of Directors, CEO, Their Spouse and Minor Childern (Folio Wise)
As On : June 30, 2025
Sr. # Folio Title CNIC Category Holding % Age
1 03277-096986 NIHAL CASSIM 42301-8289704-9 Director 1 0.00
2 07419-011431 RIZWAN ABBAS 42301-0867315-5 Director 203,261 0.11
3 07419-017313 ALI HUSSAIN 42000-8719486-3 Director 14,930,093 8.36
4 07419-017321 FAISAL HUSSAIN 42301-7030455-9 Director 71,606,091 40.12
5 07419-019541 SEHRISH HAFEEZ MASTOOR 42301-1452534-0 Director 1 0.00
6 07419-020085 SYED OWAILS HASSAN ZAIDI 42000-0533357-3 Director 1 0.00
7 18432-100866 ANEEK SALEH MOHAMMAD 42101-5102439-1 Director 2 0.00
Grand Total >> 86,739,450 48.60
The Organic Meat Company Limited
List of Banks, DFIs, NBFCs (Folio Wise)
As On : June 30, 2025
Sr. # Folio Title NTN Occupation Holding % Age
1 02659-000034 PAK LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED 10193642 Financial Institution 175,000 0.10
2 06510-000028 BANKISLAMI PAKISTAN LIMITED 22388451 Financial Institution 760,686 0.43
3 18432-005594 Z. A GHAFFAR SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 2665180-7 Financial Institution 1,500 0.00
4 18432-102649 SARMAAYA FINANCIALS (PRIVATE) LIMITED 4978330-3 Financial Institution 10,000 0.01
Grand Total >> 947,186 0.53
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07450-001792 DAWOOD FAMILY TAKAFUL LIMITED 30145040 Insurance Companies
18093-000027 JUBILEE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 06605648 | Insurance Companies

03277-004962 FIRST ALNOOR MODARABA 0710414-6

Modarabas 6,000

07070-000022 CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND 1781989-0 Mutual Fund 2,572,752 1.44
09886-000022 CDC - TRUSTEE AKD AGGRESSIVE INCOME FUND 2808032-7 Mutual Fund 50,000 0.03
12617-000028 CDC-TRUSTEE FAYSAL ISLAMIC SAVINGS GROWTH FUND 3621447-7 Mutual Fund 14,952 0.01

VA WIN|-=

13946-000028 CDC - TRUSTEE KSE MEEZAN INDEX FUND 4002449-7 Mutual Fund 276,741 0.16
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 15th Annual General Meeting of The Organic Meat Company
Limited (the “Company”) will be held on Monday, October 27, 2025 at 11:30 am at the corporate
office of the Company situated at Plot No. 257, Sector 24, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi to transact
the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2025 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

In accordance with section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017, and pursuant to S.R.0.389(1)/2023
dated March21, 2023, the financial statements of the Company have been uploaded on the website
of the Company which can be accessed through the following weblink:

Weblink: www.tomclnet

2. To re-appoint BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants as the external auditors of the
Company for the year 2025-26 and to fix their remuneration

Special Business:

3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the resolutions appearing
below as ordinary resolutions for the capitalization of free reserves to issue bonus shares at the rate
of 10% as recommended by the Directors.

Resolved that the annual body of shareholders hereby ratify a sum of Rs.178,491,213 be
capitalized out of the free reserves of the Company for issuance of 17,849,121 ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each as fully paid bonus shares.

Further resolved that the bonus shares shall rank Pari passu in all aspects with the existing
shares of the Company.

Further resolved that fractional entitlements of the members shall be consolidated into whole
shares and sold in the stock market and the sale proceeds shall be donated to a charitable

institution.

A statement as required by Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 in respect of the special
business to be considered at the meeting is included in this notice.
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4. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board
Karachi Imran Khan
Dated: October 6, 2025 Company Secretary
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NOTES:
1.

Notice of Book Closure

The Share Transfer Books and Register of Members of the Company will be closed as under:

L For Annual General Meeting

The Register of Members will remain closed from Wednesday, October 22, 2025 to Monday,
October 27,2025 (both days inclusive). During this period, no transfer of shares will be
registered. Transfers received in proper order at the office of our Share Registrar, M/s. Corptec
Associates (Private) Limited, Share Registrar and Corporate Consultants, 503-E, Johar
Town, Lahore, at the close of business on Tuesday, October 21, 2025, will be considered in
time for the entitlement to attend the Annual General Meeting.

II. For Bonus Shares

As already announced on September 29, 2025 (Pre-Open), the Share Transfer Books will
remain closed from Tuesday, October 14, 2025 to Tuesday, October 21, 2025 (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of Bonus Share entitlement. Transfers received in proper order at
the office of our Share Registrar, M/s. Corptec Associates (Private) Limited, Share Registrar
and Corporate Consultants, 503-E, Johar Town, Lahore, at the close of business on Monday,
October 13, 2025, will be considered in time for the said entitlement.

A member of the Company entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting may appoint any
other member as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote in his/her instead. The proxies to
be effective must be in writing and must be received by the Company’s corporate office 48
hours before the meeting.

Shareholders of the Company whose shares are registered in their account/sub-account with
Central Depository System (CDS) are requested to bring original Computerized National
Identity Card along with their account number in CDS and participant’s ID number for verification

In compliance with Section 119 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 19 Companies
(General Provisions and Forms) Regulations, 2018 members are requested to immediately
provide their mandatory information such as CNIC number, updated mailing address, email,
contact mobile/telephone number and International Banking Account Number (IBAN) together
with a copy of their CNIC to update our records and to avoid any non-compliance of the law.
Otherwise, all dividends will be withheld in terms of Regulation 6 of the Companies (Distribution
of Dividends) Regulations, 2017;
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 provides that in case of a listed company, any cash
dividend declared by the company must be paid electronically directly into the bank accounts
of entitled shareholders. Therefore, all shareholders are requested to fill in the Dividend Mandate
Form available on Company’s website and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to
the Registrar of the Company M/s. Corptec Associates (Private) Limited in case of physical
shares. In case shares are held in CDC then Dividend Mandate Form must be submitted directly
to shareholder’s broker/ participant/CDC account services. In case of non-submission of IBAN,
the Company will withhold the payment of dividends under Companies (Distribution of
Dividends) Regulations, 2017.

All Shareholders are advised to check their status on Active Taxpayers List (ATL) available on
FBR website and if required take necessary actions for inclusion of their name in ATL. In case
a person’s name does not appear in the ATL, the applicable tax rate will be as per law.

In case of joint account, please intimate proportion of shareholding of each account holder
along with their individual’s status on the ATL.

Members who desire to stop deduction of Zakat from their dividends may submit a declaration
on non-judicial stamp paper duly signed as required under the law (if not submitted earlier).

Withholding Tax exemption from the dividend income shall only be allowed if copy of valid tax
exemption certificate is made available to our Share Registrar by first day of Book Closure.

The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax
Numbers (NTN) updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate physical
shareholders should send a copy of their NTN certificate to the company or our Share Registrar
M/s. Corptec Associates (Private) Limited. The shareholders while sending NTN or NTN
certificate, as the case may be, must quote company name and their respective folio numbers.

In compliance of Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, once the Company has completed
stipulated formalities, any unclaimed dividend and /or shares that have remained outstanding
for a period of three years from the date of becoming due and payable or more shall be credited
to the Federal Government (in case of dividend) or delivered to the SECP (in case of physical
shares). Shareholders who could not collect their dividend/physical shares are advised to
contact the Share Registrar of the Company to collect/inquire about their unclaimed dividend
or shares, if any.

Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025 have been placed
on Company’s website at and .

The AGM can be attended by shareholders using smart phones/tablets/computers. To attend
the meeting through video link, members and their proxies are requested to register themselves
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by providing the following information along with valid copy of Computerized National Identity
Card (both sides)/passport, attested copy of board resolution / power of attorney (in case of
corporate shareholders) through email at by October 24, 2025.

Name of CDC Account _
member CNIC No. No/Folio No. Cell Number. Email address

The members who are registered after the necessary verification shall be provided with a video
link by the Company at the same email address that they emailed the Company with. The Login
facility will remain open from the start of the meeting till its proceedings are concluded.

14.  Members can exercise their right to vote by means of postal ballot i.e., by post or through
electronic mode subject to the requirements of Section 143 -145 of Companies Act, 2017, and
applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018.

15.  Procedure for E-Voting: Details of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with
those members of the Company who have their valid CNIC numbers, cell numbers, and e-mail
addresses available in the register of members of the company by the close of business on
October 17, 2025.

The web address, login details, and password, will be communicated to members via email.
The security codes will be communicated to members through SMS from the web portal of
Registrar of the Company M/s. Corptec Associates (Private) Limited (being the e-voting service
provider). Identity of the Members intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be authenticated
through electronic signature or authentication for login.

Members shall cast vote online at any time from October 24, 2025, 9:00 am to October 26,

2025 at 5:00 pm. Once the vote on the resolution is cast by a Member, he/she shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently.

190



STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS

UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

Pertaining to Item No. 3: Bonus Shares

To consider and approve the bonus shares atthe rate of 10% (i.e., 1 share for every 10 shares)
as recommended by the Board of Directors.

In this connection, the following resolutions (with or without modifications) are proposed
to be passed:

Resolved that the annual body of shareholders hereby ratify a sum of Rs.178,491,213 be capitalized
out of the free reserves of the Company for issuance of 17,849,121 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
as fully paid bonus shares.

Further resolved that the bonus shares shall rank Pari passu in all aspects with the existing
shares of the Company.

Further resolved that fractional entitlements of the members shall be consolidated into whole
shares and sold in the stock market and the sale proceeds shall be donated to a charitable institution.
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FORM OF PROXY

[/ We
of
being a member(s) of The Organic Meat Company Limited holder of

ordinary Shares as per Share Registrar Folio/CDC Account No
hereby appoint Mr./Miss/Mrs. Folio/CDC Account No

of _ whois also amember of the Company as my / our proxy to attend, speak & vote for me /
us and on my / our behalf at the at the 15th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be held on
Monday, October 27, 2025 at 11.30 pm and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this, day of 2025
Rs.5/=
Revenue
Stamp
(Signature should agree with
the specimen signature registered
with Company)
Signature
Witnesses:
1: Signature
Name:
Address:
CNIC or

Passport No.

2: Signature
Name:
Address:

CNIC or
Passport No.

Important:

1. This form of Proxy, duly completed and signed, must be submitted at the Company’s Corporate Office
not later than 48 hours.

2. For CDC Account Holder / Corporate Entities:
In addition of the above following requirements have to be met;

i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, address and CNIC Numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

ii) Attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

iii) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or passport at the time of the meeting.

iv) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.
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The Organic Meat Company Limited
Registered Address:
Survey Number 310-Deh Shah Mureed, Gadap, Karachi, Pakistan.
Contact # +92-346-8224601, +92-346-8224630

Korangi Plant & Correspondence Address:
Plot No. 257,Sector 24, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi - Pakistan
Tel: +92-21-35059969, +92-21-35079969

Email: Website
info@tomclnet | www.tomclnet




